
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

Regular Meeting of the 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

AUGUST 23, 2010 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 



 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

August 23, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Fleming 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 1 

a) Presentation of the Special Achievement in GIS (SAG) Award from 
Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. (ESRI), to Alex Bellak and 
the Information Technology Department. ............................................................. 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 



F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1 No Postponed Items 2 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 2 

I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 2 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 2 

I-4 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 
League 2 

I-5 Joint Meeting with Planning Commission to Discuss Economic Development 
Initiatives 3 

I-6 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds 3 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 13 

J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 13 

J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 13 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 14 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 14 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 14 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirts ..... 14 

J-5 City of Troy v. BG’s LLC 14 



J-6 Application for a New SDM Liquor License – Super City Smoker’s Express, LLC 14 

J-7 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 15 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 15 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 15 

a) IDD & IFEC for Metro Technologies, Ltd., 1462 E. Big Beaver – Monday, 
September 13, 2010 ........................................................................................... 15 

b) IDD & IFEC for Sulzer Metco, Inc., 1972 Meijer – Monday, September 13, 
2010 ................................................................................................................... 15 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): 15 

a) Request to Schedule a Study Session with Barry Demp of Barry Demp 
Coaching ............................................................................................................ 15 

b) Adoption of Troy City Council Code of Ethics ..................................................... 15 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 15 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 16 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 16 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 16 

N. REPORTS 16 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 16 

a) Liquor Advisory Committee/ Final – June 14, 2010 ............................................ 16 
b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 9, 2010............................................ 16 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 16 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) Letter to Stu Alderman from Jillian Cavellier, thanking Parks and Recreation 
for offering quality programs ............................................................................... 16 

b) Letter to Rick Shepler from Ed Kuefler, thanking Water Department 
employees for their assistance ........................................................................... 16 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 16 



a) Notice of Hearing for Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company ............. 16 

O. STUDY ITEMS 16 

O-1  Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 16 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 16 

P-1 Closed Session – None Requested 16 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 16 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 16 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

Monday, September 13, 2010 Regular City Council .............................................. 17 
Monday, September 20, 2010 Regular City Council .............................................. 17 

Monday, September 27, 2010 Regular City Council .............................................. 17 
Monday, October 4, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 17 
Monday, October 11, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................. 17 

Monday, October 18, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................. 17 
Monday, November 8, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 17 

Monday, November 15, 2010 Regular City Council ............................................... 17 

Monday, November 22, 2010 Regular City Council ............................................... 17 

Monday, December 6, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 17 
Monday, December 13, 2010 Regular City Council ............................................... 17 

Monday, December 20, 2010 Regular City Council ............................................... 17 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Fleming 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of              at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, August 23, 2010 due to                                 . 
 
Yes: 
No: 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 

 
a) Presentation of the Special Achievement in GIS (SAG) Award from Environmental 

Systems Research Institute, Inc. (ESRI), to Alex Bellak and the Information 

Technology Department.  
This award is given to ESRI user sites around the world to recognize outstanding work 
with GIS technology. The City of Troy stood out from more than 100,000 others. The 
purpose of this award is to showcase organizations and their important contributions in 
GIS to our global community. There will be a 10-minute presentation by Alex Bellak, 
highlighting the City’s use of GIS technology. 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 2 - 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 

Members of the Public and Visitors 

 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 
(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 
minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

 City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

 Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 

I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 
 

I-4 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 

League 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES _________________________ as 

Principal Official Representative (Official Voting Delegate) and hereby DESIGNATES 
________________________ as the Alternate Official Representative (Official Alternate Voting 
Delegate) to cast the vote of the City of Troy at the Annual Business Meeting of the Michigan 
Municipal League to be held September 21 through September 24, 2010 in Dearborn, 
Michigan.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-5 Joint Meeting with Planning Commission to Discuss Economic Development 

Initiatives 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED,  That a joint meeting between the Troy City Council and the Troy Planning 

Commission be SCHEDULED on _____________________________, 2010 to Discuss 
Economic Development Initiatives. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 

I-6 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Act 279, Public Acts of Michigan, 1909, as amended 
(“Act 279”) and the City Charter of the City of Troy (the “City”), and as a result of the affirmative 
vote of the City’s electors at the general election in the City on April 5, 1999, the City issued its 
General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2003 (Public Safety Facilities and City Hall) 
(the “2003 Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $14,500,000 for the purpose of 
defraying the cost of the acquisition and construction of various public safety facilities in the 
City and the renovation, reconstruction and equipping of the City Hall Building and appurtenant 
facilities and the costs incident thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, The 2003 Bonds remain outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of 
$11,000,000, mature in various principal amounts on October 1 in the years 2010 through 2020 
and bear interest at rates per annum which vary from 3.500% to 4.500%; and 
 
WHEREAS, Part VI of Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended (“Act 34”) authorizes 
the City to refund all or any part of its outstanding securities; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, The City has received a proposal from Fifth Third Securities, Inc. (the 
“Underwriter”) to refund part of the outstanding 2003 Bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Manager has recommended that this resolution be adopted in order to 
effect the refunding of part of the outstanding 2003 Bonds and this Council has determined that 
it is in the best interest of the City that such refunding be undertaken. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS -- PURPOSE.   
 
Bonds of the City, aggregating the principal sum of not to exceed Ten Million Dollars 
($10,000,000) (the “Refunding Bonds”), shall be issued and sold pursuant to the provisions of 
Act 34, and other applicable statutory provisions, for the purpose of refunding part of the 2003 
Bonds (the “2003 Bonds To Be Refunded”).  The City Manager shall determine which of the 
2003 Bonds shall be refunded and the principal amount of the Refunding Bonds at the time of 
sale. 
 
2. BOND DETAILS.   
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be designated “General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2010B;” shall be dated as of such date as shall be approved by the City Manager at the 
time of sale; shall be numbered from 1 upwards; shall be fully registered; shall be in the 
denomination of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding the aggregate 
principal amount for each maturity at the option of the purchaser thereof; shall bear interest at a 
rate or rates not exceeding 6% per annum to be determined by the City Manager at the time of 
sale payable on such dates as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale; and 
shall mature in such principal amounts and on such dates and in such years as shall be 
determined by the City Manager at the time of sale. 
 
3. PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST.  
  
The principal of and interest on the Refunding Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the 
United States.  Principal shall be payable upon presentation and surrender of the Refunding 
Bonds to the bond registrar and paying agent as they severally mature.  Interest shall be paid 
to the registered owner of each Refunding Bond as shown on the registration books at the 
close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month preceding the month in which the 
interest payment is due.  Interest shall be paid when due by check or draft drawn upon and 
mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent to the registered owner at the registered 
address. 
 
4. PRIOR REDEMPTION.   

 
The Refunding Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity if so determined by the 
City Manager at the time of sale and if so determined, upon such terms and conditions as shall 
be approved by the City Manager. 
 
5. BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 5 - 

 Initially, one fully-registered bond for each maturity of the Refunding Bonds, in the aggregate 
amount of such maturity, shall be issued in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The 
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) for the benefit of other parties (the “Participants”) in the 
book-entry-only transfer system of DTC.  In the event the City determines that it is in the best 
interest of the City not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that the interests of the 
holders of the Refunding Bonds might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of 
transfer is continued, the City may notify DTC and the bond registrar and paying agent, 
whereupon DTC will notify the Participants of the availability through DTC of bond certificates.  
In such event, the bond registrar and paying agent shall deliver, transfer and exchange bond 
certificates as requested by DTC and any Participant or “beneficial owner” in appropriate 
amounts in accordance with this resolution.  DTC may determine to discontinue providing its 
services with respect to the Refunding Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and the 
bond registrar and paying agent and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under 
applicable law or the City may determine that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties and 
may so advise DTC.  In either such event, the City shall use reasonable efforts to locate 
another securities depository.  Under such circumstances (if there is no successor securities 
depository), the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall be obligated to deliver bond 
certificates in accordance with the procedures established by this resolution.  In the event bond 
certificates are issued, the provisions of this resolution shall apply to, among other things, the 
transfer and exchange of such certificates and the method of payment of principal of and 
interest on such certificates.  Whenever DTC requests the City and the bond registrar and 
paying agent to do so, the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall cooperate with 
DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to make available one or more 
separate certificates evidencing the Refunding Bonds to any Participant having Refunding 
Bonds certificated to its DTC account or to arrange for another securities depository to maintain 
custody of certificates evidencing the Refunding Bonds. 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution to the contrary, so long as any bond is 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to the 
principal of, interest on and redemption premium, if any, on the Refunding Bonds and all 
notices with respect to the Refunding Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as 
provided in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations previously entered into by the City and 
DTC, and the City Manager is authorized to enter into any additional documents with DTC on 
behalf of the City as deemed to be appropriate in order to accomplish the issuance of the 
Refunding Bonds in accordance with law and this resolution. 
 
6. BOND REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT.   

 
The Huntington National Bank is hereby appointed as bond registrar and paying agent for the 
Refunding Bonds, and the City Manager is authorized to enter into an agreement with the bond 
registrar and paying agent.  The City Manager from time to time may designate, and may enter 
into an agreement with, a successor bond registrar and paying agent, which shall be a bank or 
trust company located in the State of Michigan which is qualified to act in such capacity under 
the laws of the United States of America or the State of Michigan. 

 
7. EXECUTION, AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF BONDS.   

 
The Refunding Bonds shall be executed in the name of the City by the facsimile signatures of 
the Mayor and the City Clerk and authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 6 - 

representative of the bond registrar and paying agent, and the seal of the City (or a facsimile 
thereof) shall be impressed or imprinted on the Refunding Bonds.  After the Refunding Bonds 
have been executed and authenticated for delivery to the Underwriter, they shall be delivered 
by the Treasurer to the Underwriter upon receipt of the purchase price.  Additional Refunding 
Bonds bearing the facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk and upon which the 
seal of the City (or a facsimile thereof) is impressed or imprinted may be delivered to the bond 
registrar and paying agent for authentication and delivery in connection with the exchange or 
transfer of the Refunding Bonds.  The bond registrar and paying agent shall indicate on each 
Refunding Bond the date of its authentication. 

 
8. EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER OF BONDS.  

 
 Any Refunding Bond, upon surrender thereof to the bond registrar and paying agent with a 
written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent duly executed 
by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney, at the option of the registered owner 
thereof, may be exchanged for Refunding Bonds of any other authorized denominations of the 
same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest as 
the surrendered Refunding Bond. 
 
Each Refunding Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the City, which shall be 
kept for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon surrender of such 
Refunding Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar 
and paying agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. 
 
Upon the exchange or transfer of any Refunding Bond, the bond registrar and paying agent on 
behalf of the City shall cancel the surrendered Refunding Bond and shall authenticate and 
deliver to the transferee a new Refunding Bond or Bonds of any authorized denomination of 
the same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest 
as the surrendered Refunding Bond.  If, at the time the bond registrar and paying agent 
authenticates and delivers a new Refunding Bond pursuant to this section, payment of interest 
on the Refunding Bonds is in default, the bond registrar and paying agent shall endorse upon 
the new Refunding Bond the following:  “Payment of interest on this bond is in default.  The 
last date to which interest has been paid is __________.” 
 
The City and the bond registrar and paying agent may deem and treat the person in whose 
name any Refunding Bond shall be registered upon the books of the City as the absolute 
owner of such Refunding Bond, whether such Refunding Bond shall be overdue or not, for the 
purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and interest on such Refunding Bond and for 
all other purposes, and all payments made to any such registered owner, or upon his order, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this resolution shall be valid and effectual to 
satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Refunding Bond to the extent of the sum or sums 
so paid, and neither the City nor the bond registrar and paying agent shall be affected by any 
notice to the contrary.  The City agrees to indemnify and save the bond registrar and paying 
agent harmless from and against any and all loss, cost, charge, expense, judgment or liability 
incurred by it, acting in good faith and without negligence hereunder, in so treating such 
registered owner. 
 

For every exchange or transfer of Refunding Bonds, the City or the bond registrar and paying 
agent may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 7 - 

charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or sums shall 
be paid by the person requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the 
exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer. 
 
The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange Refunding 
Bonds or portions of Refunding Bonds which have been selected for redemption. 
 
9. FORM OF REFUNDING BONDS.   

 
The Refunding Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 
 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
CITY OF TROY 
GENERAL OBLIGATION UNLIMITED TAX REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2010B 
 

INTEREST RATE 
 

MATURITY DATE 
 

DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE 
 

CUSIP 
 

Registered Owner: 
 
Principal Amount:  
 
The City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the “City”), acknowledges itself 
indebted to, and for value received hereby promises to pay to, the Registered Owner identified 
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set forth above on the Maturity Date 
specified above, unless redeemed prior thereto as hereinafter provided, upon presentation and 
surrender of this bond at the corporate trust office of The Huntington National Bank, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, located in Grand Rapids, Michigan, or other designated office, or at 
such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be designated pursuant to the 
Resolution, and to pay to the Registered Owner, as shown on the registration books at the 
close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month preceding the month in which an 
interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the bond registrar and 
paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the Registered Owner at the registered 
address, interest on such Principal Amount from the Date of Original Issue set forth above, or 
such later date through which interest has been paid, until the City’s obligation with respect to 
the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the rate per annum specified above.  
Interest is payable on the first days of _________ and _________ in each year, commencing 
on ___________ 1, 20__.  Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the United 
States of America. 
 
This bond is one of a series of bonds aggregating the principal sum of 
_______________________________________ Dollars ($__________) issued by the City 
under and pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and Statutes of Michigan 
(especially Act No. 34, Public Acts of 2001, as amended) and a resolution adopted by the City 
Council of the City and an order adopted by the City Manager of the City (said resolution and 
order herein collectively referred to as the “Resolution”) for the purpose of refunding the City’s 
outstanding General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2003 (Public Safety Facilities and 
City Hall) maturing in the years 20__ through 20__.  The full faith and credit of the City are 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 8 - 

hereby pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on this bond.  The City 
is authorized and required to levy annually ad valorem taxes, without limitation as to rate or 
amount, to pay such principal and interest as the same shall become due. 
 
This bond is transferable, as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the City kept 
for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon the surrender of this bond 
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent 
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon the 
exchange or transfer of this bond a new bond or bonds of any authorized denomination, in the 
same aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rate and maturity, shall be 
authenticated and delivered to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the 
Resolution, and upon payment of the charges, if any, therein provided.  Bonds so authenticated 
and delivered shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not 
exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity. 
 
The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange bonds or 
portions of bonds which have been selected for redemption. 
 
Bonds maturing prior to ______________, ______, are not subject to redemption prior to 
maturity.  Bonds maturing on and after __________________, __________, are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity at the option of the City, in such order as shall be determined by 
the City, on any one or more dates on and after _____________, __________.  Bonds of a 
denomination greater than $5,000 may be partially redeemed in the amount of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof.  If less than all of the bonds maturing in any year are to be redeemed, 
the bonds or portions of bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot.  The redemption price 
shall be the par value of the bond or portion of the bond called to be redeemed plus interest to 
the date fixed for redemption and a premium as follows: 
 
__% of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but prior to 
__________, ____; 
 
No premium if called for redemption on or after __________. 
 
Not less than thirty nor more than sixty days’ notice of redemption shall be given to the 
registered owners of bonds called to be redeemed by mail to each registered owner at the 
registered address.  Bonds or portions of bonds called for redemption shall not bear interest on 
and after the date fixed for redemption, provided funds are on hand with the bond registrar and 
paying agent to redeem the same. 
 
It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, 
happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the bonds of this series, existed, 
have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, 
and that the total indebtedness of the City, including the series of bonds of which this bond is 
one, does not exceed any constitutional, statutory or charter limitation. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 9 - 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, by its City 
Council, has caused this bond to be executed in its name by facsimile signatures of the Mayor 
and City Clerk and its corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof) to be impressed or imprinted 
hereon.  This bond shall not be valid unless the Certificate of Authentication has been manually 
executed by an authorized representative of the bond registrar and paying agent.  
 
CITY OF TROY 
  
By:_______________________________   

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
By:_________________________________ 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 

(SEAL) 
 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
This bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Resolution. 
 
The Huntington National Bank 
Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
 
By:  __________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 
 
AUTHENTICATION DATE: 
 
ASSIGNMENT 
 
For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
__________________________________________________ (please print or type name, 
address and taxpayer identification number of transferee) the within bond and all rights 
thereunder and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint ______________ 
_________________________________________________________________ attorney to 
transfer the within bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution 
in the premises. 
 
Dated:   _______________   
 
Signature Guaranteed:  _______________________________ 
 
Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in a Securities 
Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 
 
END OF BOND FORM 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 10 - 

10. SECURITY.   
 

The full faith and credit of the City are hereby pledged to the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Refunding Bonds.  There shall be levied upon all taxable property in the City 
upon the tax roll of the year 2011 and upon the tax roll of each year thereafter while any of the 
Refunding Bonds shall be outstanding, an amount such that the estimated collections 
therefrom will be sufficient to pay promptly at maturity the principal and interest maturing on 
the Refunding Bonds prior to the time of the following year’s tax collections.  Taxes required to 
be levied to pay principal of and interest on the Refunding Bonds shall be levied without 
limitation as to rate or amount. 

 
11. DEFEASANCE.   

 
In the event cash or direct obligations of the United States or obligations the principal of and 
interest on which are guaranteed by the United States, or a combination thereof, the principal 
of and interest on which, without reinvestment, come due at times and in amounts sufficient to 
pay, at maturity or irrevocable call for earlier optional redemption, the principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on the Refunding Bonds, shall have been deposited in trust, this resolution 
shall be defeased and the owners of the Refunding Bonds shall have no further rights under 
this resolution except to receive payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Refunding Bonds from the cash or securities deposited in trust and the interest and gains 
thereon and to transfer and exchange bonds as provided herein. 

 
12. PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FUND.   

 
There shall be established for the Refunding Bonds a Principal and Interest Fund.  From the 
proceeds of the sale of the Refunding Bonds there shall be set aside in the Principal and 
Interest Fund any accrued interest received from the Underwriter at the time of delivery of the 
same.  The proceeds of the taxes (both current and delinquent) to be used to pay the principal 
and interest on the Refunding Bonds when due shall be deposited as collected in the Principal 
and Interest Fund and so long as the principal or interest on the Refunding Bonds remain 
unpaid, no moneys shall be withdrawn from such fund except to pay such principal and 
interest or to pay from any investment earnings on such fund the fees and expenses of the 
bond registrar and paying agent. 

 
13. PAYMENT OF ISSUANCE EXPENSES -- ESCROW FUND.   

 
The remainder of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds shall be used, together with available 
moneys of the City, if any, to pay the issuance expenses of the Refunding Bonds and to 
establish an escrow fund for the 2003 Bonds To Be Refunded.  After the issuance expenses 
have been paid or provided for the remaining proceeds and City moneys, if any, shall be used 
to establish an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”) consisting of cash and investments in direct 
obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally 
guaranteed by, the United States of America or other obligations the principal of and interest on 
which are fully secured by the foregoing and used to pay the principal of, interest on and 
redemption premiums on the 2003 Bonds To Be Refunded.  The Escrow Fund shall be held by 
The Huntington National Bank, hereby appointed as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”), in trust 
pursuant to an escrow agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) which irrevocably shall direct the 
Escrow Agent to take all necessary steps to pay the principal of and interest on the 2003 Bonds 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 11 - 

To Be Refunded when due prior to redemption and to call the 2003 Bonds To Be Refunded for 
redemption at such time as shall be determined in the Escrow Agreement.  The City Manager 
shall approve the Escrow Agreement at the time of sale of the Refunding Bonds and shall be 
authorized to execute and deliver the Escrow Agreement for and on behalf of the City.  The 
amounts held in the Escrow Fund shall be such that the cash and the investments and the 
income received thereon will be sufficient without reinvestment to pay the principal of, interest 
on and redemption premiums on the 2003 Bonds To Be Refunded when due at maturity or call 
for redemption as required by the Escrow Agreement. 

 
14. APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY.   

 
The issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds shall be subject to permission being granted 
therefor by the Department of Treasury of the State of Michigan as provided in Act 34.  If 
necessary, the City Manager is authorized to file an application with the Department of 
Treasury for approval of the Refunding Bonds. 
 
15. SALE, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF REFUNDING 

BONDS.   
 

The Refunding Bonds shall be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale to the Underwriter as 
hereinafter provided, and it is hereby determined that such negotiated sale is in the best 
interests of the City and is calculated to provide the maximum flexibility in pricing the Refunding 
Bonds.  The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Bond Purchase Agreement with the 
Underwriter, which Bond Purchase Agreement shall set forth the 2003 Bonds To Be Refunded 
and the principal amount, principal maturities and dates, interest rates and interest payment 
dates, redemption provisions, if any, purchase price to be paid by the Underwriter with respect 
to the Refunding Bonds and such other terms and provisions as the City Manager determines 
to be necessary or appropriate in connection with the sale of the Refunding Bonds.  The Bond 
Purchase Agreement and the terms of the Refunding Bonds set forth therein shall be approved 
by an order adopted by the City Manager at the time of the sale of the Refunding Bonds.  The 
Mayor, the Clerk, the City Manager and the Treasurer are each hereby authorized to do all 
things necessary to effectuate the sale, issuance, delivery, transfer and exchange of the 
Refunding Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this resolution.  In making the 
determination in the order authorizing the sale of the Refunding Bonds and in the Bond 
Purchase Agreement with respect to principal maturities and dates, interest rates, purchase 
price of the Refunding Bonds and compensation to be paid to the Underwriter, the City 
Manager shall be limited as follows: 
(a) The interest rate on any Refunding Bond shall not exceed 6% per annum. 
(b) The final maturity date of the Refunding Bonds shall not be later than October 1, 2020. 
(c) The present value of the savings (net of issuance costs) to be realized by the issuance of 

the Refunding Bonds shall be equal to or greater than 3% of the principal amount of the 
2003 Bonds To Be Refunded. 

(d) The purchase price of the Refunding Bonds shall not be less than 98% of the principal 
amount thereof. 

(e) The Underwriter’s discount with respect to the Refunding Bonds or the compensation to 
be paid to the Underwriter shall not exceed 1% of the principal amount of the Refunding 
Bonds. 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 12 - 

16. REPLACEMENT OF BONDS.   
 

Upon receipt by the City Clerk of proof of ownership of an unmatured Refunding Bond, of 
satisfactory evidence that the bond has been lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken 
and of security or indemnity which complies with applicable law and is satisfactory to the City 
Clerk, the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and paying agent to deliver a new 
executed Refunding Bond to replace the Refunding Bond lost, apparently destroyed or 
wrongfully taken in compliance with applicable law.  In the event an outstanding matured 
Refunding Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the City Clerk may authorize 
the bond registrar and paying agent to pay the Refunding Bond without presentation upon the 
receipt of the same documentation required for the delivery of a replacement Refunding Bond.  
The bond registrar and paying agent, for each new Refunding Bond delivered or paid without 
presentation as provided above, shall require the payment of expenses, including counsel 
fees, which may be incurred by the bond registrar and paying agent and the City in the 
premises.  Any Refunding Bond delivered pursuant to the provisions of this Section 16 in lieu 
of any Refunding Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken shall be of the same 
form and tenor and be secured in the same manner as the Refunding Bond in substitution for 
which such Refunding Bond was delivered. 
 
17. TAX COVENANT.   

 
The City covenants to comply with all applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended (the “Code”), necessary to assure that the interest on the Refunding Bonds 
will be and will remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The 
Mayor, the Clerk, the City Manager, the Treasurer and other appropriate City officials are 
authorized to do all things necessary (including the making of such covenants of the City as 
shall be appropriate) to assure that the interest on the Refunding Bonds will be and will remain 
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

 
18. QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS.   

 
The Refunding Bonds are hereby designated as “qualified tax exempt obligations” as 
described in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code. 

 
19. OFFICIAL STATEMENT.  

 
The City Manager is authorized to cause the preparation of an official statement for the 
Refunding Bonds for the purpose of enabling compliance with Rule 15c2-12 issued under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”) and to do all other things 
necessary to enable compliance with the Rule.  After the award of the Refunding Bonds, the 
City will provide copies of a “final official statement” (as defined in paragraph (e)(3) of the 
Rule) on a timely basis and in reasonable quantity as requested by the Underwriter to enable 
the Underwriter to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the rules of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. 

 
20. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE.   

 
The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute a certificate of the City to 
comply with the continuing disclosure undertaking of the City with respect to the Refunding 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 13 - 

Bonds pursuant to paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule, and amendments to such certificate from time 
to time in accordance with the terms of such certificate (the certificate and any amendments 
thereto are collectively referred to herein as the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”).  The City 
hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

 
21. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.   

 
The following are appointed to act in the following capacities with respect to the Refunding 
Bonds: 
As financial consultant:  Bendzinski & Co., Municipal Finance Advisors 

     Detroit, Michigan 
 
As Underwriter:   Fifth Third Securities, Inc. 

     Cincinnati, Ohio 
 
As bond counsel: Dickinson Wright PLLC 

Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 
 
22. CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.  

 
 All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they may be in conflict herewith are hereby 
rescinded. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES this resolution 

AUTHORIZING the issuance of not to exceed $10,000,000 General Obligation Unlimited Tax 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2010B. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 14 - 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of August 16, 2010 as submitted. 

 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 5, 2009, Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract with an option 
to renew for one additional year for Tee Shirts to the low total bidder, Customs T’s of Clawson, 
Michigan (Resolution #2009-10-301-F-4c); and 
 
WHEREAS, On March 15, 2010, Troy City Council rescinded with prejudice the contract award 
to Custom T’s and re-awarded the contract for Tee Shirts to the next lowest bidder, Impressive 
Promotional Products LLC of Clawson (Resolution #2010-03-070-I5); and 
 
WHEREAS, Impressive Promotional Products LLC has agreed to exercise the one-year option 
to renew the contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby exercises the option to 
renew the contract with Impressive Promotional Products LLC to provide Tee Shirts under the 
same prices, terms, and conditions for one additional year at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened September 2, 2009, to expire September 30, 2011. 
 

J-5 City of Troy v. BG’s LLC 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment 
in the City of Troy v BG’s L.L.C. condemnation case, and authorizes payment in the amounts 

stated therein, and further authorizes the City Attorney’s Office to EXECUTE the document on 

behalf of the City of Troy, and a copy is to be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

J-6 Application for a New SDM Liquor License – Super City Smoker’s Express, LLC 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 15 - 

 
WHEREAS, The LAC is an advisory committee of City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Liquor Advisory Committee (LAC) reviewed the application of Super City 
Smoker’s Express, as well as supporting documentation and verbal representations made at its 
meetings and after deliberation, recommends denial of the application since the applicant has 
convictions for crimes of violence. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS 

DENIAL of the application from Super City Smoker’s Express, L.L.C. for a new SDM License to 
be located at 2981 East Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County, {MLCC Request 

#524881} and DIRECTS that a copy of this Resolution be forwarded to the MLCC. 

 
J-7 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby waive the no parking 
restrictions on the East side of Northfield Parkway from the parking lot entrance to 
Congregation Shir Tikvah to the entrance to Boulan Park, on Wednesday, September 8, 2010, 
7:00 pm – 11:00 pm, Thursday, September 9, 2010, 9:00 am – 5:00 pm, Friday, September 17, 
2010, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm, Saturday, September 18, 2010, 9:00 am – 9:00 pm. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) IDD & IFEC for Metro Technologies, Ltd., 1462 E. Big Beaver – Monday, September 

13, 2010 

b) IDD & IFEC for Sulzer Metco, Inc., 1972 Meijer – Monday, September 13, 2010 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): 

a) Request to Schedule a Study Session with Barry Demp of Barry Demp Coaching 

b) Adoption of Troy City Council Code of Ethics 
 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 16 - 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS  

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 

a) Liquor Advisory Committee/ Final – June 14, 2010 

b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 9, 2010 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted  
 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter to Stu Alderman from Jillian Cavellier, thanking Parks and Recreation for 

offering quality programs 

b) Letter to Rick Shepler from Ed Kuefler, thanking Water Department employees for 

their assistance 
 
 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  

a) Notice of Hearing for Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 

P-1 Closed Session – None Requested 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
No Future City Council Public Hearings Scheduled 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2010 

 

- 17 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

Monday, September 13, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 20, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 27, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 4, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 11, 2010 ....................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 18, 2010 ....................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, November 8, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, November 15, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, November 22, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 6, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 13, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 20, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



Esri User Conference I July 2010 I San Diego, Ca lifornia .-.,..........-

Y+esenledlo 

City of Troy, 
Michigan 
Deprtament of Information Technology 

Jack Dangermond 
President, ESRI 

• esrr 

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=TASHNICKBL
mailto:agenda@troymi.gov
mailto:t.bartholomew@troymi.gov
mailto:B.Pallotta@troymi.gov
bittnera
Text Box
C-01a



bittnera
Text Box
I-04









bittnera
Text Box
I-05



bittnera
Text Box
I-06





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 16, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

Mayor Pro Tem Fleming gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 16, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 

 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the months of 

May and June 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart presented a check in the 
amount of $724.00 to the Boys & Girls Club of Troy. 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 

Marvin Reinhardt Safety of streets, Community Center, Littering 

James Savage Payments to Carlisle/Wortman Assoc., DDA 

Tim Burns Update from Oakland County 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 

I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 16, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 
 

I-4 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 
 
Resolution #2010-08-173 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the tax base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) encouraging 
expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities, and (g) encouraging attractive, viable 
building sites and (h) enhancing our economic development tools to attract and retain 
businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax abatements for eligible 
properties established by the Act;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the following 
minimum criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be granted 
until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 

2.  Any real and/or personal property tax abatement at a minimum must be revenue neutral 
to the City of Troy.  

 
3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement unless applicant is 

responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely payment of 
property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 years; and 

 
5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more than 10 

jobs and/or has a personal property investment of at least $750,000.00, and/or owns 
the underlying real property or has a lease for the underlying property for a minimum 
term of 5 years, as long as two of the three criteria are satisfied. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of the 
following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC tax abatement, where the increase in the 
number of jobs created will increase the term of the IFEC abatement, and similarly the increase 
in the personal property investment and the ownership/lease conditions on the real property will 
increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 

Tax Abatement Matrix for Real and Personal Property 

Job Creation Building Terms 
RP and/or PP 

Investment 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 16, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 
 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 
 
50 - 99 3 years 5 year 1 Year  $ 5,000,000  3 years 
 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 
 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 
 
200 + 6 years         

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the implementation 
of an application fee equal to 2% of the estimated personal property taxes abated under the 
terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of processing the application, whichever is 
less, and the City of Troy will not charge or collect any other fees for the application, in keeping 
with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-08-174-J-1a 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2010-08-174-J-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of August 9, 2010 as submitted. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 16, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 
 

J-5 Amendment to Agreement Between Troy Historical Society and City of Troy to 
Expand the Troy Museum and Historic Village 

 
Resolution #2010-08-174-J-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Amendment to Agreement by and 
between the Troy Historical Society and the City of Troy to expand the Troy Museum and 
Historic Village; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 

City Clerk to execute the document; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): None Submitted  

 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
M-1   Council Comments 
 
Mayor Schilling and Council Members discussed the dates for the City Manager and City 
Attorney evaluations. 

N. REPORTS  
N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Planning Commission/Draft – July 13, 2010 
b) Planning Commission/Final – July 13, 2010  

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – 30

th
 Annual Actuarial Valuation 

Report – December 31, 2009 
Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 16, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

N-5  Memorandum from Carol K. Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director Regarding 
 “Inquiry from Council Member Regarding Park Signs” 

Noted and Filed 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  Code of Conduct 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 
P-1 Closed Session – None Requested 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting RECESSED at 7:58 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 8:08 PM. 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:50 PM. 

 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 



 

 
August 17, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
  
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option –  
   Tee Shirts 
 
Background 
 On October 5, 2009, Troy City Council approved a one-year contract for Tee Shirts (various types) with 

an option to renew for one additional year to the low total bidder, Custom T’s of Clawson, MI 
(Resolution #2009-10-301-F-4c)  

 Custom T’s withdrew from the contract in February 2010 and the City re-awarded the contract to next 
lowest bidder, Impressive Promotional Products LLC of Clawson on March 15, 2010. (Resolution # 
2010-03-070-I-5) 

 Tee Shirts are purchased for youth and adult recreational programs throughout the year based upon 
estimated quantities. 

 Impressive Promotional Products has offered to renew their contract for one additional year under the 
same prices, terms, and conditions.  

 A market survey conducted by the Purchasing department concurs with the recommendation, as the 
raw material cotton, has increased significantly from last year. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available for the purchase of these tee shirts in the Parks and Recreation Program operating 

supply accounts. 
 

Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 09-36, one-year requirements of Tee Shirts with an option to renew for one additional year 

was competitively bid and opened on September 2, 2009, in accordance with City Charter and Code. 
 

Recommendation 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend exercising the option to renew 

for one additional year for an estimated cost of $35,742.00 with Impressive Promotional Products of 
Clawson for Tee Shirts under the same prices, terms and conditions originally bid expiring September 
30, 2011. 

 
G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 - TeeShirts 08.10.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04a



 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:      August 17, 2010 

 
TO:      Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:     Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – T-SHIRTS  
 
  
 
E.A. GRAPHICS – Richard Artymouch                                                                 (586) 726-1400 
Mr. Artymouch has indicated that T-Shirts will be increasing in price, because cost of cotton is 
expected to increase 15% to 20%.  He has received a letter from one of the manufacturers/mills 
who supplies his company with T-Shirts. 
  
EASY GREEN SHOP – Owner – Paul                                                                     (313) 561-0378 
According to Paul, prices will be increasing for T-Shirts anywhere from 40% to 60% because the 
cotton prices have increased.  There is a new material that is being used; bamboo – it lasts 
longer, breaths better, and keeps its shape longer.  Blows away Polo shirts from Tommy Hilfiger 
and Ralph Lauren, and is half the cost. 
 
FULL CONTACT SPORT – Owner - Mike                                                               (877) 405-6150 
Mike believes there will be an increase of 9% to 10% on T-Shirts this year, because of the 
increase in price for cotton. He has been in business for 4 ½ years and T-Shirts have been 
increasing in price each year.  The new Green materials are new and better in quality than 
regular T-Shirts, but they are more expensive.  
 
DESIGN INCENTIVES, INC. – Barbara Hendrickson                                    _        (734) 542-9047 
Ms. Hendrickson told me that T-Shirts would be increasing slightly by 9%.  As far as she knows, 
she is going to hold current prices for next year.  She has some green products for T-Shirts, but 
they are going to be more expensive than the cotton T-shirts. 
 
  

 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer to 
renew the contract for T-Shirts to the current vendor based on the fact costs will increase in 
price for cotton anywhere from 9% to 60% this year. 
 
 
CC: File 





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final March 15, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, On March 19, 2007, Troy City Council approved a contract for 32 months of Food 
and Beverage Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course with an option to renew for two years to 
Kosch Special Events LLC, the best available bidder as a result of a best value process which 
the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest at a guaranteed rate of 5% of gross 
revenue over $125,000.00 and 7.5% of gross revenue over $150,000.00 (Resolution #2007-03-
099); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council approved an amendment to the agreement on March 17, 
2008, authorizing the sale of alcoholic beverages on the golf course proper (Resolution #2008-
03-015);  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for two years with Kosch Catering, LLC of Rochester, MI, to provide for the 
sale of food and beverages under the same return schedule, terms and conditions as the 
original contract to expire November 30, 2011, or upon termination for convenience with 30-
days written notice; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreement renewal pertaining to these services, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
I-5 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Tee Shirts 
 
Resolution #2010-03-070-I-5 
 
WHEREAS, On October 5, 2009, a contract for one-year requirements of Tee Shirts (various 
types) with an option to renew for one additional year was awarded to the low total bidder, 
Custom T’s of Clawson, MI (Resolution # 2009-10-301-F4c); and 
 
WHEREAS, Custom T’s has requested termination of the contract as they found it to be 
economically unfeasible to continue;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract for one-year requirements of Tee Shirts (various types) with an option to renew for one 
additional year from Custom T’s, and hereby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next lowest 
bidder, Impressive Promotional Products LLC of Clawson, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened September 2, 2009 with the contract expiring September 30, 2010, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-6 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2009 
 
Resolution #2010-03-070-I-6 
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the State of Michigan for the 
purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy hereby accepts the following platted and non-platted streets: 
Burns, Rothwell, Provincial and Vernmoor; 
 



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
February 25, 2010 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Tee Shirts 
 
Background 
 On October 5, 2009, Troy City Council approved a one-year contract to provide Tee Shirts for 

Parks & Recreation programs with an option to renew for one additional year to the low total 
bidder, Custom T’s  of Clawson, MI (Resolution #2009-10-301-F4c).  

 On February 11, 2010, Custom T’s had requested to be released from their contract as it has 
proven to be economically unfeasible to continue under erroneous assumptions made on their 
part as it relates to design creation, order quantity and frequency.     

 Impressive Promotional Products, LLC is the next lowest bidder and has agreed to provide tee 
shirts as specified through September 30, 2010.    

 
Financial Considerations 
 Costs under the new contract with Impressive Promotional Products will increase only marginally 

at an estimated $600.00 when compared with pricing submitted by Custom T’s.   
 The cost of the shirts is built-in to the registration fee paid for by program participants.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 Custom T’s received a written notification of default and remedies for reinstatement as a potential 

vendor after three (3) years. 
 
Recommendation 
 City management recommends the Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the contract approved 

on October 5, 2009, to Custom T’s, for Tee Shirts (various types) (Resolution #2009-10-301-F4c).  
Staff also recommends re-awarding the contract to the next lowest bidder, Impressive Promotional 
Products, LLC of Clawson, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 2, 
2009. 

 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Rescind-ReAward - TeeShirts - ITB-COT09-36-03.10.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



fHPRE55fVE PROHOTfONAL PRODLlC!T5, LLC 
645 North Rochester Road, Clawson, M148017. 
Tel: (248) 589-3595 Fax: (248) 589-1131 

Email: ipproducts@sbcglobal.net 

February 20,2010 

Susan Leirstein, CPPB 
City of Troy 
Purchasing Director 
500 W. Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, MI 48084 

Re: ITB-COT 09-36 TEE SHIRTS 

Dear Susan Leirstein: 

In reference to the above, and our meeting with Barbara &Elaine from your Parks & 
Recreation Department on February 16, 2010, we confirm that Impressive Promotional 
Products will hold & honor the prices per the bid submitted on September 1, 2009. 

The following additional issues were discussed: 

1. 	 Artwork charges will be at $25.00 per hour. 
2. 	 Any additional color or location printed beyond the bid would be charged at $0.50 

per piece. 

Should you have any questions or need further information, feel free to call me at (248) 
589-3595. 

Thanking you in the meanwhile. 

mailto:ipproducts@sbcglobal.net


Custom T's 

62 Park Dr. 


Clawson, MI 48017 

(248) 703-5548 


rheydel@wowway.com 

Date: 2/1112010 
To: 	 Troy Parks and Recreation 

3179 Livernois 
Troy, MI 48083-5029 
(248) 524-3484 

To Whom It May Concern, 
This letter is to request that Custom T's be released from the current agreement to 

supply the City of Troy with tee shirts. The reasons for this request are outlined below. 
Many of the assumptions made by Custom T's during the bid process have proven to 

be incorrect. These include, but are not limited to, assumptions related to design 
creation, individual order quantity, and individual order frequency. These incorrect 
assumptions have thus far proven to result in a monetary net loss for Custom T's. 
Additionally, these incorrect assumptions bring questions as to Custom T's ability to 
provide timely delivery of the large quantities of tee shirts expected to be ordered during 
the upcoming spring season. Custom T's has also experienced quality issues indirectly 
related to these incorrect assumptions. Custom T's has made every effort to replace, at 
no cost to the City of Troy, any shirt which does not gain quality approval from the City 
ofTroy staff. This process ofproduct replacement is not a beneficial practice for either 
side. It is Custom T's hope that this letter's timing provides the City of Troy ample time 
to find an alternate source before the spring season. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Robert J. Heydel, Jr. 
Custom Tis 

mailto:rheydel@wowway.com


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  October 5, 2009 
 

- 10 - 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
  
Resolution #2009-10-301-F-2  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 6:00 PM 
Special/Joint City Council Meeting of September 28, 2009 as submitted; the Minutes of the 7:30 
PM Regular City Council Meeting of September 28, 2009 as submitted; and the Minutes of the 
Special City Council Meeting of September 28, 2009 as submitted. 
 
F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: None Submitted 
 
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Asphalt Patching 

Material - Cold  
  
Resolution #2009-10-301-F-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a seasonal contract for asphalt patching 
material – QPR/UPM to the low bidder, Saginaw Asphalt Paving Company of Saginaw, MI, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation electronically received September 15, 2009, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring 
April 30, 2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Library Parking Lot 

Improvement Project  
  
Resolution #2009-10-301-F-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Troy Public 
Library Parking Lot Improvement Project to the low total bidder, McCarthy Construction 
Company of Commerce Twp, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
September 16, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Tee Shirts  
  
Resolution #2009-10-301-F-4c 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  October 5, 2009 
 

- 11 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract for one-year requirements of 
Tee Shirts (various types) with an option to renew for one additional year to the low total bidder, 
Custom T’s of Clawson, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 2, 
2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with a 
contract expiration of September 30, 2010. 
 
F-5 Announcement of Public Hearing for November 9, 2009 – Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) 2010 Application  
 
Resolution #2009-10-301-F-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Public Hearing on November 9, 
2009 at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing 
public comments on the adoption of the Community Development Block Grant 2010 application. 
  
F-6 Approval of MDOT Contract 09-5601 between the City of Troy and Michigan 

Department of Transportation for the Utility Relocation Work for the 
Reconstruction of Rochester Road from Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 

 
Resolution #2009-10-301-F-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Contract No. 09-5601 between 
the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation for the utility relocation work by 
AT&T and Consumers Energy for the reconstruction of Rochester Road from Torpey to Barclay 
at an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $122,001.00, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
F-7 Macy’s Fireworks Permit Application 
 
Resolution #2009-10-301-F-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Zambelli Fireworks, 
Inc. of New Castle, PA, for the display of fireworks at Macy’s at the Oakland Mall on November 6, 
2009.  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 
 



 

 
 
September 9, 2009 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:               Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Tee Shirts  
 
Background   
 On September 2, 2009, bids were opened to furnish one-year requirements of 50/50 and 100% 

Cotton Tee Shirts with an option to renew for one additional year. Tee shirts are used in several 
Parks and Recreation programs as team, participation, uniform or award shirts. 

 182 vendors were notified via the MITN system with seven qualified bids received, as well as two 
(2) statements of no bid.  Four bid responses were not considered for award as they failed to meet 
the bid surety requirements.   

 Custom T’s of Clawson, Michigan is the low total bidder. 
 The contract shall commence on October 1, 2009 and expire September 30, 2010.   

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funding for the purchase of tee shirts is available in the Parks and Recreation and Aquatic Center 

operating accounts. 
 The cost of the shirts is built-in to the registration fee paid for by program participants. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 09-36, one-year requirements of Tee Shirts with an option to renew was competitively bid 

as required by City Charter and Code.  
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying tee shirts 

to the City of Troy.  
 
Recommendation  
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding the tee shirt 

contract to the low total bidder, Custom T’s of Clawson for an estimated total cost of $35,142.25, 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation with a one-year renewable option from October 1, 
2010 to September 30, 2011. 

 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – TeeShirts 09.09.doc 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-36
Opening Date -- 9/2/09 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 9/10/09 sl TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: Custom T's Impressive E.A. Graphics Easy Green Shop
Promotional 

Products, LLC Receipt # D572562
CHECK # 0427713 5300361325 Check on File 9202203251
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint on Front)

3,600 Youth - Small, Med,Large 2.39$                    2.47$                 2.72$                     3.85$                     
2,800 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,Xlarge 2.39$                    2.49$                 2.74$                     3.95$                     

50 Adult -  XXLarge, XXXLarge 3.49$                    3.75$                 3.84$                     5.65$                     
3000 COST PER DIGIT: Single 0.35$                    0.35$                 0.35$                     1.45$                     
730 Double 0.70$                    0.60$                 0.70$                     1.95$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G8000 8000 / 8000B 8000 & 8000B G8000
MANUFACTURED BY:
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 28 29  Available 30       &     28 30

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 17,031.50$          17,539.50$       19,217.00$            30,976.00$           

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short and Long Sleeve  
One (1) Color Imprint on Front 

150 Youth - Small,Med,Large - LONG Sleeve 4.29$                    4.55$                 5.75$                     6.55$                     
100 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-LONG Sleeve 4.29$                    4.55$                 5.75$                     7.00$                     
1100 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-SHORT Sleeve 2.49$                    2.55$                 2.81$                     4.15$                     
125 Adult -  XX Large-SHORT Sleeve 3.89$                    3.75$                 3.91$                     5.65$                     

S/S - 2000
QUOTING ON STYLE: G2400, G2000 L/S 2400/2400B 2400B, G2400, 2000 G2000
MANUFACTURED BY:
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 62 Short   24 Long L/S - 14  S/S - 39 14,         30,     67 64

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 4,297.75$            4,411.25$         5,017.25$              6,953.75$             

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting)
175 Adult - Small, Med,Large,Xlarge 1.79$                    2.25$                 2.15$                     3.30$                     
25 Adult - XXLarge 2.99$                    3.50$                 3.25$                     4.75$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G2000 2000 2000 G2000
MANUFACTURED BY:
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 62 39 67 64

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 388.00$               481.25$            457.50$                 696.25$                

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors Front & 1 Color Back

1200 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 2.89$                    2.80$                 2.97$                     4.65$                     
1000 Adult - Medium, Large, X-Large 2.89$                    2.85$                 3.03$                     4.75$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G8000 8000 / 8000B 8000B / 8000 G8000
MANUFACTURED BY:
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 28 29 28    &    30 30

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 6,358.00$            6,210.00$         6,594.00$              10,330.00$           

Gildan

Gildan

Gildan

Gildan



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-36
Opening Date -- 9/2/09 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 9/10/09 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: Custom T's Impressive E.A. Graphics Easy Green Shop
Promotional 

Products, LLC
EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & 1 Color Back
Short Sleeve Shirts

2000 Adult-Small, Medium, Large, X-Large 2.89$                    2.95$                 3.19$                     4.95$                     
300 Adult - XX-Large 4.29$                    4.00$                 4.35$                     6.40$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G2000 2000 2000 G2000
MANUFACTURED BY:
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 62 39 67 64

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 7,067.00$            7,100.00$         7,685.00$              11,820.00$           

       ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS 35,142.25$          35,742.00$       38,970.75$            60,776.00$           

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N No No No No

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Op 8 AM to 7 PM 8 AM to 5 PM   M-F 8 AM to 5 PM 9 AM to 5 PM
         Phone # 248-703-5548 248-390-8028 586-850-6449 313-570-2477

PAYMENT TERMS Net 30 Net 30 Net 10 Net 30

GUARANTEED DELIVERY

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS Bid may be broken up None Blank Blank
by Item only if item #1
is awarded to Custom
T's at a minimum

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N No No No No

NO BIDS: 
Slick Shirts Screen Printing Yellow Highlight Denotes Low Total Bidder
Libra Industries 

DISQUALIFIED: 
General Motivation Co., Inc. (Personal check submitted as bid surety, instead of cashier's check, certified check or money order) 
Brittan Banners Inc. (Personal check submitted as bid surety, instead of cashier's check, certified check or money order)
Advertising Accents, Inc. (Did not submit bid surety check with bid, as specified) 
ForSports (Did not submit bid surety check with bid, as specified) 

ATTEST:
Diane Fisher
Barbara Rupas Susan Leirstein CPPB
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G\:TeeshirtsBid ITB-COT 09-36

MANUFACTURER'S

BIDDERS WILL BE NOTIFIED 2 WEEKS IN ADVANCE

Gildan



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-36
Opening Date -- 9/2/09 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 9/10/09 jh/sl TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: Full Contact Sports Design Design
Incentives, Inc Incentives, Inc

Alternate
CHECK # 9479201382 0450125 0450125
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts (Min of 36 pieces) (Min of 250 pieces)
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint on Front)

3,600 Youth - Small, Med,Large 4.53$                           6.87$                    4.48$                   
2,800 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,Xlarge 4.38$                           6.96$                    4.56$                   

50 Adult -  XXLarge, XXXLarge 6.10$                           8.85$                    6.32$                   
3000 COST PER DIGIT: Single 1.00$                           1.95$                    1.35$                   
730 Double 1.50$                          2.50$                   1.35$                  

Alternate Style: Jerzees 29/29B
QUOTING ON STYLE: 8000 / 8000B G8000 / 8000B G8000 & 8000B
MANUFACTURED BY:
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 A - 26, 3X - 11, Y - 29 A - 26, 3X - 11, Y -29

Alternate Same price different Style
ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 32,972.00$                 52,337.50$          34,247.50$          

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short and Long Sleeve  Order Qty 24-71 Order Qty  72 +

One (1) Color Imprint on Front 
150 Youth - Small,Med,Large - LONG Sleeve 5.87$                           9.38$                    7.48$                   
100 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-LONG Sleeve 5.96$                           10.74$                  8.23$                   
1100 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-SHORT Sleeve 4.22$                           7.79$                    5.78$                   
125 Adult -  XX Large-SHORT Sleeve 5.78$                           9.34$                    6.97$                   

2400B / 2000B 2000 - Short
QUOTING ON STYLE: 2400 / 2000 G2400 - Lg, 2400B -Y
MANUFACTURED BY:
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 12    &   28 Y-14, A-44, 50/50- 25

Adult Long - 33
ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 6,841.00$                   12,217.50$          9,174.25$           

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting) Order Qty 200
175 Adult - Small, Med,Large,Xlarge 2.75$                           3.27$                    
25 Adult - XXLarge 4.75$                           4.80$                    

QUOTING ON STYLE: 2000 2000
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 44

50/50 - 25 colors
ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 600.00$                      692.25$               

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend Order Qty 144
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors Front & 1 Color Back

1200 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 5.61$                           6.05$                    
1000 Adult - Medium, Large, X-Large 5.36$                           6.13$                    

QUOTING ON STYLE: 8000B / 8000 G8000 / 8000B
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 37       &       29

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 12,092.00$                 13,390.00$          

Gildan

Gildan



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-36
Opening Date -- 9/2/09 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 9/10/09 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: Full Contact Sports Design Design
Incentives, Inc Incentives, Inc

Alternate
EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & 1 Color Back Order Qty 72
Short Sleeve Shirts

2000 Adult-Small, Medium, Large, X-Large 5.58$                           8.16$                    
300 Adult - XX-Large 7.14$                           9.66$                    

QUOTING ON STYLE: 2000 2000
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 44

50/50 - 25 Colors
ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 13,302.00$                  19,218.00$           

       ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 65,807.00$                 97,855.25$          N/A

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N Yes No
M-F

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Op 8 AM to 6 PM 8 AM to 5 PM
         Phone # 586-292-6735 1-800-528-8028

PAYMENT TERMS Net 30 Net 30

GUARANTEED DELIVERY

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS Attached To Bid Attached To Bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N No No No

PROPOSAL:  One-Year Requirements of 50/50 Tee Shirts and 100% Cotton Shirts with an Option To
Renew for One Additional Year

G\:TeeshirtsBid ITB-COT 09-36

BIDDERS WILL BE NOTIFIED 2 WEEKS IN ADVANCE

MANUFACTURER'S



bittnera
Text Box
J-05









 

 
 
August 19, 2010 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
SUBJECT: Application for a New SDM Liquor License. 
 
Background: 
 
 Super City Smoker’s Express, L.L.C. requests a New SDM License Business to be 

located at 2981 East Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County {MLCC Request 
#524881}. 
 

 On February 8, 2010, Mr. Harris appeared at the Liquor Advisory Committee 
Meeting and explained that the purpose of this request is to allow him to sell beer 
and wine from his store, to be consumed off premises.  Mr. Harris purchased the 
business two years ago which currently sells cigars, cigarettes, and lottery tickets.  
The business also has a walk-in humidor.  In response to questions about his 
criminal record, the applicant provided some information about his conviction for 
Misdemeanor Domestic Violence and also his conviction for Misdemeanor Assault or 
Assault and Battery.  Based on the applicant’s representation, the Liquor Advisory 
Committee recommended issuance of the requested SDM License, with the 
understanding that the police reports would be obtained to verify the accuracy of the 
information. 

 
 There were some possible discrepancies between the police reports and the 

information provided to the Liquor Advisory Committee on February 8, 2010.  As a 
result, the Liquor Advisory Committee rescinded its resolution of support on March 8, 
2010 and requested additional investigation. 

 
 At June 14, 2010 Liquor Advisory Committee Meeting, the applicant was invited to 

the meeting to provide additional clarification or explanation of the incidents that led 
to his misdemeanor assault convictions. 

 
 Mr. Harris admitted to the Liquor Advisory Committee that he pled guilty to Count 1 – 

Misdemeanor Domestic Violence and to Count 4 – Misdemeanor Assault or Assault 
and Battery.  He stated that although he wasn’t guilty, he pled guilty to avoid 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-06



possible ramifications to his pension.  He denied allegations reported in the 
Eastpointe Police Reports and follow-up investigation.  

 
 The Committee unanimously recommended Denial of the request at the June 14, 

2010 meeting. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Mr. Harris’ criminal convictions are factors that must be considered under Troy City 

Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control Commission Rules. 
 

o Troy City Ordinance, Chapter 101, Section 7: City Council shall consider 
the following factors in determining whether to approve a new or 
transferred liquor license or related permit: e. Past convictions of the 
applicant for any of the following: (iii) a crime involving any of the 
following: D) Violence. 
 

o Rule R 436.1105 Rule 5 (2) of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
states: The commission shall consider all of the following factors in 
determining whether an applicant may be issued a license or permit: (e) 
The applicant’s moral character and (g) Past convictions of the applicant 
for any of the following: (iii) a crime involving any of the following: (d) 
Violence. 
 

 The Troy City Council makes recommendations to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission when SDM Liquor Licenses are requested.  Under the State Liquor 
Laws, Council can identify concerns about the issuance of a license to the applicant, 
and this information would then be forwarded on to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission for its consideration.  No matter what action the Troy City Council 
takes, the Michigan Liquor Control Commission must also consider the applicant’s 
criminal convictions in its determination. 

 
 
 Approved as to Form and Legality:          

 
 __________________________       _______________ 

      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney Date 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a 

healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 
interconnected world.” 

 
JF/ Super City Smoker’s Express. 

 























GGM/TC      i:\1 command administration\command staff\mayer\council agenda item\cc shir tikvah parking waiver sept 2010-1.doc 

 

 
August 17, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police   
   William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions  
 
Background: 
 
The Congregation Shir Tikvah is requesting that the parking restrictions on the East side of Northfield 
Parkway from the entrance of Boulan Park to the entrance of the synagogue be waived on the 
following dates and times: 

 
 Wednesday, September 8, 2010, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
 Thursday, September 9, 2010, 9:00 am – 5:00 pm 
 Friday, September 17, 2010, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
 Saturday, September 18, 2010, 9:00 am – 9:00 pm 

 
Congregation Shir Tikvah is conducting events related to the observance of the High Holidays on 
these dates and times; although they have arranged for additional parking at Stonehaven Church on 
Wattles Road, they fear they will not have sufficient parking space for all attendees. 
 
The waiving of the restrictions would allow attendees to park on the dirt shoulder of Northfield 
Parkway. 
 
Congregation Shir Tikvah makes such requests and is granted a variance regularly; no problems 
have ever been reported.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
City Ordinance prohibits parking on Northfield Parkway; therefore, City Council action is required to 
grant a variance. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
Troy enhances the livability and safety of the community.   
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-07



 

 
 
August 23, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearings (IDD & IFEC) for Metro Technologies, 

Ltd, 1462 E. Big Beaver  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Metro Technologies, Ltd, has requested the creation of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 

1462 E. Big Beaver in concert with their application for an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC) at the same location.  
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The financial considerations cannot be determined at this time. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The legal considerations cannot be determined at this time. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Policy considerations will occur at the Public Hearings. 
 
Options: 
 
 The public hearings will be held on September 13, 2010 to conform to State law.  
 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T\Metro Tech\AnnouncePH 08.23.10 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AANNNNOOUUNNCCEEMMEENNTT  
OOFF  PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  

bittnera
Text Box
K-01a



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 13, 2010  at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following 

location: 

 

88-20-26-126-028   1462 E Big Beaver, Troy, MI.  48084-1950 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 Part of the Northwest 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 13, 2010 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from Metro Technologies, Ltd., for the granting of an Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-126-028   1462 E Big Beaver, Troy,  MI.  48084-1950 

T2N, R11E, Section 26  Part of the Northwest 1/4 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
  

OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
METRO TECHNOLOGIES LTD 
Attn: CRAIG BLUST 
1462 E BIG BEAVER 
TROY MI 48083-1950 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 

 
 
August 23, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearings (IDD & IFEC) for Sulzer Metco, Inc., 

1972 Meijer  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Sulzer Metco, Inc., has requested the creation of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 1972 

Meijer in concert with their application for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at 
the same location.  
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The financial considerations cannot be determined at this time. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The legal considerations cannot be determined at this time. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Policy considerations will occur at the Public Hearings. 
 
Options: 
 
 The public hearings will be held on September 13, 2010 to conform to State law.  
 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T\Sulzer Metco\AnnouncePH 08.23.10 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AANNNNOOUUNNCCEEMMEENNTT  
OOFF  PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  

bittnera
Text Box
K-01b



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 13, 2010  at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following 

location: 

 

88-20-26-126-028   1462 E Big Beaver, Troy, MI.  48084-1950 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 Part of the Northwest 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 13, 2010 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from Metro Technologies, Ltd., for the granting of an Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-126-028   1462 E Big Beaver, Troy,  MI.  48084-1950 

T2N, R11E, Section 26  Part of the Northwest 1/4 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
  

OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
METRO TECHNOLOGIES LTD 
Attn: CRAIG BLUST 
1462 E BIG BEAVER 
TROY MI 48083-1950 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



1 

 

 
 
August 17, 2010                             
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to Schedule a Study Session with Barry Demp of Barry Demp Coaching 
 
 
City Council asked me if I could find a coach/facilitator to assist council with team building; identifying 
a preferred future; and delineation of goals and objectives.  In addition, the person performing this 
function would do so in one session, and would not charge for his or her services. 
 
I can’t find anyone that fits the bill.  That said, Mr. Barry Demp of Barry Demp Coaching has agreed, 
at no charge, to meet with council for about an hour and a half for reason of determining with 
specificity what the governing body wants to achieve.  And depending on your desired outcome, we 
could be meeting for several months.  After the first session a fee schedule would need to be agreed 
upon. 
 
Should you wish to engage in this endeavor, a meeting could be scheduled with Mr. Demp for any of 
the following Mondays in October: 
   
  Monday, October 4, 2010 
  Monday, October 11, 2010 
  Monday, October 18, 2010 
 
 
It is also suggested that we meet at 6:00 p.m. in advance of our council meeting.   
 
Please feel free to call should you have any questions.   
 
 
 
c:    Barry Demp, Barry Demp Coaching 
 John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 
 
 
JS/bt\AGENDA\2010\08.23.10 – Request to Schedule a Study Session with Mr. Barry Demp of Barry Demp Coaching 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
K-02a



 

 
Barry Demp 

Biographical Sketch 
 
 
 INTRODUCTION   
 
Barry Demp is a highly successful business and executive coach based in Troy, Michigan.  As a coach of 
over 1000 individuals during the past 16 years, Barry has earned the distinction of Master Certified Coach 
(MCC) from the International Coach Federation (ICF).  He works with executives, business owners, and 
high-potential professionals to help them significantly increase their performance, productivity, profitability, 
and life balance. 
 
 EXPERTISE   
 
Barry’s workshops, seminars, speaking engagements, and customized coaching programs foster a 
comprehensive and holistic approach to individual and organizational development through assuring 
practical applications on both professional and personal levels. 
 
His customized coaching programs range from small entrepreneurial ventures to a variety of projects with 
mid-sized and large organizations.  
 
 SPECIALIZED SKILLS   
 
 Engaging public speaking 
 Personal Excellence Training   
 Leadership and Management Dev. 

 Efficient planning and execution 
 Business Development and Networking  
 Culture change facilitator 

 
INVOLVEMENT   
 
Barry Demp is an active member of the Professional Coaches Association of Michigan (PCAM) and 
spends much of his time helping individuals and organizations master the leadership, management, 
communication, and coaching skills needed in today’s competitive and rapidly changing world.  He 
conducts workshops and speaks frequently to groups in Michigan on coaching, leadership, management, 
mastering successful relationships, sales effectiveness, and life-balance issues.   
 
 CONTACT INFORMATION   
 

To contact Barry Demp Coaching for a complimentary discovery session to develop a customized program 
for you and/or your organization, please contact Barry Demp at 248-740-3231. 
 

200 East Big Beaver Road, Suite 136, Troy, MI 48083 
P. 248-740-3231 Fax:  248-740-3232 

www.dempcoaching.com 



 
 
Date July 8, 2010 

 
TO: Mayor Schilling and City Council 

 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Adoption of Troy City Council Code of Ethics 
  
 
The attached document reflects the City Council recommended Code of Ethic document as 
proposed at the Council Study Session held on Monday, August 16, 2010. City Council may 
approve the proposed Code of Ethics as submitted or propose further amendments. 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  

bittnera
Text Box
K-02b



Adoption of Troy City Council Code of Ethics 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the Troy City Council Code of Ethics 
as presented and directs City Administration to annually circulate a copy of the Council Code 
of Ethics to each City Council member as an attachment/addendum to the Full Disclosure 
form and to place the document before the City Council for review and ratification annually at 
the time City Council review their Rules of Procedure.. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

 



 
Troy City Council 

Code of Ethics 
 
 
The Troy City Council shall: 
 

 Respect the confidentiality of privileged information; 
 

 Recognize that as an individual council member I have no authority to speak or 
act for council; 

 
 Work with other council members to establish effective policies; 

 
 Delegate authority for the running of the city to the manager and staff; 

 
 Encourage the free expression of opinion by all council members; 

 
 Seek systematic communications between council, staff, and all elements of the 

community; 
 

 Render all decisions based on the available facts and independent judgment 
rather than succumbing to the influence of individuals or special interest groups; 

 
 Make every effort to attend all meetings; 

 
 Become informed concerning the issues to be considered at each meeting;  

 
 Avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance thereof; 

 
 Refrain from using this position to benefit myself, family members or business 

associates. 
 
 
 
 



 
Troy City Council 

Code of Ethics 
 
As a member of Troy City Council, I will: 
 

 Respect the confidentiality of privileged information; 
 

 Recognize that as an individual council member I have no authority to speak or 
act for council; 

 
 Work with other council members to establish effective policies; 

 
 Delegate authority for the running of the city to the manager and staff; 

 
 Encourage the free expression of opinion by all council members; 

 
 Seek systematic communications between council, staff, and all elements of the 

community; 
 

 Render all decisions based on the available facts and independent judgment 
rather than succumbing to the influence of individuals or special interest groups; 

 
 Make every effort to attend all meetings; 

 
 Become informed concerning the issues to be considered at each meeting;  

 
 Avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance thereof; 

 
 Refrain from using this position to benefit myself, family members or business 

associates. 
 
 
 

Signed this  day of  By:
    Council Member
 



bittnera
Text Box
N-01a

















LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             AUGUST 9, 2010  

 Page 1 of 4 

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, August 
9, 2010 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Committee member Timothy P. Payne called the meeting to order 
at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:   Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Patrick C. Hall 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Laurent Harden, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert & Hall 
 
Resolution #LC2010-08-019  
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Hall at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of August 9, 2010 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 

 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of June 14, 2010 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2010-08-020 
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the June 14, 2010 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 
 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01b



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             AUGUST 9, 2010  

 Page 2 of 4 

Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 

 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. San Marino Club, Inc. requests a new SDM License to be held in 

conjunction with 2008 Class C Licensed Business with Sunday Sales, 
Dance-Entertainment Permit, Outdoor Service (1 Area), 7 Bars, located at 
1685-1695 East Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County  {MLCC Req. 
#487689}.  The Tre Monti Restaurant, located behind the San Marino Club, 
would like to sell their patrons additional bottles of wine they may enjoy 
while dining. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Lou Zanotti, chairman of 
the committee to oversee restaurant operations, and Zharko Palushaj, restaurant 
general manager. 
 
Mr. Zanotti and Mr. Palushaj explained to the Committee that the restaurant would 
like to build wine lockers for use by their regular customers.  The customers would 
be able to purchase one or more bottles of wine, store the wine in the lockers, and 
enjoy them whenever they dined.  The SDM license would also allow customers to 
purchase bottles of wine to take with them when they leave the restaurant. 
 
Officer Feld stated that the Police Department has no objections to this request. 
 
Resolution #LC2010-08-021 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
San Marino Club, Inc. for a new SDM License to be held in conjunction with 2008 
Class C Licensed Business with Sunday Sales, Dance-Entertainment Permit, 
Outdoor Service (1 Area), 7 Bars, located at 1685-1695 East Big Beaver, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County be APPROVED. 
 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             AUGUST 9, 2010  

 Page 3 of 4 

Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following informational items: 
 
Picano Restaurant, Inc.  
This is a similar request to our Agenda item for this meeting.   
 
Target Corporation  
The wording of this request was clarified in that the SDM license is not in 
conjunction with their on-premise seating.   The wording is taken directly from the 
State of Michigan paperwork.   
 
RCSH Operations, LLC  
This request is to add additional indoor seating to the restaurant. 
 
Macy’s 
There will be a corporate name change. 
 
Big Beaver Tavern 
This is a request for outdoor seating. 
 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC  
This is a request for outdoor seating. 
 
Numan Troy, Inc.  
This request will most likely be removed from our Informational Item list. 
 
Space Station of Troy, Inc. 
This request may be removed from our Informational Item list. 
 
 

 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that the Police Department’s Directed Patrol 
Unit recently performed compliance checks of all licensed establishments within 
the City.  Four sale-to-minor violations occurred:  (1) Aldi at 2967 East Big Beaver, 
(2) CVS at 4963 John R, (3) Lebanese Grill at 1600 Rochester Road, and (4) Red 
Robin at 5460 Corporate Drive.   
 
 
Officer Feld also informed the Committee that Jeff Oberski, a new analyst/planner 
in the Police Department, has assumed some of the licensing duties.   
 
 

 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             AUGUST 9, 2010  

 Page 4 of 4 

The meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Timothy P. Payne, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



bittnera
Text Box
N-03a



bittnera
Text Box
N-03b



bittnera
Text Box
N-04a





 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
August 18, 2010 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
  Sam Lamerato, Superintend of Fleet Maintenance 
  Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Steve Pallotta, Building Operations Director 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant  
 Rapid Energy Assessment Program and Sustainability Savings 
 

 
The U.S. Department of Energy awarded the City of Troy an Energy Efficiency and Conservation 
Block Grant (EECBG) in the amount of $921,100.  The City executed the agreement in September of 
2009.  As part of the process the City was required to prepare a funding strategy that was included in 
the funding application.  Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) assisted the City in preparation 
and submittal of the required application documents, which is an eligible expenditure.  In addition 
CWA assisted the City in preparing a Rapid Energy Assessment Program (REAP), which is also an 
eligible expenditure.  The REAP is completed and the City is implementing the EECBG strategy.    
 

At the Study meeting Mark Miller will discuss the EECBG application and budget justification.  This 
justification includes a description on how the dollars are going to be spent.  In addition Mr. Miller will 
discuss the federal reporting requirements.  Zak Branigan from CWA will discuss the REAP and how 
it will be useful for the City in making decisions related to environmental sustainability.   
 

It is our estimate that when we replace the boiler in the original City Hall building there will be a 30% 
annual natural gas savings, while the LED parking lot lighting improvements will net a $14,000 annual 
savings.  Steve Pallotta will be at the meeting to answer questions regarding the proposed building 
improvements and the energy audits for eleven City owned buildings.  Regarding vehicles, we 
anticipate using the funding to pay for alternative energy or hybrid vehicle upgrades when purchasing 
replacement vehicles for the City fleet.  At this point we only have experience with hybrid vehicles and 
they save approximately $1,000 per year for each car in fuel costs.  We have not used electric 
vehicles, but are researching this issue.  Sam Lamerato and Tim Richnak will be available to answer 
questions regarding energy savings related to fleet management.   
 
All of the activities or capital projects are completely funded by the EECBG Program which is part of 
the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (Recovery Act) of 2009 and represents a Presidential 
priority to deploy the cheapest, cleanest, and most reliable energy technologies across the country.  It  

 

bittnera
Text Box
O-01



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 

is intended to assist U.S. cities, counties, states, territories, and Indian tribes to develop, promote, 
implement and manage energy efficiency and conservation projects and programs designed to:  

• Reduce fossil fuel emissions;  
• Reduce the total energy use of the local communities;  
• Improve energy efficiency in the transportation, building, and other appropriate sectors; and  
• Create and retain jobs.  

The EECBG Program utilizes formula and competitive grants to empower local communities to make 
strategic investments to meet the nation's long-term goals for energy independence and leadership 
on climate change.  

 
 

Attachments 
2 CWA memos  
REAP 
 
MM/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\08.23.10 – Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Rapid Energy Assessment Program and Sustainability Savings 



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: City Council 
 
FROM: Richard K. Carlisle 

DATE: August 19, 2010 
 
RE: Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program  
 
 
The City of Troy was required to develop a preliminary budget for the Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Block Grant dollars it was receiving through the program.  The following budget 
justification was a required portion of the grant application.  The program allows for a high 
degree of variation from the original draft budget to accommodate project changes, fluctuating 
costs, or new opportunities. The following five projects were included in the budget following 
the results of the City of Troy Rapid Energy Assessment Process and consultation with the City 
staff. 
 
 
1) Wind Energy Project.  The City has researched available wind energy conversion systems 

that would be appropriate for installation at the City’s municipal campus.  The system chosen 
met the City’s goals of demonstrating alternative energy sources in a developed setting.  The 
installed cost for each wind energy conversion system was quoted at a maximum of $12,000 
per unit.  This price includes the wind spire, installation at the proposed site, and the 
electrical hook up.  Because the actual installation cost is unknown at this time, we are 
estimating that each wind spire will cost $5,400 (45%), and the installation will cost $6,600 
(55%).  Therefore, two wind spires will comprise the following totals of the object class 
categories: 

 
 Supplies:    $10,800 
 Contractual: $13,200 
    $24,000 
 
2) LED Lighting Projects.  The City has been working with a lighting consultant to determine 

the potential for retrofitting internal and external lights at five municipal locations – the city 
hall, police department, library, court house and fire training warehouse.  Existing fixtures 
were evaluated, and LED alternative fixtures proposed.  The proposed lighting program 
would save the City approximately $15,000 annually in reduced electricity costs, and 
additional dollars due to significantly reduced maintenance requirements. A schedule of new 



City of Troy EECBG 
August 19, 2010 

 2 

light fixtures was prepared that identifies 502 fixtures throughout the City’s campus that 
could be converted to LED.  The costs per building are: 

 
 City Hall:        226 fixtures at a cost of $83,689 
 Police Department:    68 fixtures at a cost of $20,660 
 Library:      117 fixtures at a cost of $24,295 
 Court House Exterior:    9 fixtures at a cost of $2,628 
 Fire Training Warehouse:    20 fixtures at a cost of $18,920 
 City Campus Parking & Roadway Lighting: 62 fixtures at a cost of $68,492 
 
 Installation of the fixtures was estimated at $150 per fixture.  The proposed budget is as 

follows:   
 
 Supplies:  $218,684 
 Contractual:   $75,300 
    $293,984 
 
3) Energy Audits for High-Priority Buildings.  Energy audits for eleven buildings have been 

estimated at $0.14 per square foot, with a $1,000 minimum cost.  The City is currently 
reviewing proposals from a variety of bidding firms for this project.  The buildings chosen 
for audits (the City’s worst energy performers) equal approximately 303,379 s.f.  Therefore, 
the cost to audit these buildings is as follows: 

 
 Contractual: $42,473 
    $42,473 
 
4) High Efficiency Vehicles.  This budget item makes up the increment between purchasing a 

conventional vehicle and an alternative energy or hybrid vehicle.  The estimated increment is 
approximately $6,000 per vehicle, and the City is proposing to replace 30 vehicles over the 
grant period.  Therefore, the cost to upgrade to hybrid vehicles is as follows: 

 
 Equipment: $180,000 
    $180,000 
 
5) Energy Improvements for High Priority City Buildings.  The results of the energy audits 

will better determine the cost of making the energy efficient building renovations.  However, 
one project that has been identified is replacing the boiler at City Hall.  The boiler was 
originally installed in 1965 and has exceeded its useful life.  The City intends to install two 
smaller, more efficient, LEED conscious boilers that will use significantly less energy than 
the existing system.  The proposed boilers (Lochinvar Power Fin boilers) are rated at 87% 
efficiency.  This budget justification includes the costs of equipment and supplies, as well as 
labor for removal of existing units and infrastructure and installation of the updated 
equipment. 

  
1. New boilers- $34,000.00 
2. Pumps and piping - $8500.00 



City of Troy EECBG 
August 19, 2010 

 3 

3. Insulation - $2500.00 
4. Testing and Balancing - $4500.00 
5. Gas piping and VFD power venting - $7600.00 
6. Concrete - $2000.00 

  
Equipment: $34,000 

 Supplies:    $25,100 
 Contractual: $70,800 
    $129,900 
 

Specific equipment, supplies, and contractual amounts are not yet available for the following 
retrofit preliminary budgets.  These budgets were roughly estimated by distributing the 
remaining money in the EECBG grant on a square foot basis.  The City of Troy is allowed to 
move money from one facility to another or from one project to another, without prior 
approval of the Department of Energy, and we expect these allotments to change upon 
receipt of the results from the Energy Audit project. 
 
Preliminary Retrofit Budgets for included buildings: 
 
• City Hall  

(other than boiler) (130,030 sq. ft., 42.86%) $101,040.82 
• DPW Garage (61,500 sq. ft., 20.27%)      $47,789.05 
• Fire Station 1 (6,616 sq. ft., 2.18%)     $5,141.01 
• Fire Station 2 (5,072 sq. ft., 1.67%)     $3,941.24 
• Fire Station 3 (8,700 sq. ft., 2.87%)     $6,760.40 
• Fire Station 4 (4,911 sq. ft., 1.62%)     $3,816.13 
• Fire Station 5 (6,000 sq. ft., 1.98%)     $4,662.35 
• Fire Station 6 (6,600 sq. ft., 2.18%)    $5,128.58 
• Nature Center (8,184 sq. ft., 2.70%)     $6,359.44 
• Library (44,630 sq. ft., 14.71%)          $34,680.09 
• Police/Fire Training (21,136 sq. ft., 6.97%) $16,423.89 

 
Total retrofits  
(all buildings, not including City Hall Boilers): $235,743.00 
 
Project Total: 
 
City Hall Boiler project            $129,900.00 
Retrofits      $235,743.00 
 
Total Retrofit Budget all projects:  $365,643.00 

 
 
 



City of Troy EECBG 
August 19, 2010 

 4 

CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOC., INC. 

 
 
 



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: City Council 
 
FROM: Richard K. Carlisle 

DATE: August 18, 2010 
 
RE: Rapid Energy Assessment Program (REAP) 
 
 
The City of Troy engaged Carlisle Wortman Associates (CWA) to conduct our proprietary 
process, the Rapid Energy Assessment Process (REAP) in 2009.  This process was designed by 
our firm to help communities analyze many different areas of energy use and compare them in 
order to better understand their energy bottom line.  Also, the REAP process allows the City to 
quickly identify those areas where it can save the most energy for the least amount of 
investment, thereby yielding the greatest possible results.  Using a unique scoring calculus and a 
large bracket-style program, the REAP narrows the scope of the City’s energy policy by 
eliminating areas of little concern in the City’s unique position, while supporting those areas 
where the City could make the best possible impact. 
 
The REAP process was conducted as part of, and funded by, the City’s Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Block Grant (EECBG).  The EECBG required that the City develop an Energy 
Strategy.  The Strategy was required to identify projects and anticipated savings within the 
bounds of the EECBG grant rules, and must also quantify economic development benefits, such 
as jobs created, that are made possible by grant dollars.  While the City of Troy was well 
positioned to initiate this grant process, and the City’s facilities management team had already 
taken great strides in advancing energy efficiency for existing buildings, the REAP took the 
analysis a few steps further.  By expanding the scope of the program beyond facilities, the REAP 
was able to find other unique opportunities for energy and cash savings for the City, and also 
identify more clearly where the City was struggling to keep the lights on. 
 
The REAP looked at four primary areas of municipal energy use: facilities, transportation, 
renewable energy opportunities, and energy policy. Each of these four areas was considered in 
two different ways; internally (those elements which affect the City’s own bottom line), and 
externally (how is the issue treated within the community as a whole).   
 
The first area of study, facilities, is self explanatory.  With the work already done by the City’s 
staff, a great deal of data was available to the project team.  The facilities analysis resulted in a 
recommendation to hire a team of energy auditors with grant funding to make recommendations 



 2 

on those buildings responsible for more than one percent of the City’s overall energy budget.  
The grant would then fund projects designed to carry out those recommendations, thereby 
making the City’s largest energy consuming facilities more efficient, saving the City money.  
The second area, transportation, looked at support for fuel efficient vehicles for City functions, 
as well as transportation policy to encourage mass transit and non-motorized transit.  It looked at 
infrastructure development for non-motorized pathways and the City’s policies on 
telecommuting, carpooling, etc.  Renewable energy opportunities identified possible installations 
for various renewable energy facilities and considered them whether they would be modest in 
scale and owned by the City to offset some energy use at municipal buildings, or more broad in 
scope and be tied to utilities.  It looked at private and public installations at a large scale, small 
scale, and a variety of different technologies. The final area, policy, makes recommendations on 
employee behavior, work flow and operations, and the City’s long term planning policies. 
 
The results of the REAP analysis are contained in the final REAP report you have been provided 
with.  This report recommends a variety of projects, many of which are accomplished by the 
grant program we will present you tonight.  The remaining projects can be integrated over time 
as the City moves forward with zoning, planning, and capital improvements decisions to make 
the City of Troy an energy leader. 
 
 
CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOC., INC. 

 
 
 



R a p i d  E n e r g y  A s s e s s m e n t  P r o c e s s  R e p o r t
C a r l i s l e / W o r t m a n  2 0 1 0

C i t y  o f  T r o y
D R A F T  5 . 6 . 1 0





city of troy rapid energy assessment process
A c k n o w l e d g m e n t s

Mayor
Louise E. Schilling

City Council
Martin Howrylak, Mayor Pro-Tem
Robin E. Beltramini
Dane Slater
Maureen McGinnis
Wade Fleming
Mary Kerwin

City Manager
John Szerlag

Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic
Development Services
Mark Miller, AICP, PCP

Assistant City Manager/Financial
Administration
John Lamerato

City Staff
Brent Savidant, AICP, PCP, Acting Planing Director
Steve Pallotta, Director of Building Operations

Planning Consultant
Carlisle/Wortman Associates
Ann Arbor and Clarkston, Michigan

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...





_1

city of troy rapid energy assessment process
Contents

  

I n t r o d u c t i o n  P a g e  21. 

E l e m e n t s  o f  R E A P  P a g e  32. 

E E C B G  P r o g r a m  S u m m a r y  P a g e  53. 

T h e  I m p o r t a n c e  o f  t h e  E n e r g y / L a n d  U s e  C o n n e c t i o n  P a g e  64. 

R E A P  P r o c e s s  F l o w c h a r t  P a g e  75. 

R E A P  M e a s u r e  S c o r i n g  S u m m a r y  P a g e  86. 

H i g h  P r i o r i t y  M e a s u r e s  P a g e  1 27. 

L o w  P r i o r i t y  M e a s u r e s   P a g e  1 48. 

M e a s u r e s  N o t  R e c o m m e n d e d  P a g e  1 69. 

H o w  t o  R e a d  t h e  R E A P  M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s  P a g e  1 810. 

R E A P  M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s  -  I n t e r n a l  P a g e  2 111. 

R E A P  M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t  -  E x t e r n a l  P a g e  6 912. 

E n e r g y  E f f i c i e n c y  a n d  C o n s e r v a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  P a g e  8 913. 



_2

I n t r o d u c t i o n
Energy has become a critical consideration for 
Michigan communities.  As revenues decline, 
awareness of energy issues has grown.  As 
communities compete for the best businesses and 
dollars, the most successful communities have 
made energy a primary component of their policy 
decisions.  In order to support this shift, the City of 
Troy has implemented the Rapid Energy Assessment 
Process© (R.E.A.P.).  The R.E.A.P will allow Troy to 
identify the most immediate energy-related areas 
in which the City can improve, and obtain the best 
benefit from any available grant funding.  The 
R.E.A.P. will also help Troy effectively develop a 
conservation strategy and 
begin quantifying energy 
use to make the City more 
energy efficient over time. 
The R.E.A.P. will help by 
providing a baseline against 
which energy usage and 
savings can be compared. 
In many cases, the measures 
identified by the R.E.A.P. 
process may provide 
savings to the City of Troy 
without any special funding 
whatsoever.



_3

city of troy rapid energy assessment process
E l e m e n t s  o f  R E A P
The Rapid Energy Assessment Process includes the following assessment 
programs in four categories, each listed with summarized areas in which 
the City will be assessed:

Renewable energy1. 

Identification of alternative energy obstacles in local regulations• 
Identification of the potential for wind, solar, and other • 
alternative energy sources
Analysis of existing use of energy and the source of that energy • 
for municipalities

Policy2. 

Analysis of existing planning, zoning, and other regulations for • 
energy issues
Review of internal operations• 
Review of local codes for obstacles to green building and site • 
development

Building conservation3. 

Analyze existing municipal buildings for energy issues• 
Review of existing building stock and infrastructure in a general • 
survey to identify retrofit potential

Transportation4. 

Review local transportation options and municipal fleets for • 
energy efficiency opportunities
Analyze access to transit and non-motorized options• 



_4

This document will contain the results and recommendations from the 
assessment process.  The document will provide a list of recommended 
projects that require various levels of time and resources.  Recommended 
projects will be prioritized according to several factors:

Funding availability: What activities are eligible for existing grant 1. 
funding, or can be paid for with other sources of revenue?

Feasibility and data needs: How close is Troy to being able to complete 2. 
this project? Is the necessary information available?  Can energy use be 
quantified for this measure?

Required personnel: Can the project start and be completed with 3. 
available personnel, can the project create jobs, or can contractors do the 
work?

Potential benefit: What is the benefit of this project, and does it justify 4. 
the expense or effort when reviewed against other similar projects?

Ultimately, this document will distill the many options available into a smaller, 
more immediate collection of projects that can and should be pursued.  
The document will conclude with  a summary of the Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Strategy, whose projects were largely based on the results of 
this analysis.

The R.E.A.P. Report will serve as Troy’s long-term plan for sustainable 
development and energy efficiency to ensure that Troy residents are able 
to realize the significant quality of life benefits that are on offer.  The City 
of Troy feels it has a new opportunity for sustainable practices that enhance 
the community and allow it to compete in the national marketplace for 21st 
century jobs and workers.  The connection between a sustainable economy 
and sustainable building and living practices has never been more urgent or 
apparent.



_5

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

In January 2007, the United States Congress passed the Federal Energy 
Independence and Security Act. That act most notably increased the 
Corporate Average Fuel Economy for automobile manufacturers by 2020. 
However, the bill also authorized a program called the Energy Efficiency 
and Conservation Block Grants (EECBG). These block grants were intended 
to provide money for a wide range of local government activities that:

• Reduce fossil fuel emissions 
• Decrease total energy consumption 
• Improve energy efficiency in transportation, building, and other sectors 
• Spur economic growth 
• Create and/or retain jobs

Although many groups had pushed for full appropriation of the EECBG 
program, it never passed the Senate. The program, however, found new 
life in 2009 as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. In the 
bill, $2.8 billion was slated for EECBG disbursements to state and local 
governments, and another $400 million for competitive grants through the 
Department of Energy.

EECBG grants were intended to provide money for projects such as 
developing energy conservation strategies, programs to conserve energy 
used in transportation, revising zoning requirements to promote energy 
efficiency, and developing non-motorized infrastructure and plans.  The 
receipt of this money obligated the community to prepare an Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Strategy (EECS) within 120 days from the 
time of the award, a short time frame.  The R.E.A.P. allows communities to 
quickly assess energy efficiency potential and largely meet the submittal 
requirements for the EECS. 

E E C B G  a n d  t h e  E n e r g y  E f f i c i e n c y
a n d  C o n s e r v a t i o n  S t r a t e g y  S u m m a r y



_6

T h e  I m p o r t a n c e  o f  t h e  E n e r g y  a n d 
L a n d  U s e  C o n n e c t i o n

Local units of government have largely relied on state and federal programs 
to tackle the energy issues of today.  However, as the EECBG demonstrates, 
it is the local units of government that the federal and state governments are 
relying on to actually execute energy efficiency and conservation programs.   

Long-term energy efficiency and conservation must be clearly and directly tied 
to land use planning and community development.  Compact, smart-growth, 
walkable communities are intrinsically energy efficient.  The use of transit and 
non-motorized transportation are tremendous energy savers.  Green building, 
low-impact development, transit-oriented development, and mixed-use projects 
all contribute to community-wide energy savings, and all are currently visible 
topics in community planning.

This clear connection reveals that energy planning and community planning 
should go hand-in-hand, and that with an affordable, easily implemented 
tool like the Rapid Energy Assessment Process, we have an opportunity to 
firmly implant energy planning into the everyday role of local government.



_7

city of troy rapid energy assessment process
R E A P  P r o c e s s  F l o w c h a r t

1:
Communities take 
inventory of efficiency 
of their facilities/
community in preparation 
of effectively using money 
and qualifying for grants.

2:
Initial data is analyzed by 
the R.E.A.P. project team. 3:

R.E.A.P. project team 
develops an in depth 
critique of 63 areas of 
potential energy savings.

4:
Communities develop  
and implement an Energy      
Conservation Strategy.5:

Reduction in costs, CO2, 
air pollution.6:

The City is now well 
positioned for energy 
funding.



_8

E n e r g y  M e a s u r e s  _internal measures

renewable energy
Solar energy generation on government facilities: photovalic
Solar energy generation on government facilities: thermal
Wind energy generation on government facilities: on site generation

I.RE.1.a
I.RE.1.b
I.RE.2.a
I.RE.2.b Wind energy generation on government facilities: utility scale generation
I.RE.3 Landfill gas collection
I.RE.4 Hydroelectric generation
I.RE.5 Geothermal heating and cooling for government facilities

policy
Create an energy program manager position
Create an energy efficiency improvement revolving loan fund
Operations: adopt a municipal operations energy practices policy

I.P.1
I.P.2
I.P.3.a
I.P.3.b Operations: conduct regular departmental energy reports and training
I.P.4.a Conduct comprehensive municipal operation energy tracking
I.P.4.b Adopt comprehensive quantitative operation energy reduction targets
I.P.5 Purchase renewable energy credits
I.P.6 Participate in utility provider renewable energy programs
I.P.7 Obtain membership with national organizations to reduce energy use
I.P.8 Consider alternative scheduling (such as a 4 day work week)
I.P.9 Implement technologies for remote work and meeting capabilities
I.P.10 Implement hoteling concept in municipal facilities for multi-use capability
I.P.11 Adopt LEED requirement policy for new municipal buildings

building conservation
Reduce heat island effect of  municipal facilities
Reduce light pollution for municipal facilities
Install native and water efficient landscaping at municipal facilities

I.BC.1
I.BC.2
I.BC.3
I.BC.4 Reduce wastewater at municipal facilities (reduce, reuse, recycle)
I.BC.5 Reduce potable water use at municipal facilities
I.BC.6 Obtain energy audits for municipal facilities
I.BC.7 Install automatic lighting controls
I.BC.8 Install building insulation
I.BC.9 Incorporate passive solar heating
I.BC.10 Install new natural daylighting elements (solar tubes, skylights, etc.)
I.BC.11 Install energy efficient light fixtures
I.BC.12 Install natural ventilation systems
I.BC.13 Purchase energy efficient appliances
I.BC.14 Increase efficiency of  heating and cooling systems
I.BC.15 Adopt a policy to purchase local materials
I.BC.16a Adopt a policy to use 100% recycled paper
I.BC.16a Adopt a policy to use environmentally friendly office supplies

transportation
Encourage and incentivise alternative transportation commuting (bicycle, walking, transit, etc.)
Encourage and incentivise carpooling
Replace police vehicles with more fuel efficient units

I.T.1
I.T.2
I.T.3
I.T.4 Purchase diesel powered vehicles and equipment (fuel with biodiesel)
I.T.5 Provide hybrid or alternative fuel vehicles for municipal use
I.T.6 Adopt average fuel economy standard
I.T.7 Provide priority parking for hybrid or alternative fuel vehicles
I.T.8 Provide secure, sheltered bicycle storage and showers for employees

ra
pi

d 
en

er
gy

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s

   Conduct life-cycle analyses when purchasing new vehicles

17
11

22
25
22
24
24
25
25
25
16
23
25
17
25
25
20
22
22

16
23
24
19
25
23
25
22
22

20
20
23
11
18
0
19

20
16
25
25
25
24
10
13
1522
15



_9

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

_9

feasibility
data/

analysis 
needs

funding 
availability

required 
personnel

potential 
benefit

citty oof troy rapidd enerrgyy asss
ent proceesss

3 5 5 4 3
3 5 5 4 3
5 5 5 5 3
1 1 3 3 3
3 2 5 3 5
0 0 0 0 0
4 3 4 4 4

3 5 3 5 4
2 5 3 3 3
5 5 5 5 5
5 5 5 5 5
5 5 5 5 5
4 5 5 5 5
0 4 0 4 2
1 5 0 5 2

3
5
5
3
5

4
5
5
5
5
5
5
5

5
5
5
5

3
5
5
3
5

5
5
4
5
5
5
5
5

5
5
5
5

3 4
5 4
5 5 5
4 5 2
5 5 5

5 4
5 5
5 4
4 5
4 5
5 5
5 5
5 5

5 5 5
4 3 3
5 5 2
5 5 2

3
4

4
5
4
5
5
5
5
5

3 2 5 3
5 5 4 5
5 3 5 1
5 4 5 1
3 3 3 1

2
3
1
2
1

2 3 4 4 3
5 5 5 5 3
4 5 5 5 5
2 5 5 5 2
5 5 5 5 5
4 4 5 5 5
5 5 5 5 5
5 4 4 5 4
4 4 4 5 5



_10

E n e r g y  M e a s u r e s  _external measures

renewable energy
Permit and create incentives for solar energy generation
Permit and create incentives for geothermal energy generation
Permit and create incentives for wind energy on-site

E.RE.1
E.RE.2
E.RE.3.a
E.RE.3.b Permit and create incentives for wind energy for utility scale applications

policy
Adopt zoning provisions promoting energy efficiency
Adopt master plan provisions promoting energy efficiency
Organize urban gardening programs

E.P.1
E.P.2
E.P.3

building conservation
Waste reduction: encourage construction waste recycling
Provide recycling facilities
Develop a green building guideline guidebook or manual for the community

E.BC.1.a
E.BC.1.b
E.BC.2
E.BC.3 Implement expedited permitting for green building projects

Provide density bonuses for energy efficient developmentE.BC.4
E.BC.5 Provide education for and promotion of  builders developing green building competency and 

proficiency

transportation
Adopt a non-motorized transportation plan
Install bike lanes
Increase public transit ridership with incentives and improved facilities

E.T.1
E.T.2
E.T.3
E.T.4 Create incentives for transit-oriented developments

Does the project meet the objectives
of  the EECBG program or other programs or goals of  the City?

17
17
17
15

25
25
19

16
12
20
18
25
24

15
23
12
23



_11

rapid energy assessment process
feasibility

data/
analysis 
needs

funding 
availability

required 
personnel

potential 
benefit

3 4 3 4 3
3 4 3 4 3
3 4 3 4 3
1 4 3 4 3

5 5 5 5 5
5 5 5 5 5
4 4 4 5 2

3 4 5 3 1
0 2 5 5 0
3 5 4 4 4
1 4 5 4 4
5 5 5 5 5
5 5 5 4 5

1 5 3 5 1
3 5 5 5 5
1 4 2 3 2
5 5 5 5 3



_12 insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc... FACTS INDIVIDUAL TO COMMUNITY

H i g h  P r i o r i t y  R e c o m m e n d e d 
M e a s u r e s : 

I n t e r n a l  M e a s u r e s
O p e r a t i o n s :  a d o p t  a  m u n i c i p a l • 
o p e r a t i o n s  e n e r g y  p r a c t i c e s  p o l i c y
O p e r a t i o n s :  c o n d u c t  r e g u l a r • 
d e p a r t m e n t a l  e n e r g y  r e p o r t s  a n d 
t r a i n i n g
C o n d u c t  c o m p r e h e n s i v e  m u n i c i p a l • 
o p e r a t i o n  e n e r g y  t r a c k i n g
A d o p t  c o m p r e h e n s i v e  m u n i c i p a l • 
o p e r a t i o n  e n e r g y  g o a l s
R e d u c e  l i g h t  p o l l u t i o n  f o r  m u n i c i p a l • 
f a c i l i t i e s 
R e d u c e  w a s t e w a t e r  a t  m u n i c i p a l • 
f a c i l i t i e s 
R e d u c e  p o t a b l e  w a t e r  u s e  a t  m u n i c i p a l • 
f a c i l i t i e s
O b t a i n  e n e r g y  a u d i t s  f o r  m u n i c i p a l • 
f a c i l i t i e s
I n s t a l l  a u t o m a t i c  l i g h t i n g  c o n t r o l s • 
I n s t a l l  b u i l d i n g  i n s t a l l a t i o n• 
I n s t a l l  e n e r g y  e f f i c i e n t  l i g h t  f i x t u r e s • 
P u r c h a s e  e n e r g y  e f f i c i e n t  a p p l i c a n c e s• 
I n c r e a s e  e f f i c i e n c y  o f  h e a t i n g  a n d • 
c o o l i n g  s y s t e m s 
R e p l a c e  p o l i c e  v e h i c l e s  w i t h  m o r e  f u e l • 
e f f i c i e n t  u n i t s 
P r o v i d e  h y b r i d  a l t e r n a t i v e  f u e l • 
v e h i c l e s  f o r  m u n i c i p a l  u s e
P r o v i d e  p r i o r i t y  p a r k i n g  f o r  h y b r i d  o r • 
a l t e r n a t i v e  v e h i c l e s

E x t e r n a l  M e a s u r e s
A d o p t  z o n i n g  p r o v i s i o n s  p r o m o t i n g • 
e n e r g y  e f f i c i e n c y
A d o p t  m a s t e r  p l a n  p r o v i s i o n s • 
p r o m o t i n g  e n e r g y  e f f i c i e n c y 
P r o v i d e  d e n s i t y  b o n u s e s  f o r  e n e r g y • 
e f f i c i e n t  d e v e l o p m e n t
P r o v i d e  e d u c a t i o n  f o r  a n d  p r o m o t i o n • 
o f  b u i l d e r s  d e v e l o p i n g  g r e e n  b u i l d i n g 
c o m p e t e n c y  a n d  p r o f i c i e n c y



_13

city of troy rapid energy assessment process
H i g h  P r i o r i t y  M e a s u r e s

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...FACTS INDIVIDUAL TO COMMUNITY

There are 16 internal measures and 4 external measures which the REAP 
analysis has graded “high priority.”  The complete descriptions of these 
measures are found within the measure worksheets later in this report.
The High Priority Measures include a few projects related to management 
of the City’s existing resources and energy obligations.  The first four High 
Priority Measures are: 

1. Adopting an energy practices policy
2. Conducting regular energy reporting for buildings and departments
3. Doing comprehensive energy tracking
4. Setting of energy goals

These measures require little more than a shift in policy and an 
acknowledgement that energy has become a top priority.  While there 
may be a requirement of additional staff time and some basic software 
and equipment, these measures are much easier to implement and set the 
tone for the others in the REAP Report and the City’s Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Strategy.

The next major batch of High Priority Measures is related to the wasting of 
energy within City buildings.  Water conservation, reducing light pollution, 
enhancing the building envelope and taking advantage of free sources of 
energy from nature are all accounted for in this series of measures.

Besides buildings, the City uses a great deal of resources on running 
equipment and vehicles.  Given the proven viability of energy efficient 
applicants and hybrid vehicles, which have been analyzed over time by the 
City’s Fleet Manager, the REAP revealed that there are several areas where 
the City can achieve rapid savings as it replaces aging cars, trucks, and 
equipment.

The remaining High Priority Measures are primarily related to policy issues.  
Incentivizing the use of hybrid vehicles with priority parking, for instance, is 
a cheap and visible way to promote energy efficient vehicle adoption.  The 
other, more widespread policy issues like master plan and zoning provisions 
incentivize energy efficiency with density bonuses and PUD consideration, 
and excellent and powerful tools to promote energy efficiency and 
conservation within the community.



_14

L o w  P r i o r i t y  R e c o m m e n d e d 
M e a s u r e s :

I n t e r n a l  M e a s u r e s
S o l a r  e n e r g y  g e n e r a t i o n  o n  g o v e r n m e n t • 
f a c i l i t i e s :  p h o t o v a l i c
S o l a r  e n e r g y  g e n e r a t i o n  o n  g o v e r n m e n t • 
f a c i l i t i e s :  t h e r m a l 
W i n d  E n e r g y  g e n e r a t i o n  o n  g o v e r n m e n t • 
f a c i l i t i e s :  o n  s i t e  g e n e r a t i o n
L a n d f i l l  g a s  c o l l e c t i o n • 
G e o t h e r m a l  h e a t i n g  a n d  c o o l i n g  f o r • 
g o v e r n m e n t  f a c i l i t i e s
C r e a t e  a n  e n e r g y  p r o g r a m  m a n a g e r • 
p o s i t i o n
C o n s i d e r  a l t e r n a t i v e  s c h e d u l i n g• 
R e d u c e  h e a t  i s l a n d  e f f e c t  o f  m u n i c i p a l • 
f a c i l i t i e s 
I n s t a l l  n a t i v e  a n d  w a t e r  e f f i c i e n t • 
l a n d s c a p i n g  a t  m u n i c i p a l  f a c i l i t i e s 
I n s t a l l  n e w  n a t u r a l  d a y l i g h t i n g  e l e m e n t s• 
A d o p t  a  p o l i c y  t o  p u r c h a s e  l o c a l • 
m a t e r i a l s
A d o p t  a  p o l i c y  t o  u s e  1 0 0 %  r e c y c l e d • 
p a p e r 
A d o p t  a  p o l i c y  t o  u s e  e n v i r o n m e n t a l l y • 
f r i e n d l y  o f f i c e  s u p p l i e s 
E n c o u r a g e  a n d  i n c e n t i v i s e  c a r p o o l i n g • 
P u r c h a s e  d i e s e l  p o w e r e d  v e h i c l e s  a n d • 
e q u i p m e n t 
A d o p t  a v e r a g e  f u e l  e c o n o m y  s t a n d a r d• 
P r o v i d e  s e c u r e ,  s h e l t e r e d  b i c y c l e  s t o r a g e • 
a n d  s h o w e r s  f o r  e m p l o y e e s
C o n d u c t  l i f e - c y c l e  a n a l y s e s  w h e n • 
p u r c h a s i n g  n e w  v e h i c l e s

E x t e r n a l  M e a s u r e s
O r g a n i z e  u r b a n  g a r d e n i n g  p r o g r a m s• 
D e v e l o p  a  g r e e n  b u i l d i n g  g u i d e l i n e • 
g u i d e b o o k  o r  m a n u a l  f o r  t h e  c o m m u n i t y
I m p l e m e n t  e x p e d i t e d  p e r m i t t i n g  f o r • 
g r e e n  b u i l d i n g  p r o j e c t s
I n s t a l l  b i k e  l a n e s• 
C r e a t e  i n c e n t i v e s  f o r  t r a n s i t - o r i e n t e d • 
d e v e l o p m e n t s



_15

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

There are 18 internal measures and 5 external measures which the REAP 
analysis has graded “low priority.”  These are measures which have merit, 
and would provide a benefit to the City, but which may have a higher cost 
barrier for entry, may not be eligible for grant funding, or may have a less 
aggressive payback period.  In other words, while positive, they are not as 
immediate as those in the High Priority category.

The first few measures are all related to renewable energy production for 
local government facilities.  Renewable energy, especially in Southeast 
Michigan (where reliable wind and solar are scarce) has a lower payback 
generally than many areas around the country.  However, renewables are 
explicitly encouraged by the EECBG program and do provide a visible, 
dependable payback, even if it is a slow one. One specific measure, on-site 
wind energy generation, received a grade of “Low Priority” for the reasons 
noted above, but was still included in the City’s EECBG Strategy because of 
its low cost and very visible nature.  Therefore, even though it will produce 
a somewhat nominal amount of actual energy, it will provide significant 
benefits in monitoring turbine performance, creating a visible commitment 
to renewables for the City, and supporting the Michigan economy (the 
specified turbines are manufactured here).

The next collection of measures is related to policy.  Creation of a new 
energy manager position, for instance, is a good idea but a difficult one 
to implement in the City’s current state of reducing workforce.  Also, some 
cultural issues that would be beneficial may take time to implement and 
could complicate delivery of City services, like reducing the workweek. 

There are also a few measures related to site and building enhancements 
that may be beneficial, but harder to implement, less reliable, or not as 
applicable as others in the City’s unique circumstances.

The main bulk of external measures in the Low Priority category have to 
do with incentivizing and providing resources for green building in the 
City.  These are excellent ways to help the City redevelop in a sustainable 
manner, but could be complicated by the current down market and limited 
resources of the City.

L o w  P r i o r i t y  M e a s u r e s



_16

M e a s u r e s  n o t  r e c o m m e n d e d :

I n t e r n a l  M e a s u r e s
W i n d  e n e r g y  g e n e r a t i o n  o n • 
g o v e r n m e n t  f a c i l i t i e s :  u t i l i t y  s c a l e 
g e n e r a t i o n 
H y d r o e l e c t r i c  g e n e r a t i o n • 
C r e a t e  a n  e n e r g y  e f f i c i e n c y • 
i m p r o v e m e n t  r e v o l v i n g  l o a n  f u n d
P u r c h a s e  r e n e w a b l e  e n e r g y  c r e d i t s • 
P a r t i c i p a t e  i n  u t i l i t y  p r o v i d e r • 
r e v e w a b l e  e n e r g y  p r o g r a m s 
O b t a i n  m e m b e r s h i p  w i t h  n a t i o n a l • 
o r g a n i z a t i o n s  t o  r e d u c e  e n e r g y  u s e
I m p l e m e n t  t e c h n o l o g i e s  f o r  r e m o t e • 
w o r k  a n d  m e e t i n g  c a p a b i l i t i e s 
I m p l e m e n t  h o t e l i n g  c o n c e p t  i n • 
m u n i c i p a l  f a c i l i t i e s  f o r  m u l t i - u s e 
c a p a b i l i t y
A d o p t  L E E D  r e q u i r e m e n t  p o l i c y  f o r • 
n e w  m u n i c i p a l  b u i l d i n g s
I n c o r p o r a t e  p a s s i v e  s o l a r  h e a t i n g• 
I n s t a l l  n a t u r a l  v e n t i l a t i o n  s y s t e m s• 
E n c o u r a g e  a n d  i n c e t i v i s e • 
a l t e r n a t i v e  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n 
c u m m u t i n g

E x t e r n a l  M e a s u r e s
P e r m i t  a n d  c r e a t e  i n c e n t i v e s  f o r • 
s o l a r  e n e r g y  g e n e r a t i o n 
P e r m i t  a n d  c r e a t e  i n c e n t i v e s  f o r • 
g e o t h e r m a l  e n e r g y  g e n e r a t i o n
P e r m i t  a n d  c r e a t e  i n c e n t i v e s  f o r • 
w i n d  e n e r g y  o n - s i t e
P e r m i t  a n d  c r e a t e  i n c e n t i v e s • 
f o r  w i n d  e n e r g y  f o r  u t i l i t y  s c a l e 
a p p l i c a t i o n s
W a s t e  r e d u c t i o n :  e n c o u r a g e • 
c o n s t r u c t i o n  w a s t e  r e c y c l i n g 
P r o v i d e  r e c y c l i n g  f a c i l i t i e s• 
A d o p t  a  n o n - m o t o r i z e d • 
t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  p l a n
I n c r e a s e  p u b l i c  t r a n s i t  r i d e r s h i p • 
w i t h  i n c e n t i v e s  a n d  i m p r o v e d 
f a c i l i t i e s



_17

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

There are 12 internal measures and 8 external measures which the REAP 
analysis has graded “not recommended.”  These are measures which 
have little merit or political will, would not be practical for a local 
unit of government to deliver, or which are infeasible for one of many 
reasons within the City of Troy.  These measures may have merit in other 
circumstances, or as circumstances within Troy evolve, but currently rank far 
lower than the High and Low Priority measures mentioned previously.

The first two measures relate to utility scale energy generation using wind 
or hydroelectric power.  The City is not a primary utility provider, and has 
no moving water sufficient for hydroelectric generation.  Also, the City’s 
wind energy potential and relatively high land costs would not be conducive 
to utility scale wind energy generation on very large turbines.

The next four measures that are not recommended rely on having excess 
funding available, and none of them offer an immediate payback.  
Membership in education organizations, developing a revolving loan 
fund, purchasing renewable credits and renewable energy from our utility 
provider all have some merit, but not in relation to other stronger measures 
in this analysis.

Other measures related to City facilities have weak applicability, like 
“hoteling” and remote work facilities.  The City’s delivery of services relies 
on first-person interaction that is not conducive to remote work, and the 
main City functions are centralized, reducing the hoteling benefit. The most 
expensive and difficult building improvements, as well as a policy requiring 
LEED certification, are also not recommended for the obvious reasons of 
cost and complication in Troy.

Permitting and incentivizing renewable energy production fall to this status 
because the City already allows for renewable facilities, reducing the need 
to pursue these measures, and no immediate resources exist to promote or 
incentivize them. The final measures that are not recommended have to do 
with developing expanded recycling capabilities, which is not applicable 
given the easy access City residents and businesses already enjoy to 
these services.  Extensive resources devoted to alternative transportation 
enhancement are also not recommended until the regional transit 
infrastructure is improved.

M e a s u r e s  n o t  R e c o m m e n d e d



_18

H o w  t o  R e a d
M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s  

Me
as

ur
e 

Ti
tle

 w
ill

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

he
re

I.RE.1.a 
This is the measure’s number.  The number is derived from four sources:

Internal or External Measure: I or E• 
Renewable Energy, Policy, Building Conservation, or Transportation: RE, P, BC, or T• 
The number within the assessment area: 1, 2, 3, etc.• 
Subitem within a measure (for example, wind energy has two subitems): a, b, etc.• 

Feasibility
Data/Analysis 

Needs
This first box will contain a brief  introduction to 
the measure being analyzed.  It will also decribe 
the local context under which a measure could be 
considered.

The feasibility of  the measure will 
be assessed in light of  budget 
issues, environmental factors, 
procedural obstacles, or other 
factors that would make the pursuit 
of  the measure possible or would 
indicate that the measure should 
not be pursued.

Many measures require 
some sort of  data or 
analysis to implement.  
In many cases, the 
data has already been 
compiled or is available.  
In some cases, the lack 
of  data may reduce the 
feasibility of  a measure.

X X

A s s e s s m e n t  a r e a  h e a d i n g s



_19

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Primarily, this section will 
discuss whether or not a measure 
could be funded by immediate 
sources, such as the Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Block 
Grant program.  It may also 
refer to other potential sources 
of  funding or describe potential 
revenue the measure could 
generate.

This section will describe if  
existing staff  or consultants 
can complete the measure, or if  
the measure will create jobs or 
require special assistance.

This final assessment area will 
describe the anticipated benefit 
in the specific case of  the City of  
Troy.  Mostly, it will describe if  
savings can be expected for the 
City’s bottom line, but it may also 
describe if  there are benefits 
that would directly support the 
long term goals of  the City, 
even if  no energy savings are 
anticipated.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : XX

X X X

1 kilowatt-hour (kWh) = the amount of  electricity required to burn a 100 watt light bulb for 10 hours.

A s s e s s m e n t  a r e a  s c o r e s

To t a l  m e a s u r e  s c o r e



_20



_21

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

I n t e r n a l  M e a s u r e s

The internal measures are those measures which have a direct impact on the day-to-day 
operation of the local unit of government.  These measures deal with the administration, 
typical workplace policies, long term planning, physical plant obligations, transportation, 
and other issues that are under the umbrella of local government.  These areas require 
a local unit of government to consider its energy obligations carefully in the face of 
fl uctuating prices and availability of fuel and other resources.  These measures will 
assist the community in developing effective energy policies and strategies for reducing 
dependence on energy in many areas.



_22

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s  _internal 
measures

So
la

r E
ne

rg
y 

Ge
ne

ra
tio

n:
 P

ho
to

va
lic

So
la

r E
ne

rg
y 

Ge
ne

ra
tio

n:
 T

he
rm

al

I.RE.1.a

I.RE.1.b

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Solar thermal energy is a renewable energy that 
converts sun energy into heat.  Typically, solar 
thermal technology is used to heat a building’s hot 
water, and reduce the amount of  natural gas or 
electricity that would normally fulfill this function.  It 
is an efficient, inexpensive form of  renewable energy 
which is easy to implement in new construction or in 
retrofits.  Financially, solar thermal systems make 
the most sense in buildings that heat a lot of  water, 
such as pools, firehouses and correctional facilities, 
or buildings that use water for radiant heat.  They are 
an especially effective investment when a building is 
due for an old water heater or boiler replacement.  

Much like solar PV, solar thermal 
equipment is limited by the overall 
solar energy we have access to in 
a predominantly cloudy northern 
environment.  Solar thermal 
equipment, however, is efficient 
in ways that solar PV is not.  For 
instance, the heat is immediately 
transmitted from the sun to the 
water, where in a PV installation, 
the solar energy is transmitted into 
electricity which is then used to 

power something 
else, creating a 
“middleman.” 

12-24 months of  water 
bills for each facility and 
summer months’ natural 
gas bills. With summer 
gas bills, one can remove 
natural gas used to 
heat buildings from the 
equation and determine 
the potential energy 
savings for a solar 
thermal installation.

3 5

Solar photovoltaic (PV) energy is a renewable form 
of  electricity produced from converted sun energy.  
In most applications, solar PV is tied directly into 
a building’s electrical system through a DC to AC 
inverter.  Relative to other forms of  electricity, both 
conventional and renewable, solar PV is not always 
cost effective.  However, solar PV has huge potential 
due to its ease of  operation, lack of  moving parts, 
and its appropriateness for nearly any site.  Solar 
PV remains an important part of  future renewable 
energy development.  As advances in solar PV 
continue to reduce the marginal cost of  electricity it 
produces, solar PV will continue to increase in use 
across the world.  

Solar energy has less of  a payback 
in Michigan than it could in 
climates with a greater number of  
sunny days.  However, given the 
efficiency gains in modern solar 
PV equipment, the payback for PV 
installations is more realistic than 
ever.  That being said, solar is a 
proven technology that may not be 
ideally suited in small installations 
in Michigan when compared with 
other renewable systems.

12-24 months of  electric 
bills for each facility to 
determine appropriate 
PV installation size.  
Facility site plans, 
roof  pitch, orientation, 
nearby obstructions, etc. 
required to site potential 
PV equipment.

3 5



_23

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Solar PV currently qualifies for 
tax breaks (30% of  cost) for 
individuals, with no maximum. 
EECBG entitlement communities 
can use grant money to purchase 
Solar Photovoltaic equipment 
or use money from an energy 
revolving loan fund.  Funding 
may also be available from 
service-specific revenue sources 
as they are reinvested.  For 
instance, parking fees are 

reinvested in PV 
powered parking 
meter stations.

Facility utility bills can be 
furnished by the finance 
department or by a facilities 
manager. Maintenance personnel 
will also be necessary to help 
determine the age of  existing 
equipment and a possible site 
for the solar collector (typically 
on the roof  of  a commercial 
or office building).  Solar PV 
equipment must be installed by a 
qualified contractor.

While expensive, Solar PV is 
deployable in most situations. 
Without noisy moving parts, it is 
suitable for rural, suburban or 
urban settings. Even grey places, 
such as Portland, Oregon, have 
extensively deployed PV systems. 
Solar PV may still require a 
significant pay back period, but 
it offers a visible commitment 
to renewable energy and can 
serve as a demonstration for the 

public. 

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 20

Solar thermal qualifies for 
tax breaks for individuals, up 
to $3,000. EECBG entitlement 
communities can use grant 
money to purchase solar thermal 
equipment or use money from an 
energy revolving loan fund. 

Facility utility bills can be 
furnished by the finance 
department or by a facilities 
manager. Maintenance personnel 
will also be necessary to help 
determine the age of  existing 
equipment and a possible site 
for the solar collector (typically 
on the roof  of  a commercial or 
office building).  Solar thermal 
equipment must be installed by a 
qualified contractor.

With an investment of  a few 
thousand dollars, solar thermal 
systems can significantly reduce 
natural gas used to heat water 
and the corresponding CO2 
emissions. Depending on how 
intensive a building’s hot water 
use is, solar thermal systems can 
pay themselves back in just a 
few years.  

5 4 3

5 4 3

T o t a l  S c o r e : 20

1 kilowatt-hour (kWh) = the amount of  electricity required to burn a 100 watt light bulb for 10 hours.



_24

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

W
in

d 
En

er
gy

 G
en

er
at

io
n:

 O
n-

Si
te

W
in

d 
En

er
gy

 G
en

er
at

io
n:

 U
til

ity
 S

ca
le

I.RE.2.a

I.RE.2.b

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Utility-scale wind turbines are large machines that 
use wind power to create electricity for more than one 
home, business or facility. They are hundreds of  feet 
in height and require a team of  professional engineers 
to plan for their installation.  Utility-scale wind 
turbines can provide power for two to three hundred 
homes when producing near their peak performance.  
Governments with large tracts of  land can enter into 
contracts with wind developers to rent their land 
or they can develop the turbines themselves and 
arrange for the sale of  the electricity to an electrical 
utility.  Large facilities such as manufacturing 
plants can construct utility scale turbines and use 
the entirety of  the electricity produced.  However, 
excess electricity generated can be sold into the grid. 

The wind energy potential for many 
sites in Michigan are excellent, but 
within Troy very little potential 
exists.  This, and given the 
relatively high property costs 
within Troy when compared with 
more rural areas with higher wind 
energy potential, make installation 
of  a large-scale turbine or turbines 
highly unlikely.

Extensive wind data 
must be collected for 
a specific site for 
potential wind energy 
projects.  This data 
collection requires that 
a meteorological tower 
be erected with an 
anemometer installed.  
This type of  study is 
time consuming and 
potentially expensive.

1 1

Sited near or on the building they serve, small wind 
turbines turn to convert wind energy to electricity, 
effectively reducing the amount of  electricity from 
fossil fuels that a building uses. Small “private” use 
turbines are tied into a building’s electrical system 
and provide electricity only to one building, or to a 
group of  buildings. Under the right circumstances, 
turbines are as cost effective as conventional fossil 
fuel electricity. Modern private turbines can provide 
a positive return on investment in 5-10 years 
given proper conditions. The effectiveness of  wind 
power is highly dependent on site conditions, and 
prevailing electric utility rate structures. A variety 
of  incentives are possible, such as offering income 
tax credits, property tax exemptions, coverage of  
a percentage of  the installation cost, and rebates.

The installation of  on-site wind 
energy systems is becoming more 
and more feasible as the renewable 
energy industry continues to 
innovate with regard to system 
design and manufacture.  Several 
companies in Michigan produce 
small wind systems and technicians 
are readily available, especially 
for residential-grade systems.  
Given the relatively small amount 
of  energy they produce, they are 

ideally suited to 
small buildings and 
installations.

12-24 months of  electric 
bills for each facility to 
determine appropriate 
wind turbine installation 
size.  Facility site plans, 
roof  pitch, orientation, 
nearby obstructions, etc. 
required to site potential 
wind turbine equipment.

5 5



_25

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Private wind turbines qualify 
for tax breaks (30% of  cost) for 
individuals, with no maximum. 
EECBG entitlement communities 
can use grant money to purchase 
wind turbine equipment or use 
money from an energy revolving 
loan fund.  As with solar energy, 
wind energy offers a predictable, 
dependable savings on energy 
bills. There are financial 
mechanisms available that allow 

low interest loans 
to be paid back 
with these future 
savings over a 
number of  years. 

Facility utility bills can be 
furnished by the finance 
department or by a facilities 
manager.  Maintenance 
personnel will also be necessary 
to escort trained personnel 
around a site to determine site 
appropriateness.  Qualified 
contractors will install wind 
energy systems and municipal 
staff  should be trained how to 
maintain it.

Wind power has the highest energy 
per dollar invested ratio of  any 
available electricity-producing 
renewable energy. A well sized 
system, on an adequate site with 
rate mechanisms that allow excess 
electricity to be “sold” back to the 
utility can effectively reduce fossil 
fuels by as much as 50%. In many 
cases, private wind turbines can 
pay for themselves in 10 years or 
less. 

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 23

Utility scale wind energy 
systems are typically developed 
by private, for-profit enterprises.  
Occasionally, these enterprises 
may partner with municipalities.

Manpower for the design, 
installation, and monitoring of  
wind energy systems is typically 
the responsibility of  the private 
enterprise that owns them.  
There are available professionals 
locally, and there are plenty of  
technically trained potential 
employees that could be 
retrained for wind energy work.

The payback for commercial-
scale wind energy systems 
varies widely.  Even if  the 
wind energy potential was 
high enough to justify an 
installation, there is little 
beneift to the City as a financial 
entity, given that commercial 
systems are generally privately 
owned.  Environmentally, there 
is a considerable benefit to 
large-scale renewable enrgy 

production.

3 3 3

5 5 3

T o t a l  S c o r e : 11

A 1-kilowatt home solar system is made up of  about 10-12 solar panels and requires approximately 100 square feet to install.



_26

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

La
nd

fil
l G

as
 C

ol
le

cit
on

Hy
dr

oe
le

ct
ric

 G
en

er
at

io
n

I.RE.3

I.RE.4

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Hydroelectricity is electricity generated by harnessing 
the gravitational energy of  falling water.   The most 
widely used form of  renewable energy, hydroelectric 
generation accounts for about 20% of  the world’s 
electricity.  Water is dammed, and as it sits, it 
builds up potential energy. Once released, the water 
flows over a turbine, turning the rotary blades of  
the turbine which rotates attached electromagnets, 
generating a current which goes through a 
transformer.  Energy is then transmitted over power 
lines.  The flow of  the water must be controlled 
and monitored, but the process takes advantage 
of  water falling down large drops in elevation. 

There is no river or other moving 
water in Troy of  sufficient flow to 
justify a hydroelectric system for 
electricity generation.

Flow data and technical 
analysis of  potential and 
demand, cost estimates, 
and other information 
would be needed were 
there a body of  water 
sufficient to justify a 
hydroelectric system.

0 0

Landfills can be an asset that have largely been 
considered a liability.  Garbage deposited in landfills 
decomposes, and as it does, it lets off  gas.  Roughly 
50% of  this gas is carbon dioxide and the remaining 
50% is methane.  Less than 1% of  the gas emitted 
from landfills is other organic compounds, with trace 
amounts of  inorganic chemicals.  This methane can be 
used to generate electricity or heat in nearby buildings.   
Since the garbage is “free” to the municipality, the 
source of  electricity is free as well. An infrastructural 
investment is necessary to harness and use the gas.  

The City of  Troy has an existing 
capped landfill that was 
redeveloped as a golf  course.  
While potential may exist to 
capture emissions, it would take a 
high investment in terms of  study 
and analysis, as well as ultimately 
of  equipment and infrastructure, to 
initiate a program.  Consequently, 
the potential for this measure is 
relatively low.

A technical analysis 
will have to be done to 
assess the feasibility 
of  a system as well 
as potential costs and 
revenues. 

3 2



_27

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

An upfront infrastructural 
expenditure is needed, but 
in most cases, a landfill gas 
(LFG) system will pay for itself  
quickly by recouping savings on 
utility bills. LFG systems’ cost 
effectiveness greatly depends 
on the cooperation of  the 
electrical utility with rates for 
excess electricity produced. Now 
that Michigan has a Renewable 
Portfolio Standard, utility 

companies should 
be willing to help 
establish a LFG 
system. 

The installation of  a methane 
capture system would take a 
team of  specialized contractors 
and designers.  However, once 
installed, the City’s existing 
public works department could 
likely manage and operate the 
system with some training.

A landfill gas system produces 
electricity or heat without 
creating extra CO2 emissions 
from fossil fuel power plants, 
thus offsetting these CO2 
emissions. It also reduces the 
amount of  methane that would 
otherwise escape into the 
atmosphere. Additionally, LFG 
systems provide revenue for the 
owner of  the gas and savings for 
end users. Landfill gas systems 

have a 25 year 
track record 
of  safety and 
dependability.  

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 18

Funding for hydroelectric 
systems is often complex 
because such systems may 
produce excellent renewable 
energy, but they can also have a 
severe and potentially negative 
impact on ecosystems.

Specially trained employees are 
required to design, install, and 
operate a hydroelectric system, 
although this is not applicable 
in Troy.

There are no potential projects in 
Troy for hydroelectric generation, 
and therefore no potential 
benefit to considering one.

0 0 0

5 3 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 0

Hydroelectric power contributed 19% of  the world’s power in 2006, and is the most ubiquitous renewable energy source in the world. ( REN21’s 
2006 Renewables Status Report)



_28

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Ge
ot

he
rm

al
 F

or
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t F
ac

ili
tie

s
En

er
gy

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
er

 P
os

iti
on

I.RE.5

I.P.1

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

The communities with the most success conserving 
energy, saving money, and reducing CO2 emissions 
all have one person in charge of  coordinating energy 
initiatives for the entire organization.  This person 
is responsible for coordinating internal energy 
savings measures for building facilities, educating 
staff, the public and elected officials, and being 
an advocate for programs that can reduce CO2 
emissions and save money.  This position is vitally 
important and has been shown to pay for itself  
through energy savings, reduction of  duplicative 
services, and interdepartmental coordination.    

In order to determine feasibility 
for this measure in a community, 
political will, existing work 
patterns and municipal operation 
must be reviewed and gauged.  
Typically, funding for a new 
position is the most inhibiting 
factor.  Often the energy program 
manager duties are added to an 
existing role.

An overall organization 
structure schematic 
detailing how the energy 
program manager can 
become involved in 
practices around the 
municipality.

3 5

Geothermal systems use ground source heat pumps to 
extract or return heat to the earth.  Below 6 feet or so, 
the earth stays at a relatively constant temperature.  
By running liquids through pipes dug into the earth, a 
building can be cooled off  in the summer and heated 
in the winter.  This form of  geothermal technology is 
an effective and predictable form of  energy.  It is also 
one of  the most cost effective forms of  renewable 
energy available.  Ground source technology is most 
appropriate in applications where a building has an 
ample amount of  land to run pipes underground.  
Ground source geothermal technology can be retrofit 
to existing buildings, and used in new construction.  

Geothermal systems are not 
new technology, they have been 
installed in many circumstances 
around the country.  They are 
gaining widespread acceptance of  
late due to escalating energy costs 
and a focus on green building.  The 
cost may be initially high, and they 
can consume a great deal of  land, 
so they are not an energy source 
without compromise.  The City 
could consider geothermal systems 

to shed some 
load at certain 
buildings or in new 
construction in the 
future.

12-24 months of  electric 
and gas bills for each 
facility to determine 
economic feasibility 
and run cost/benefit 
analysis.  Building area, 
and construction type to 
determine necessary size 
of  system.  Site plans 
to determine if  there is 
room for a geothermal 
system. 

4 3



_29

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Ground source heat exchangers 
currently qualify for tax credits 
(30% cost) for individuals, with 
no maximum. EECBG entitlement 
communities can use money 
from grants or from an energy 
revolving loan fund to purchase 
equipment. Grants from State 
Energy Offices are often available 
for renewable energy programs. 
Ground source heat exchangers 
are a very economical investment, 

often paying for 
themselves in just 
a few years (8-10 
year payback.) 

The installation and design of  
geothermal systems require 
qualified trained personnel.  
Once installed, the systems 
require very little additional 
manpower or support.  Design 
and installation can require a 
great deal of  personnel time and 
effort, and could be expensive.

Geothermal Energy could reduce 
the impact of  building energy 
consumption by a significant 
amount in an economically sound 
manner. In Troy, ground source 
technology may pay for itself  
in around 8 years. Further, with 
a lifetime of  20-30 years or 
more, maintenance costs are 
also greatly reduced. Therefore 
the potential benefit is high, 
but slightly offset by the high 

cost in a time 
when the City has 
fewer financial 
resources.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 19

The Energy Program is generally 
paid for from a departmental or 
general fund budget. The EECBG 
program authorizes funding 
for administration of  energy 
programs related to EECBG 
grants. In smaller communities, 
existing employees with an 
appropriate skill set could 
be tasked to perform energy 
program management duties on a 
part time basis.   

The energy program manager 
needs consistent support from 
management and elected officials. 
The nature of  the position invites 
criticism from those concerned 
with budgets in the short term 
and who do not see its long term 
benefit and necessity. Creation 
of  the position requires a leader 
to educate the organization of  
the position’s benefits and to 
outline quantifiable goals in 

order to avoid 
second guessing 
the position’s 
importance.

The impact of  an energy program 
manager depends on several 
factors, including resources 
provided, size of  the organization, 
performance of  individuals, and 
the will of  elected officials. A 
well-positioned energy program 
manager, can bring in grant funds, 
save money, raise awareness 
in the community, change an 
organization’s culture and make 
significant reductions in CO2 

emissions and 
energy costs. 

3 5 4

4 4 4

T o t a l  S c o r e : 20

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...



_30

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

En
er

gy
 E

ffi
cie

nc
y 

Lo
an

 F
un

d
Mu

ni
cip

al
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 E
ne

rg
y 

Pr
ac

tic
es

I.P.2

I.P.3.a

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

A municipal operations energy practices policy is a 
document adopted by the elected governing body or 
mandated by an administration.  It covers general 
daily practices and instructs employees how to manage 
certain activities.  A typical policy will cover such 
procedures as purchasing environmentally friendly 
materials, recycling where possible, not idling vehicles, 
restricting the use of  space heaters and turning 
off  lights and computers, among other guidelines. 

This measure is easily 
accomplished by the City facilities 
management team and human 
resources professionals.  It 
requires very little investment 
for a potentially great return, as 
it establishes a culture of  saving 
energy without installing new 
equipment or major renovations.

In order to quantify 
energy savings, 
this measure would 
require information 
about existing energy 
consumption by building 
and department, if  
possible.  Mostly, the 
accomplishment of  the 
measure would require 
a solid understanding of  
all areas where employee 

behavior 
effects 
energy.5 5

Energy efficiency revolving loan funds provide loans 
to developers to “buy down” the interest rate on loans 
for eligible energy efficiency projects in conjunction 
with commercial, industrial, and institutional property 
operations.  Varying types of  financial assistance could 
be made available, and will vary by community.  The 
purpose of  this type of  revolving loan is to encourage 
businesses and institutions to upgrade building shells 
and mechanical and electrical systems to exceed 
minimum energy efficiency standards, and to upgrade 
equipment and processes to make operations more 
energy efficient.  Eligibility standards, inspections, 
and program monitoring are essential to a successful 
energy efficiency revolving loan fund program.

The feasibility of  revolving 
loan funds vary by community 
and situation.  Grant money in 
the EECBG program could fund 
this initiative, as could general 
fund dollars.  However, the City 
is currently without surplus 
to accomplish this.  Without a 
guaranteed funding source of  
sufficient size so as to make the 
program worthwhile, it is feasible, 
but not highly feasible.

An in-depth analysis 
of  financial and legal 
issues would be required 
to establish a revolving 
loan fund.  This is 
easily achieved by the 
City’s existing staff  and 
consultants.

2 5



_31

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

While not specifically mentioned 
in the legislation of  the Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Block 
Grant program, this measure is 
in line with the intention of  the 
bill. 

This measure is best managed by 
existing City financial and legal 
personnel, but would also likely 
require an outside professional 
to accomplish.  The project would 
require a great deal of  effort 
on the part of  staff, which is 
already at capacity in terms 
of  productivity and workload.  
While personnel is available, 
adjustment may be required to 
proceed.

Energy efficiency revolving 
loan fund programs facilitate 
interest rate reduction on loans 
to customers for the purchase 
of  energy saving products, 
technologies and services.  There 
is a great deal of  benefit to the 
business receiving the loan, and 
the City will reduce it’s overall 
energy use community-wide, 
however, no immediate reduction 
in the City’s energy bottom 

line is to be 
anticipated.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 16

Existing staff, often with 
the help of  consultants or 
other outside resources such 
as those published by other 
municipalities, can lead the 
development of  a best practices 
policy. They should enlist 
management for other employees 
and elected leaders to establish 
the right set of  policies. Because 
existing staff  can be used, extra 
resources will not be needed.  

Existing staff  can produce this 
policy without a great deal of  
external help.

Individual daily decisions 
contribute to building energy 
use as well as indirect energy 
costs absorbed by other 
organizations.  For instance, by 
simply enabling computer power 
management (monitor shut-off, 
etc.), an organization can save 
approximately $60 per year per 
computer in electricity costs.  
This is but one example of  how 
a simple set of  policies can 

greatly reduce 
costs and energy 
consumption.5 5 5

3 3 3

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_32

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Re
gu

la
r E

ne
rg

y 
Re

po
rt

s 
+

 Tr
ai

ni
g

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 E

ne
rg

y 
Tr

ac
ki

ng

I.P.3.b

I.P.4.a

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Recording, tracking and analyzing municipal energy 
use and costs involves compiling data obtained by 
your utility provider and fleet services company.  
Primarily, this involves recording information from 
electric and gas bills per facility, and recording fuel 
usage of  municipal vehicles by vehicle and by driver. 
Over time, data can be analyzed to determine such 
things as where energy and money are being wasted, 
which departments and buildings create the most 
CO2, identify options to reduce energy use and save 
money, and report results and progress.  In smaller 
operations, simple spreadsheets can be used.  In 
larger operations, databases offer a more powerful 
set of  analysis options. 

This measure is easily 
accomplished by the City facilities 
management team.  It requires 
very little investment for a 
potentially great return, as it 
establishes a culture of  saving 
energy without installing new 
equipment or major renovations.  
It also helps with capital 
expenditures planning.

Provide the number 
of  facilities, vehicles 
and annual energy 
budget to determine the 
level of  sophistication 
recommended for sound 
energy management. 

5 5

Implement a system for reducing the amount of  energy 
use per facility by engaging employees to encourage 
them to take responsibility for their actions at work. 
Includes establishing and energy leader/champion/
team, organizing power usage details, reporting power 
usage details, creating consensus use reduction goals, 
regularly reporting results, recording strategies for 
improvement, and recognizing individual achievement.  

This measure is easily 
accomplished by the City facilities 
management team and human 
resources professionals.  It 
requires very little investment 
for a potentially great return, as 
it establishes a culture of  saving 
energy without installing new 
equipment or major renovations.

Baseline energy data 
for the City’s existing 
costs.  This information 
was collected as part of  
this process. Baseline 
and ongoing data is being 
monitored and managed 
by the City’s facility 
management team.

5 5



_33

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Existing staff  can lead the 
development of  a regular 
reporting regime. Because 
existing staff  can be used, extra 
resources will not be needed.  

Existing staff  can produce this 
policy without a great deal of  
external help.

Information is required to justify 
future expenditures or recognize 
energy savings.  Good data 
can facilitate successful grant 
applications and allow the City 
to adjust its budget for energy 
costs.  Just by closely monitoring 
costs, inefficiencies or seasonal 
fluctuations are often recognized 
and projects can be chosen to 
have a large impact on energy 
conservation.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25

Staff  can be used to compile 
information, if  not currently 
available. EECBG money can also 
be used to hire resources to help 
compile and analyze information.  
There is free as well as 
commercial software available 
to help with cataloguing and 
analysis. 

Skills necessary include the 
ability to transcribe energy 
and dollar amounts from utility 
bills (which report electric and 
natural gas per meter per month) 
for each facility to a database, 
basic mathematics to separate 
compiled months, and spreadsheet 
competency to perform annual 
summaries and produce graphs. 
Facilities management staff  in 
Troy currently perform these 

functions and could 
help implement 
a comprehensive 
tracking protocol.

The tracking of  energy consumed 
is fundamental for measuring 
an energy program’s impact. 
With organized records and an 
understanding of  the specifics of  
energy use in your organization, 
you have the ability to target 
areas for reduction and savings.  
Also, by creating a baseline 
energy use, an organization has 
an objective measure with which 
to track the effectiveness of  any 

particular energy 
project both in 
terms of  CO2 and 
dollars reduced.    5 5 5

5 5 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_34

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

En
er

gy
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Ta
rg

et
s

Re
ne

wa
bl

e 
En

er
gy

 C
re

di
ts

I.P.4.b

I.P.5

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Renewable energy credits are tradable, non-tangible 
energy commodities that represent proof  that one (1) 
megawatt hour (MWh) of  electricity was generated 
from an eligible renewable energy resource.  These 
credits can be sold, traded or bartered.  Renewable 
energy credits can incentivize carbon-neutral 
renewable energy by providing a production subsidy 
to electricity generated from renewable sources.  The 
energy associated with renewable energy credits 
is sold separately and used by another party.  
There are two (2) markets for renewable energy 
credits – compliance and voluntary.  Qualifying 
renewable technologies include: solar electric, 
wind, geothermal, low-impact hydropower, biomass/
biofuels, and fuel cells.

The purchase of  renewable energy 
credits is technically possible; 
however, given that there are no 
actual energy reductions or cost 
savings measures, and that the 
City is experiencing serious budget 
challenges, the participation in an 
energy credits program is not at all 
feasible at this time.

Baseline community-
wide energy data to 
determine the amount 
of  credits purchased, 
etc. This information 
has been tabulated and 
is available, although it 
would take some work 
to complete the full, 
community-wide picture.

0 4

The development and adoption of  a program of  
energy reduction targets is a measure which 
motivates a community to execute many of  the  
other measures described by this document.   Setting 
targets creates a motivating factor for departments 
within the City and helps focus the City’s efforts year 
to year.  The setting of  goals costs little,  but the 
commitment to achieving the goals can cost a great 
deal if  significant projects must be undertaken to 
meet them.  The success of  goal setting depends on 
the level of  ambition the goals include, and the time 
frame.

This project alone is a commitment 
to exploring energy reduction, 
and the City’s participation in 
the EECBG program and Green 
Communities Challenge are also 
commitments to reducing energy 
use. The actual establishment 
of  formal, qualitative goals may 
require a significant political will, 
especially in the face of  the City’s 
current challenges.

Because of  fiscal and 
political impacts, senior 
executives and elected 
officials will need to 
discuss how ambitious a 
target to set and organize 
the proper mechanisms 
for officially adopting the 
policy. Leaders can use 
case studies and models 
from other jurisdictions 
to determine what is 

realistic 
and 
feasible. 4 5



_35

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Essentially no funding is required 
for the setting of  goals.

City officials and executives 
will need to schedule several 
meetings to determine the 
political will of  the target, the 
finances involved, and to develop 
a target in line with shared 
values, financial goals, and 
environmental necessity. 

An officially adopted policy 
informs staff  and community 
that the municipality officially 
recognizes the fiscal benefits 
and environmental necessity 
for reducing energy use. This 
target mandate can be used as 
rationale when making important 
purchasing decisions and will 
help to change business as usual, 
allowing staff  and community to 
evaluate a program’s successes. 

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 24

It is unclear if  grant money 
can be used for the purchase 
of  renewable credits, and the 
City’s EECBG funding is allocated 
towards more direct energy 
saving programs.  No general 
fund money or other funding is 
currently available.

This program only requires staff  
time from existing staff.  Most 
of  the necessary information 
is available, and some 
administrative time would be 
required to investigate potential 
energy credit programs.

Until Cities are required to 
meet maximum energy caps 
or until the City self-imposes 
greenhouse gas limits or other 
targets, the implementation 
of  such a program has little 
tangible, immediate benefit to 
the City of  Troy specifically.  
While it technically would help 
to improve renewable energy 
and conservation efforts on a 
large scale, it would not have 

immediate 
benefits for Troy 
itself.0 4 2

5 5 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 10



_36

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Ut
ili

ty
 R

en
ew

ab
le

 E
ne

rg
y 

Pr
og

ra
m

s
Na

tio
na

l O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
Me

m
be

rs
hi

p

I.P.6

I.P.7

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

There are several non-profit organizations whose 
mission is to do develop resources that help 
municipalities plan for and implement conservation 
strategies and measures.  These organizations 
typically have experienced personnel who are 
knowledgeable about the process, politics, and 
technical details involved in reducing energy 
use.  Examples of  popular organizations include 
International Consortium for Local Climate Initiatives 
(ICLEI) and Climate Communities and Energy Star for 
Government.  

This measure is technically 
possible; however, given that there 
are no actual energy reductions 
or cost savings, and that the City 
is experiencing serious budget 
challenges, membership is less 
feasible at this time. There are 
more immediate benefits in terms 
of  resources and ideas, however, 
and membership is far more 
affordable than green energy 
credits or renewable energy 

purchase, slightly 
improving the 
feasibility of  such 
a measure.

Membership organizations 
typically have 
requirements for members 
(e.g. 5-step process to 
address green house gas 
emissions (e.g. ICLEI), 
pledge to reduce energy 
use by a specific amount). 
These requirements 
require a point person 
to interact with the 
organization to implement 

the 
process.

2 3

Due to increasing consumer interest in 
environmental responsibility, CO2 reduction, and 
owing to state mandates, most utility companies now 
offer consumers the ability to purchase electricity 
from renewable sources. Typically, the utility will 
charge a premium per kWh for the renewable 
electricity provided. If  the utility provider does not 
produce electricity through renewable means on its 
own, consumers can use the money from the program 
to purchase renewable energy from elsewhere.    In 
Michigan, DTE Energy’s “Green Currents” and 
Consumer’s Energy’s “Green Generation” programs 
offer consumers and residents renewable options. 
Both companies also give scale discounts for 
organizations which use more electricity. 

The purchase of  renewable energy 
at the local level is technically 
possible; however, given that there 
are no actual energy reductions 
or cost savings, and that the City 
is experiencing serious budget 
challenges, the participation in 
an energy credits program is not 
feasible at this time.  The fact that 
the renewable energy money would 
be spent more locally does make 
this a more attractive option than a 

national renewable 
energy credit 
program, however.

Information about 
historical energy costs 
to determine the cost of  
implementation.  This 
information is available.

1 5



_37

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

At this time there is no funding 
source for this option. 

The decision to purchase 
renewable energy must be made 
at the level of  elected leaders in 
concert with an effort to promote 
environmental responsibility and 
publicity.  The implementation 
of  such a program would require 
no additional staff  time or new 
personnel.

The major benefit of  participating 
in a utility renewable energy 
program is a reduction in CO2 
created through daily operations, 
allowing municipalities to take 
responsibility for their own carbon 
footprint, while setting an example 
for residents and businesses. 
Simultaneously, they can also obtain 
LEED credits. However, there is not 
likely to be any immediate tangible 
benefit to the City itself.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 13

Some organizations charge a fee 
to gain the resources available 
to member communities while 
others simply offer free resources 
and ask for a commitment. ICLEI, 
the pre-eminent organization 
in providing resources for local 
governments to plan for energy 
efficiency, has membership 
rates between $600 and 
$4,500 annually (depending on 
population).  Although affordable,  

the City currently 
has little financial 
resources 
available for such 
a program.

A point person should be 
assigned to handle the interface 
with the national organization 
and report progress. This person 
should become acquainted with 
the organization’s resources 
and product offerings.   He/
she should be someone familiar 
with energy and climate change 
issues, as well as be comfortable 
formulating, implementing, and 
measuring plans. This could be 

an existing staff  
person.

It can be a very complex and 
daunting undertaking to plan for 
and implement energy reduction 
strategies. These national 
organizations bring to bear case 
studies and experience from 
hundreds of  other governmental 
units that have jumped the same 
hurdles. It is extremely helpful 
to have a path laid out before 
going through the process. 
Further, these organizations 

provide a network 
to publicize 
progress and gain 
recognition. 2 5 3

0 5 2

T o t a l  S c o r e : 15



_38

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

Sc
he

du
lin

g 
- 4

-d
ay

 w
ee

k
Re

m
ot

e 
Wo

rk
 +

 M
ee

tin
g 

Ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s

I.P.8

I.P.9

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Today’s worker spends 24.4 hours on average each 
way commuting to work.  This translates to nearly 
eight and one-half  days annually driving to and from 
work.  Additionally, most local governments have at 
least several different work locations that employees 
will commute between for meetings.  With that many 
miles being driven, many organizations are investing 
in technologies that will allow workers to do more 
of  their time from home and other nearby locations.  
These technologies include laptops, virtual private 
networks, “Soft Phones” which allow customers to 
reach you by your office phone number whenever 
you are plugged into the internet, instant messaging 
software, and teleconferencing areas. 

In order to determine feasibility 
for this measure in a community, 
political will, existing work 
patterns and meeting schedules 
must be reviewed and gauged. It 
is less likely in a service-oriented 
community than in private industry, 
given how the City must provide 
services in person.  Many City 
functions can not be done remotely.

12-24 months of  Utility 
Bills for each facility, 
employee work locations 
and home addresses 
(names can be omitted), 
and daily natural gas 
use in order to calculate 
natural gas savings.

1 5

The four day work week is an idea that is gaining 
much popularity in the United States.  This measure 
is intended to save money by cutting building 
operations by one day each week.  Because the 
building is not operating at its peak energy use, 
the energy used on the closed day is much lower 
than working days.  The measure is also intended to 
reduce gasoline expenditures by employees, saving 
them both energy and time.  Four day work weeks 
have shown to reduce energy use in buildings by 
approximately 10%.  It is also noteworthy that a 
four day work week is more effective in the summer 
when air conditioners draw a lot of  electricity during 
peak demand periods in the middle of  the day.  

In order to determine feasibility 
for this measure in a community, 
political will, existing work 
patterns and meeting schedules 
must be reviewed and gauged. 
The enactment of  a four day work 
week does not require a large 
expenditure of  initial funds. Having 
some employees work four day 
weeks saves little energy.  Entire 
departments and buildings must be 
shut down to realize a true benefit. 

This kind of  
sacrifice is difficult 
in a full-service 
community.

12-24 months of  Utility 
Bills for each facility, 
employee work locations 
and home addresses 
(names can be omitted), 
daily natural gas use in 
order to calculate natural 
gas savings.

3 5



_39

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Planning for a switch to a 
four day workweek, including 
all educational materials, is 
an authorized use of  Energy 
Efficiency Conservation grants 
under the language of  the bill.  
The City of  Troy is actually well 
positioned to execute a four-
day work week without any 
funding, as they have initiated 
such programs in some areas 
of  operation, in the form of  

furlough days.

Typically, the facilities 
department will handle the 
billing and collect historical 
data. The facility manager is 
instrumental in determining the 
actual benefit of  this measure. 
Putting this into action requires 
an education campaign among 
the public to publicize that 
operating hours will change.

Reducing electric costs by 
10% can be significant both 
in terms of  dollars and CO2 
emissions. Additionally, a four 
day workweek saves employees 
money and reduces CO2 
emissions from driving. An added 
bonus is employees typically cite 
a four day workweek as a way to 
increase work/life balance and 
create more flexibility, which 
enhances their job satisfaction.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 22

Much of  the technology required 
to permit telecommuting is 
already available to office 
personnel in Troy.  Department 
managers and white collar 
professionals have remote access 
to workstations and email, and 
typically have City-issued mobile 
phones, occasionally with email 
access.  However, there are 
likely to be additional costs to a 
widespread program, requiring 

City funds.

Existing City staff  would be able 
to implement a more widespread 
telecommuting program if  it 
were deemed valuable to the 
City without a great deal of  
additional outside suppport.

Given that first-person 
interaction with the public 
is a primary component of  
the City’s operation, and 
that telecommuting by some 
employees does not actually 
reduce a building’s energy use, 
there isn’t a great deal of  initial 
benefit to the City.  Employees 
have a benefit in a reduction 
in vehicle trips and time spent, 
however, it would not reduce 

costs at the City 
significantly.

3 5 1

5 4 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 15



_40

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Ho
te

lin
g 

Co
nc

ep
t

LE
ED

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t P
ol

icy

I.P.10

I.P.11

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Green building standards relate to environmental 
sustainability as normal building standards relate 
to safety and structural integrity.  Green building 
standards address such issues as energy use, 
resource waste and CO2 emissions. The pre-eminent 
green building standard is the Green Building 
Council’s Leadership in Energy and Environmental 
Design (LEED) program. 

A great deal of  apprehension 
exists with regard to requiring City 
facilities constructed in the future 
become LEED certified, or required 
to meet any third-party green 
building standard.  While efficiency 
should be at a premium in facility 
design, formally requiring a 
third-party certification could 
complicate public projects.  Elective 
compliance with LEED should be 
encouraged, if  possible.

A projected schedule of  
building projects and 
an estimated cost of  
acquiring LEED status 
so as to make the true 
cost of  this program 
predictable. This 
information is not easy 
to predict beyond a short 
time frame, although a 
rough estimate may be 
possible.

1 3

Office hoteling is the concept in which an employee 
is asked to share his/her workstation with other 
employees.  Generally, office work stations are 
dedicated to an employee, and they create their own 
personal space.  In the concept of  hoteling, cubicles 
and other office equipment are shared based upon 
employees’ needs.   Working out of  various offices 
or telecommuting are also forms of  hoteling.  By 
implementing the hoteling concept, the municipality 
can reduce the office square footage needed, 
decreasing energy costs and spending less money 
overall per employee.

In order to determine feasibility 
for this measure in a community,  
existing work patterns and meeting 
schedules must be reviewed and 
gauged. Given reductions in staff  
and the availability of  excess 
space in Troy, it is unlikely that 
the hoteling concept would have a 
great benefit, and to a degree this 
concept is already in place where 
departments like the Planning 
Department host consultant desks 

and administrative 
employees from 
other departments.

12-24 months of  Utility 
Bills for each facility, 
employee work locations 
and home addresses. 
This is available.

2 5



_41

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

While not specifically mentioned 
in the legislation of  the Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Block 
Grant program, this measure is 
in line with the intention of  the 
bill. The program would likely 
require very little funding, 
because it essentially involves 
the more efficient use of  existing 
resources.

This measure is would require 
some setup time from City IT 
staff  and a degree of  training 
or understanding from existing 
employees, however no new staff  
or personnel would be required.

This easy to implement measure 
may have little benefit, in where 
it can already be implemented, 
it has been implemented.  Most 
City administrative employees 
already work in the same 
facility.  Most departments are 
single-purpose, and spreading 
employees around the facility 
could impact service in a 
negative way.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 17

The implementation of  a green 
building certification standard 
costs nothing, but the impact 
could be that building costs 
could be increased in the future 
by the policy’s requirements.  
There are funding sources 
available for energy efficiency 
and conservation in municipal 
buildings, but it is difficult 
to determine without specific 
projects pinpointed.

No personnel would be required 
to adopt a standard, but LEED 
Accredited Professionals would 
likely be required to implement 
green building programs to 
comply with the policy.  The 
City would require appropriate 
accreditation from the design 
firms hired for upcoming 
projects.

While energy efficiency and 
conservation is an appropriate 
goal for new building 
construction and renovation 
of  government buildings, the 
main benefit for third party 
certification is publicity and 
guidance.  Buildings can 
be made to be certifiable, 
but would operate just as 
efficiently whether or not actual 
certification is achieved.  If  

efficiency is still 
a priority, this 
has no significant 
benefit.3 3 1

4 5 1

T o t a l  S c o r e : 11



_42

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Re
du

ce
 H

ea
t I

sl
an

d 
Ef

fe
ct

Re
du

ce
 L

ig
ht

 P
ol

lu
tio

n

I.BC.1

I.BC.2

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Light pollution results from an overuse of  outdoor 
lighting.  “Sky glow,” or the glow of  a city’s lights as 
seen from a distance, is perhaps the most recognized 
indicator of  light pollution.  Resulting in wasteful 
spending on light that is directed into the sky, 
light pollution also impacts local wildlife, human 
circadian rhythms, and the ability to view stars.  
Reducing light pollution is sometimes as simple as 
lighting only when necessary.  Installing devices 
such as motion sensors, reflectors, and light shields 
represent basic light conservation steps.  Developing 
an acclimation to the dark and decreasing the 
wattage of  lights are other useful measures to 
take.  However, remaining aware of  safety and other 
concerns which require adequate lighting is also 
necessary. 

A reduction in light pollution will not 
always have a significant impact on 
energy use, although if  the program 
involve outdoor sensors and reduced 
lighting intensity, it certainly will.  
The City has a substantial number 
of  outdoor lighting fixtures and 
reducing their intensity, coverage, 
and duration to no more than is 
needed for safety and function 
would have a big impact.  Reduced 
lighting can simply be accomplished 

with a switch out of  
fixtures or bulbs, in 
many cases, but can 
be expensive.

Photometric information 
for areas under 
consideration, technical 
information about the 
fixtures in question, 
and an understanding 
of  minimum light levels 
necessary to acheive 
safe conditions while 
reducing light pollution.   
A qualified lighting 
contractor can provide 

this date 
during 
a scope 
phase.5 5

The urban heat island effect is two-fold. Dark-colored 
surfaces in the urban environment absorb heat from 
the sun in the summer, thus radiating that heat back 
into the air causing urban temperatures to be 6-10 
degrees Fahrenheit higher than in rural locations.  
These surfaces also cause a decrease in evaporative 
cooling capacities.  Pavement cannot retain water 
in the same way that soil and plants can, instead 
allowing rain water to drain into gutters and sewers, 
and decreasing evaporative cooling in the urban 
surroundings.  Higher temperatures then require 
excessive energy to cool buildings, and can increase 
the amount of  air pollution.  The heat island effect 
can be reduced via the introduction of  light-colored 
surfaces and vegetation in place of  impervious, dark 
colored surfaces.

This measure can be incorporated 
into facilities improvement 
projects, implemented as existing 
materials age, or implemented on 
it’s own merit.  Virtually any City 
building could benefit from this 
measure in that the cooling needs 
of  the building would be reduced 
and energy costs limited.  While 
potentially expensive, it would 
likely be done only when existing 
materials were worn out anyway, 

reducing the large 
up-front expense.

Structural information 
about the buildings and 
baseline energy data for 
the structure involved, to 
estimate potential energy 
savings and calculate the 
return on investment. 
This information is 
partially available and 
would be easily obtained 
in the event that a 
building roof  would need 

repair.

4 5



_43

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

This measure would be eligible 
for funding in any grant program 
that permits renovation or 
construction of  energy efficiency 
measures in municipal buildings.  
Also, conventional capital 
improvements funding could 
be used for this measure in 
that it can be incorporated into 
any renovation project for a 
municipal building.

This measure would require 
a specialized contractor and 
potentially a designer conversant 
and experienced with alternative 
roofing materials (white roof, 
green roof) that reduce heat 
island effect.  Once installed, no 
special personnel needs would be 
needed.

This measure could, in certain 
buildings, have a substantial 
impact.  If  the building is not due 
for renovations or new roofing, 
however, it is likely that the 
project would not bear a feasible 
return on investment.  However, 
if  existing roofing is being 
replaced, a white roof  or living 
roof  system could represent a 
decent return and improve the 
heat island effect of  the site.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 22

This measure would be eligible 
for funding in any grant program 
that permits renovation or 
construction of  energy efficiency 
measures in municipal buildings.  
Also, conventional capital 
improvements funding could be 
used for this measure in that 
it can be incorporated into any 
update project for existing lights.  
Also, specific grant programs 
for LED lights and other energy 

efficient lights 
could be leveraged 
to reduce energy 
and light pollution 
simultaneously.

A qualified lighting contractor 
would be required to analyze 
and install specialized lighting 
equipment designed to reduce 
light pollution and reduce energy 
usage.  Such contractors are 
readily accessible.

Reducing light pollution is a 
good goal for aesthetic and 
environmental purposes.  The 
added value to this program is 
that in reducing levels, energy 
consumption is also likely to 
be reduced.  By switching to 
timers and LED lighting fixtures, 
one could save 60% or more in 
annual electricity costs for a 
typical parking lot.

5 5 5

5 4 4

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_44

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Na
tiv

e 
+

 W
at

er
 E

ffi
cie

nt
 L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
Re

du
ce

 W
as

te
wa

te
r

I.BC.3

I.BC.4

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Reducing wastewater (the water collected from 
drains, including rainwater) is essential to 
energy and cost savings.  Treating wastewater 
is significantly more expensive than the cost of  
incoming water. Reducing wastewater generated and 
reusing wastewater where possible can minimize 
this cost. Reducing wastewater begins with educating 
staff  about water-efficiency methods, and continues 
with the appointment of  a staff  member to monitor 
water use.  Making certain that equipment is water 
efficient, guarding against leaks, and reusing 
wastewater are all effective reduction measures.  
Waterless urinals and toilets can also be used to 
conserve wastewater.

Reducing wastewater is a cultural 
as well as a physical measure.  It 
is feasible to reduce wastewater by 
incorporating wastewater capture 
and retreatment measures, which 
can be expensive.  However, water 
use (and therefore costs) can be 
reduced by using low-flow toilets 
and sinks with motion sensors 
etc.  Many of  these elements are 
already present in Troy and can be 
expanded with regular maintenance 

programs.

An understanding of  
water bills, usage, and 
rates to understand the 
return on investment 
for reduction projects, 
as well as an analysis 
of  options for reducing 
wastewater, are 
required.  Most of  this 
information should 
be reliably available 
already at the City.

5 5

Approximately 26 billion gallons of  water are 
consumed daily in the United States, of  which 
approximately 7.8 billion gallons are devoted 
to outdoor uses – mostly landscaping.  Water-
efficient landscaping uses plants appropriate to 
local conditions, efficient irrigation, and suitable 
planning and design to minimize water use.  Plants 
are grouped based on water needs, irrigation is 
scheduled and sometimes uses gray water. Turf  is 
limited.  While education and planning is costly, 
maintenance costs are generally reduced in the 
long-term.  Additionally, water bills will be lower, 
natural resources conserved, and overall energy use 
decreased.

The City of  Troy spends a great 
deal of  money and resources on 
landscaping.  By selecting native and 
more water efficient landscaping 
for park and right-of-way projects, 
as well as on the municipal campus 
or at any City facility, the City can 
reduce its maintenance costs and 
reduce the water use necessary to 
maintain less sustainable species. 
This measure is feasible in that 
it can be implemented little by 

little over time as 
annual landscaping 
materials are 
selected.

Technical information on 
the water use and existing 
plants for a particular 
landscaping installation 
would be necessary to 
understand what species 
of  native plants would 
be feasible, successful, 
and most efficient. This 
would likely require 
collaboration between 
staff  and consultants.

5 4



_45

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

This measure could likely be 
implemented as part of  the City’s 
typical capital expenditures in that 
it involves selecting one material 
over another.  This measure would 
be eligible for funding in any grant 
program that permits renovation or 
construction of  energy efficiency 
measures.  Grant money for energy 
reduction may be applicable to this 
measure, but largely it would be 
implemented as part of  the City’s 

annual landscape 
planting.

Some specific guidance by a 
qualified landscape contractor 
familiar with native species may 
be required initially and during 
installation, but City staff  could 
be trained to maintain new 
plants, and especially how to 
reduce the potable water used to 
maintain the plants.

This measure would likely 
take a series of  seasons to 
implement on a broad basis, and 
would also require a significant 
amount of  education for City 
staff.  Once installed, native 
plants are heartier, requiring 
less water and resources. They 
also survive much better over 
time, reducing potential costs for 
replacement. Actual benefit can’t 
be calculated without a thorough 

understanding 
of  existing 
and proposed 
materials.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 22

This measure could likely be 
implemented as part of  the City’s 
typical capital expenditures in 
that regular maintenance and 
replacement of  fixtures is an 
ongoing program.  These types of  
improvements should be eligible 
for funding in any grant program 
that permits renovation or 
construction of  energy efficiency 
measures.  However, the City’s 
own capital expenditures may 

be limited in the 
coming years 
until revenues are 
increased.

The City’s existing maintenance 
personnel and qualified 
contractors would be able to 
implement and maintain water-
saving features.

A reduction in wastewater is a 
reduction in initial water use, 
which will reduce costs to the City.  
Limiting wastewater and making 
better use of  water resources will 
save the community money and 
energy over time. Wastewater is 
a specific subset of  overall water 
conservation measures, in that 
non-potable water recaptured 
from wastewater uses can be 
used for some things, such as 

landscaping.

4 5 5

5 4 4

T o t a l  S c o r e : 24



_46

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Re
du

ce
 P

ot
ab

le
 W

at
er

Ob
ta

in
 E

ne
rg

y 
Au

di
ts

I.BC.5

I.BC.6

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Energy audits can determine how and where energy 
is used in municipal buildings, thereby identifying 
opportunities for saving energy and cost reductions.  
An audit can also provide the data necessary to 
determine a building’s carbon footprint, allowing for 
the development of  policies to reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions.  Audits can yield recommendations as 
varied as physical improvements and improving data 
management. 

Energy auditors are readily 
available and affordable in the 
area.  A good energy audit can 
reveal many things from low-
hanging fruit such as behavioral 
issues and small changes like 
light bulbs, to more impactful 
renovations and upgrades that can 
improve a building’s efficiency, 
such as new HVAC equipment.

12-24 months of  utility 
bills for each facility. 

5 5

Reducing potable water use can be achieved through 
retrofitting existing buildings and through careful 
design of  new buildings.  Replacing plumbing 
fixtures and appliances with water efficient 
versions is an initial step, e.g. high-efficiency toilets 
which use 20% less water, waterless urinals, etc.  
Municipalities can also establish guidelines for 
new municipal buildings.  In a more basic sense, 
leaks should be reported and fixed in an expedited 
manner.

Reducing potable water is a 
cultural as well as a physical 
measure.  It is feasible to reduce 
water use by incorporating 
wastewater capture and 
retreatment measures, which can 
be expensive.  However, water 
use (and therefore costs) can be 
reduced by using low-flow toilets 
and sinks with motion sensors 
etc.  Many of  these elements 
are already present in Troy and 

can be expanded 
with regular 
maintenance 
programs.

An understanding of  
water bills, usage, and 
rates to understand the 
return on investment for 
reduction projects, as 
well as an analysis of  
options for reducing all 
water use, are required.  
Most of  this information 
is already available at 
the City.

5 5



_47

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

This measure could likely be 
implemented as part of  the City’s 
typical capital expenditures in 
that regular maintenance and 
replacement of  fixtures is an 
ongoing program.  These types of  
improvements should be eligible 
for funding in any grant program 
that permits renovation or 
construction of  energy efficiency 
measures.  However, the City’s 
own capital expenditures may 

be limited in the 
coming years 
until revenues 
are increased.

The City’s existing maintenance 
personnel and qualified 
contractors would be able to 
implement and maintain water-
saving features.

A reduction in potable water will 
reduce costs to the City.  While 
water reduction may not always 
appear as clearly related to 
energy use as renewable energy, 
limiting water use and making 
better use of  water resources 
will save the community money 
and energy over time.  

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 24

Energy audits are immediately 
eligible for funding with the 
City’s EECBG grant.  They are 
affordable and will provide 
immediate benefits to the City. 
In the future, the City should 
consider having audits done 
of  all City facilities, even with 
general operating finds, as they 
will provide benefits to the 
building managers.

Qualified energy auditors are 
readily available in the area.

Without any substantial 
investment, the City can 
benefit from a high degree 
of  understanding on how 
to maximize the savings 
potential for its facilities that 
receive an audit.  Many audit 
recommendations require no 
investment at all, such as 
programming existing HVAC 
equipment or implementing 
employee practices. An audit is 

an investment in 
education about 
the City’s existing 
resources.5 5 5

4 5 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_48

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Au
to

m
at

ic 
Li

gh
tin

g 
Co

nt
ro

ls
In

cr
ea

se
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

In
su

la
tio

n

I.BC.7

I.BC.8

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Building insulation decreases heating and cooling 
needs by resisting the flow of  heat from a warmer 
to a cooler space.  Inadequate insulation causes 
energy waste; approximately 50 to 70 percent of  the 
energy used in the average American home comes 
from heating and cooling.  The amount of  energy 
conserved will depend on the local climate, the size 
and construction of  the building, and the living 
habits of  its inhabitants.  The best insulation type 
will be situation dependent, based on accessibility, 
space available, availability, and price. Comparison 
of  insulation types is based on the R-value, which 
is a measure of  the resistance to heat flow, and is 
dependent on the type of  material and its thickness. 
.

An advanced understanding of  
the existing conditions within 
each building under consideration 
must be obtained prior to fully 
determining the feasibility of  this 
measure.  However, it is likely 
that one or more of  the City’s 
buildings would benefit from 
improved insulation.  Like any 
building improvement measure, 
it is likely that this is a feasible, 
realistic, and obtainable measure 

to reduce energy 
consumption.

A complete building 
energy audit will reveal 
potential areas for 
insulation improvement.  
An auditor will analyze 
the building envelope 
and identify areas where 
insulation could enhance 
energy conservation 
and efficiency.  Audits 
are available from local 
vendors at a reasonable 

cost.

5 5

Automatic lighting controls offer a mechanism for 
minimizing lighting usage, thereby reducing lighting 
and air conditioning costs.  Lighting sensors can 
respond to motion, daylight levels, and usage 
concerns to assure that artificial lighting is used 
only when necessary.  Added benefits include 
improved safety and comfort.

Automatic lighting controls are 
widely spread throughout City 
of  Troy facilities.  Often, they 
simply involve a seeing eye 
switch available at many home 
improvement suppliers.  This is an 
easily achieved measure with an 
immediate payback.

A basic understanding 
of  the electrical 
system where 
applicable to select 
and install motion-
detecting switches and 
equipment.

5 5



_49

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

This measure could likely be 
implemented as part of  the City’s 
typical capital expenditures in 
that regular maintenance and 
replacement of  switches and 
lighting is an ongoing program.  
These types of  improvements 
should be eligible for funding in 
any grant program that permits 
renovation or construction of  
energy efficiency measures.  
While the City’s own capital 

expenditures may 
be limited in the 
coming years, this 
measure is very 
affordable.

No specialized personnel would 
be required.  An electrician 
can easily install many motion 
sensing switches in a single day.

This easy to implement measure 
can have a large impact in terms 
of  dollars saved.  If  widespread, 
it will have a noticeable impact 
on electrical use and should be 
implemented wherever possible.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25

This measure could likely be 
implemented as part of  the City’s 
typical capital expenditures in 
that regular maintenance of  
structures is an ongoing program.  
Insulation would be eligible for 
funding in any grant program 
that permits renovation or 
construction of  energy efficiency 
measures.  

Enhanced insulation can 
be installed by a qualified 
contractor, readily obtainable 
within the community.  The 
type and cost of  contractor 
would depend on the type and 
application of  the insulation 
materials themselves, as many 
different varieties  of  insulation 
are available depending on the 
situation.

Improving the building envelope 
is one of  the fastest ways to 
increase the energy efficiency of  
an existing building.  If  possible, 
based on the construction and 
existing conditions within a 
building, new insulation can 
provide a significant benefit in 
that a tighter envelope loses 
less heated or cooled air, and 
therefore requires less HVAC 
capacity throughout the year.  

Given the relative 
low cost of  
insulation, this 
project has a 
rapid payback.

5 5 5

5 5 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_50

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Pa
ss

iv
e 

So
la

r H
ea

tin
g

In
st

al
l D

ay
lig

ht
in

g

I.BC.9

I.BC.10

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Effective daylighting will depend on the internal 
layout of  a particular space; however there 
are measures to increase daylighting without 
completely redesigning a building.  Daylighting 
provides optimum levels of  light, can improve 
employee comfort, and results in significant energy 
savings. Ensuring that debris and landscaping is 
not obstructing windows, installing skylights, and 
corresponding shading devices are first steps toward 
achieving proper daylighting.  Windows and openings 
should be north-oriented or diffused, as direct 
lighting can cause glare and discomfort.  Proper 
shading is paramount in allowing for controlled 
solar gain.  Lightshelves and angled ceilings can 
also be used to reflect light around a room, further 
diffusing it.  Daylighting, when used effectively, can 
significantly reduce costs.

Daylighting is a common retrofit.  
Skylights, larger windows, light 
shelves, and the shades or other 
window treatments that allow you 
to control light levels, can usually 
be installed in any building.

No special data or 
information is needed 
aside from a good 
understanding of  how 
the space to be daylit 
will be used to properly 
design daylighting 
strategies and avoid 
negative issues like 
glare.

5 5

Passive solar heating is mechanically simple and 
reliable, offering a highly cost effective means of  
heating buildings.  If  incorporated into the original 
design, there can be little to no additional cost in 
installation.  A variety of  methods exist; site and 
climate will largely determine which approach is 
most appropriate.  Sunlight enters via the collector, 
is absorbed on a dark surface, and is stored in 
thermal mass, such as a masonry wall.  The thermal 
mass then distributes the solar energy as the 
interior temperature drops.  Variations such as 
greenhouses, water walls, roof  ponds, and flat plate 
solar collectors, work in a similar manner: direct 
gain, indirect gain, isolated gain.

This technology is extremely 
efficient in terms of  operation and 
can provide a significant benefit; 
however, it is relatively difficult 
to apply in a retrofit situation.  
When contemplated as part of  
the original design, it is easily 
achieved for no additional cost. For 
a renovation, HVAC systems can be 
compromised. For instance, thermal 
advantages may be available by 
adding skylights in winter, but the 

same skylights 
could force the 
air conditioning 
to work harder in 
summer.

An in-depth and 
sophisticated 
understanding of  building 
energy modeling is 
usually required to apply 
passive solar heating to 
an existing building.  It 
would take a specialized 
contracted engineer to 
design and implement 
a system that would 
not compromise other 

systems 
in the 
building.3 3



_51

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Like any building improvement 
contemplated for energy 
efficiency, it is likely that energy 
grant dollars would be eligible 
for this project.  However, energy 
savings must be quantifiable and 
accurate in advance, which would 
require a sophisticated and 
potentially expensive process to 
obtain.  Therefore, while grant 
money may fund this project, it 
has a high cost barrier for entry.

It would require specialized 
design personnel to design and 
install a passive solar heating 
system in a retrofit application.  
Once installed, no special 
personnel would be required.

This measure has a potentially 
high value in new design and 
construction applications.  
However, in retrofit applications 
it is often expensive, and 
potentially even impossible to 
implement, for less payback 
than other systems.  If  the City 
considers new construction in the 
future, such systems should be 
contemplated.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 16

Like any building improvement 
contemplated for energy 
efficiency, it is likely that energy 
grant dollars would be eligible 
for this project.  However, energy 
savings must be quantifiable 
and accurate in advance.  In this 
measure, the number of  lights 
that would be left off  and for 
how long would provide the 
information needed to make a 
determination.  

It may require specialized design 
personnel to design and install 
daylighting elements in a retrofit 
application.  Once installed, 
no special personnel would be 
required for this passive system.

Daylighting has added value in 
that it can reduce energy costs 
for lighting, but can also improve 
the quality of  life for the 
building’s inhabitants.  However, 
care must be taken when 
designing daylighting systems in 
that it can have a negative effect 
on heating and cooling in that 
the building envelope may be 
altered or compromised.

5 4 4

3 4 3

T o t a l  S c o r e : 23



_52

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

En
er

gy
 E

ffi
cie

nt
 L

ig
ht

 F
ix

tu
re

s
Na

tu
ra

l V
en

til
at

io
n

I.BC.11

I.BC.12

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Natural ventilation can be used as an alternative 
to air-conditioning, resulting in a 10-30% savings 
in energy consumption.  Natural ventilation uses 
natural wind forces and buoyancy to circulate 
fresh air through buildings.  Buoyancy, better 
known as stack ventilation, is attributable to the 
difference in indoor and outdoor air temperature 
and moisture.  The greater the difference in indoor/
outdoor temperature and moisture, and the height 
of  the opening, the greater the resulting natural air 
flow.  Since it is not effective at reducing humidity, 
natural ventilation use is limited in humid climates.  
Employee satisfaction and comfort can be increased 
when natural ventilation is used in combination 
with daylighting, and offers control over thermal 
conditions.   

Most City of  Troy buildings were 
designed with closed systems 
and no opening windows, or at 
least HVAC systems that were 
designed to operate optimally as 
closed systems.  While opening 
windows can certainly provide 
natural ventilation, they must 
be implemented carefully so as 
not to “trick” the HVAC system 
and force the air conditioning or 
furnace to operate at higher levels 

than necessary, 
consuming 
additional energy.

A sophisticated analysis 
from an engineer or 
architect may be necessary 
to determine the feasibility 
of  implementing a natural 
ventilation system in a 
retrofit application.  A 
thorough understanding 
of  the buildings current 
energy use would also be 
required. New construction 
applications would not 

require 
any 
special 
data.3 3

Light emitting diodes (LED) produce light with little 
energy use.  Over the last 20 years LED technology 
has expanded in regard to the available colors, 
intensity, and power consumption.  LEDs use much 
less power than traditional incandescent bulbs, 
have a longer life span, and do not contain harmful 
chemicals.  LEDs can be used to replace traffic and 
street lights to reduce power consumption and utility 
expenditures.  LEDs can also be easily dimmed and 
arrayed to illuminate focused areas.  Many cities 
across the U.S. are now installing LEDs, including 
Ann Arbor, Anchorage, San Jose, Los Angeles and 
Pittsburgh. 

LED lights are now designed 
to retrofit nearly any existing 
fixture.  They are far more efficient 
and have become affordable.  
Existing fixtures and bulbs must 
be changed, and the payback for 
LED systems has become far more 
attractive.

A sophisticated 
understanding of  
existing lighting 
systems and annual 
energy costs. A 
qualified LED contractor 
will conduct this 
analysis at no charge.

5 5



_53

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

LED lighting is specifically 
mentioned in the EECBG program 
as an eligible activity.  LED 
systems can also be installed as 
part of  ongoing replacement or 
maintenance of  existing lighting.

Specialized LED technicians will 
design and install LED fixtures, 
but regular City employees can 
maintain these systems after 
installation with no advanced 
training.

LED lighting can save over half  
the annual energy cost for 
existing lighting in many cases.  
The actual payback depends on 
the operation schedule, intensity, 
and number of  existing lights.  
While premium LED fixtures 
are more expensive to install, 
they last longer and provide 
more light with less energy by 
providing optimum cooling for 
the LED units.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25

Building improvements, such 
as the installation of  a natural 
ventilation system, may be 
eligible for grant money in the 
EECBG or other programs if  it can 
be demonstrated that a reduction 
in energy consumption can be 
quantified.  Installation of  such 
systems may be cost prohibitive 
if  the building is not conducive to 
the integration of  such a system, 
however.

Specialized technicians will 
design and install natural 
ventilation systems, or they are 
conceived of  at the time the 
building was designed. Regular 
City employees can maintain 
these systems after installation 
with no special training.  

When conceived of  as part of  the 
buildings initial design, natural 
ventilation is a tremendous way 
to increase indoor air quality and 
potentially regulate temperature 
without relying exclusively on 
conventional HVAC. However, when 
used in a  retrofit situation, they 
can be costly and ineffective if  
not done properly.  In fact, a poor 
natural ventilation system can 
increase energy use by requiring 

the HVAC system 
to work overtime 
treating outdoor 
air.4 5 2

5 5 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 17



_54

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

En
er

gy
 E

ffi
cie

nt
 A

pp
lia

nc
es

Ef
fic

ie
nt

 H
ea

tin
g 

+
 C

oo
lin

g

I.BC.13

I.BC.14

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Heating and cooling loads account for the majority 
of  building energy usage. Simple measures can 
reduce this usage, such as changing air filters 
regularly (at least every 3 months), maintaining 
HVAC equipment yearly, installing a programmable 
thermostat, and sealing heating and cooling ducts. 
Assuring that equipment is installed properly and 
is sized according to building size and usage is also 
important. Improperly installed systems with duct 
leakage can cause a system to deliver only 70% of  
the cooling it produces.  Installation of  heating and 
cooling systems specifically designed to be energy 
efficient is an option at the expiration of  an older 
system.

In Troy, the City Hall and other 
buildings have aging HVAC systems 
that are nearing the end of  their 
useful life.  Although high in initial 
cost, significant HVAC upgrades are 
often necessary.  The City has a 
track record of  upgrading systems, 
controls, and supporting duct work 
to improve energy efficiency and 
can continue to do so as the need 
arises.

A current and 
sophisticated review of  
the building’s existing 
systems and use, as well 
as a realistic idea of  the 
buildings long-term needs, 
must be established to 
determine the capacity 
of  HVAC systems.  This 
information can be 
collected by a qualified 
contractor.

5 5

Energy efficient appliances can use 10-50% less 
energy and water than ordinary models.  These 
models can be more expensive, savings on utility 
bills will more than offset the initial cost.  The best 
way to ensure that an appliance is energy efficient 
is to read the energy guide label now required by 
the FTC.   Energy guide labels provide the annual 
energy consumption of  appliances, and are useful for 
comparing appliances.  Additionally, small steps can 
be taken manually to assure that you are using your 
appliances efficiently, such as adjusting refrigerator 
temperature based on the season, using ceiling fans, 
and turning off  computers when not in use.

Appliances routinely require 
maintenance and replacement 
through City facilities.  These 
could include kitchen, laundry, 
computing, and other equipment.  
It is feasible and advisable to 
select the most energy efficient 
models the budget will allow.

In order to make a 
determination of  value 
for an energy efficient 
appliance, it is useful 
to know the anticipated 
use and existing bill 
for the old equipment 
so as to determine 
potential savings when 
weighing cost factors. 
This information should 
be readily available.

5 5



_55

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

This measure is relatively cost 
effective and can be implemented 
over time as equipment is 
replaced.  The purchaser can 
simply select the most energy 
efficient model the budget can 
afford, taking into consideration 
the additional savings to be 
realized over a conventional 
model.  Current EECBG grant 
money may also cover the 
purchase of  some appliances.

No special personnel are required 
to implement this measure.

This easy to implement measure 
can have a large impact in terms 
of  dollars saved, gallons of  gas 
reduced, and CO2 emissions 
reduced.  The purchase of  
energy star rated electronics 
and equipment can result in 
a rapid payback, even if  they 
were to cost more initially.  In 
many cases, energy efficient 
alternatives are within the same 
price range as conventional 

equipment.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25

This measure can be funded by 
the EECBG program, as it directly 
relates to the programs mission 
of  increasing energy efficiency 
in government buildings.  
Also, improvements in energy 
efficiency can be programmed 
into conventional capital 
improvements planning for 
replacement of  existing systems.

As with any HVAC installation, 
qualified contractors would be 
required to install and optimize 
any new equipment.  However, 
once installed, only periodic 
specialized maintenance would 
be required and City employees 
could largely maintain any 
system.

The majority of  the building’s 
energy use is related to 
regulating indoor temperature.  
If  the building envelope 
is operating optimally, the 
greatest leap in efficiency can 
be made from upgrading to 
more efficient HVAC equipment.  
Given that many systems in 
the City’s portfolio will require 
improvement in the next ten 
years, this is an achievable and 

realistic measure 
with a great 
payback.5 5 5

5 5 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_56

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Pu
rc

ha
se

 L
oc

al
 M

at
er

ia
ls

10
0%

 R
ec

yc
le

d 
Pa

pe
r

I.BC.15

I.BC.16.a

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Recycling can help to minimize both production 
energy usage and waste.  Paper production accounts 
for approximately 35% of  all felled trees.  Recycling 
just half  of  the world’s paper usage could save 
20 million acres of  forest.  In addition to saving 
natural resources, recycling offers a 40-64% 
energy reduction.  Paper accounts for about 35% 
of  municipal solid waste, and the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) determined that recycling 
creates 75% less air pollution and 35% less water 
pollution than making non-recycled paper.  Given 
the abundance and easy access to recycled paper, 
this is a simple way to conserve energy.  Energy 
conservation can also come from in-house recycling 
(e.g. double-sided printing, “scrap” paper bins, etc.)

100% recycled paper is affordable 
and available at all office supply 
vendors.  A simple policy change 
would make this an easily achieved 
measure that is feasible.

An estimate of  the 
amount of  paper used 
by the City to determine 
potential cost when 
seeking vendors 
to supply the City 
with paper would be 
required.

5 5

Buying local materials can reap both economic and 
environmental benefits.  Local purchasing reduces 
greenhouse gas emissions by reducing shipping 
and transportation mileage, lowers packaging 
material needs, and decreases waste from unwanted 
bulk purchases.  Purchasing local materials also 
contributes to the local economy, making the 
community stronger and more sustainable.

The City purchases millions of  
dollars worth of  goods every 
year.  While not necessarily 
reducing the City’s cost or actual 
energy consumption, buying local 
does have a net overall benefit 
to the region in terms of  energy 
saved.  Landscaping materials, 
food, furniture, building supplies, 
and other goods produced or 
manufactured within 100 or 200 
miles would be an overall positive 

benefit to the State 
or region.

Knowledge of  local 
alternatives for goods 
purchased would be 
required to make local 
buying decisions.  This 
would take no additional 
effort beyond what 
is normally done in 
obtaining information 
about potential goods for 
purchase.

5 5



_57

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Local goods are not necessarily 
energy efficient in and of  
themselves, and are therefore 
not necessarily covered by any 
grants solely based on their 
point of  manufacture.  The most 
important factor in considering 
cost for local goods is that the 
purchasing rules of  the City 
allow for local materials to be 
competitive, even when that 
may not always be the most 

inexpensive 
option.

No special personnel needs are 
required, although this measure 
could have a benefit, if  adopted 
across the region, in promoting 
local job creation.

This easy to implement measure 
could, if  adopted across the State 
or region, have a large impact 
with regard to overall energy 
use.  However, it does not have a 
significant direct energy benefit 
that the City could expect.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 20

The City routinely buys paper 
products for use in City 
operations.  Although some 
departments have significantly 
reduced paper use by switching 
to paperless applications, 
records, and meeting packets, 
there will undoubtedly remain 
a need for purchasing of  paper 
for the foreseeable future.  If  
similar quality paper at a 
similar cost can be found, 100% 

recycled paper 
should be paid 
for with typical 
departmental 
budgets.

No special personnel would be 
required for the purchase of  
recycled paper.

There is little immediate energy 
efficiency or conservation 
improvements in terms of  
actual energy dollars spent to 
operate City buildings.  However, 
recycled paper does present 
an overall benefit in terms of  
waste reduction, energy savings, 
and natural features protection.  
In other words, it is good for 
the larger regional, state, and 
country, but would have little 

immediate effect 
on the City’s own 
energy bottom 
line.5 5 2

4 3 3

T o t a l  S c o r e : 22



_58

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 F

rie
nd

ly
 S

up
pl

ie
s

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n

I.BC.16.b

I.T.1

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

According to the U.S. Census American Community 
Survey, the average American commute takes over 
24 minutes each way.  That equates to over 100 
hours a year in the car, well over the two weeks 
vacation time most Americans take.  Besides the 
monetary expense and the effect commuting can 
have on an individual’s mental health, the cumulative 
effect of  fuel consumption is a major source of  
green house gas emissions.  Alternative forms of  
transportation such as walking, biking, public transit 
and carpooling, can get commuters out of  their 
cars.  The City can encourage alternative commuting 
for employees in many ways, such as reducing 
parking spaces, providing transit passes for free, 
setting up ride-share boards, creating a friendly 
interdepartmental commuter challenge, and providing 
shared vehicles for emergency needs.   

Several of  the items identified in 
this measure, such as ride share 
boards and creating a commuter 
challenge program, can be done 
at little or no cost.  Providing 
incentives for transit ridership, 
such as paying for passes, could 
be more difficult due to the lack of  
adequate existing transit service in 
Troy.  Also, reducing parking spaces 
and proving vehicles could increase 
costs with little benefit.  Overall, 

this measure may 
be possible, but 
unlikely until access 
is improved.

Information about 
commuting habits of  
employees, a study 
regarding the potential 
cost and availability of  
providing transit passes, 
and costs of  providing 
City vehicles for shared 
carpools would also be 
required.  This collection 
of  information relies 
on the willingness of  

employes 
to be 
a part 
of  the 
program.

2 3

Buying recycled and re-manufactured office products 
(e.g. recycled toilet paper, office paper, ink for 
printers, etc.) is a simple step toward achieving 
greater energy efficiency.  Re-using supplies within 
the office (e.g. double-sided printing, promoting 
use of  mugs rather than disposable cups) can 
be equally straightforward and valuable.  Office 
products should be non-toxic, recyclable and/or 
made from recycled content, re-manufactured, or 
re-usable.  Even office furniture can be purchased 
from retailers specializing in furniture made from 
recycled materials. Many companies offer a variety 
of  environmentally friendly office products, some 
offer specialized products, such as Xerox’s solid ink 
cartridges which produce 90% less waste.   

Environmentally friendly office 
supplies are affordable and 
available at office supply vendors, 
many of  whom specifically call out 
eco-friendly supplies.  A simple 
policy change would make this an 
easily achieved measure that is 
feasible.

An estimate of  the 
supplies used by the 
City to determine 
potential cost when 
seeking vendors to 
supply the City would 
be required.

5 5



_59

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

The City routinely buys office 
supplies for use in City 
operations.  If  similar quality 
supplies at a similar cost can be 
found, environmentally friendly 
alternatives should be paid 
for with the same funds that 
would have bought conventional 
supplies.

No special personnel would be 
required for the purchase of  
environmentally-friendly office 
supplies.

There is little immediate energy 
efficiency or conservation 
improvements in terms of  
actual energy dollars spent to 
operate City buildings.  However, 
environmentally-friendly office 
supplies do present an overall 
benefit in terms of  waste 
reduction, energy savings, and 
natural features.  While good for 
the larger regional,state, and 
country, but would have little 

immediate effect 
on the City’s own 
energy bottom 
line.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 22

It is not clear if  the EECBG 
program would subsidize the 
costs of  implementing a full 
alternative transportation 
program that included providing 
carpooling vehicles or paying 
for bus passes.  However, it is 
likely that the grant could pay 
for portions of  the program that 
would lead to increased transit 
ridership or reduced vehicle trips 
or fuel usage.  There are also 

many transit-
oriented grants 
available.

No specialized personnel would 
be required to implement these 
items within the alternative 
transportation measure, but 
it would take strong central 
leadership and department heads 
committing to the program and 
encouraging and educating their 
staff  to participate.

This measure would actually 
show a likely reduction in energy 
use for getting City staff  to 
work.  However, that cost is 
currently born by the employees 
themselves, and is not subsidized 
by the City.  The City does 
provide carpool vehicles for 
employees to use for official 
business, such as attending 
conferences, etc., saving the City 
from paying multiple mileage 

reimbursements.

4 4 3

5 5 2

T o t a l  S c o r e : 16



_60

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Ca
rp

oo
lin

g
Po

lic
e 

Fl
ee

t M
an

ag
em

en
t

I.T.2

I.T.3

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Public safety is a very important, but very energy 
intensive, governmental function.  Police patrols 
happen 24 hours a day and vehicles rarely get 
turned off.  Police vehicles are frequently chosen 
for a combination of  handling, speed, and cost, with 
less regard to fuel efficiency.  Often, these factors 
result in the purchase of  vehicles with large eight-
cylinder engines.  There are alternative vehicles 
that have smaller engines or are hybrids, get better 
fuel economy, and still serve the high performance 
demand necessary for police enforcement.  By 
making the small switch from a V-8 to a V-6 engine, 
a police force can reduce its fuel use by 20% per 
year.  At $3/Gallon, and 200,000 gallons a year, a 
community could save $120,000 in gasoline expenses.  
Additionally, this measure has been shown to reduce 
CO2 emissions by several percent. 

This measure may be feasible for a 
portion of  the public safety fleet.  
Currently, options for pursuit rated 
vehicles are limited, although many 
police forces are shifting to six-
cylinder, hybrid, or turbocharged 
cars with better fuel economy for 
other personnel, such as detectives 
or administration.  Smaller 
displacement cars may eventually 
be suitable for all police activities.  
The Ford Police Interceptor is 

nearing the end 
of  production, and 
will be replaced by 
higher efficiency 
models. 

Detailed information 
about anticipated 
usage and a set of  
unique specification 
requirements for 
different vehicles within 
the Police Department 
would be required to 
determine if  smaller 
displacement or hybrid 
models would be suitable 
for Police duty.

4 5

A carpool consists of  two or more people who drive 
together in a private vehicle.  There are a variety 
of  ways to encourage employee carpooling, such as 
free, reduced cost, or preferred parking, rideshare 
matching to duplicate schedules and commuting 
areas, and prizes.   This measure does not include 
consideration for proving City owned vehicles 
for carpooling, only incentivising carpooling for 
employees in their own vehicles.

This measure mainly involves 
facilitation and education, and 
costs little or no money to 
implement.  This measure could 
almost exclusively be completed 
through the City’s intraweb.

No specific data would be 
required to complete this 
measure.

5 5



_61

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Alternative transportation 
programming is specifically 
mentioned in the legislation of  the 
Energy Efficiency and Conservation 
Block Grant program, and it is in 
line with the intention of  the bill. 
However, it would require little to 
no actual funding.

This measure would require 
no specialized personnel, and 
what little actual effort would 
be required on the City’s behalf  
(facilitating the organization of  
rideshare pools) could be done 
by existing personnel, such 
as the Information Technology 
department.

This easy to implement measure 
can have a large impact in terms 
of  dollars saved, gallons of  gas 
reduced, and CO2 emissions 
reduced. However, that cost is 
born by the employees of  the 
City, not the City itself. Therefore, 
there is less benefit to the City’s 
own bottom line,.  However, in the 
face of  financial concessions from 
City staff, and potentially rising 
fuel costs, promoting a culture of  

carpooling could 
become a benefit 
for employees 
and help retain 
City workers.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 23

The EECBG grant can cover 
the difference between a 
conventional vehicle and an 
alternative fuel vehicle.  For 
instance, the difference between 
a Ford Fusion and a Fusion 
Hybrid can be funded.  The result 
is a car that costs the City the 
same, but with expanded fuel 
economy, reducing the overall 
cost of  ownership . Even without 
grant support (depending on 

the use) the 
additional cost of  
a hybrid could be 
paid back by the 
fuel savings.

No specialized personnel would 
be required to implement this 
measure, although the overall 
economy should continue to be 
carefully monitored by the Fleet 
Manager to identify energy 
savings and calculate payback 
data. 

While it can not necessarily be 
done quickly, as vehicles mature 
and are replaced, alternative 
fuel or smaller displacement 
vehicles should be considered.  
The City Fleet Manager has 
already shown significant fuel 
savings for vehicles throughout 
the City’s departments for hybrid 
pilot projects.  The City should 
use EECBG funds to cover the 
difference between vehicles 

the City needs 
to buy anyway, 
and the hybrid 
alternative.5 5 5

5 5 3

T o t a l  S c o r e : 24



_62

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Pu
rc

ha
se

 D
ie

se
l P

ow
er

ed
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
Pr

ov
id

e 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
Fu

el
 V

eh
icl

es

I.T.4

I.T.5

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Hybrid vehicles combine two or more technologies, 
generally an internal combustion engine merged with 
a battery powered electric motor.  The electric motor 
aids the gas engine in starting and accelerating. 
While idling, the car typically runs on electric power 
alone.  Thus, the use of  gasoline is reduced, as are 
toxic emissions.  Technology continues to advance 
– some vehicles now have systems where each time 
the driver uses the brakes the battery is recharged.  
While a traditional vehicle generally retains only 
60% of  their value after a five year period a 
hybrid vehicle retains 75%. These technologies are 
currently evolving rapidly and fresh approaches to 
hybrids are occurring regularly.

The City has already purchased 
some hybrid vehicles, and is 
actively reviewing long-term fuel 
usage data for these units.  In 
many instances, the Fleet Manager 
has determined that in the City of  
Troy’s unique patterns of  use, that 
hybrids usually result in a large 
net savings to the City.

Detailed information 
about anticipated 
usage and a set of  
unique specification 
requirements for 
different vehicles or 
pieces of  equipment 
would be required to 
determine if  hybrid 
models would be suitable 
for City duty.  This 
information is available 

from the 
Fleet 
Manager.5 5

Diesel-powered vehicles are a less known fuel-
efficient option.  In response to EPA mandates in late 
2006, ultra-low-sulfur diesel (ULSD) is now a product 
of  oil refineries.  “Clean Diesel,” as it is called, must 
have sulfur concentrations of  no more than 15 parts 
per million (ppm).  In addition, maximizing a diesel’s 
fuel economy can lead to 9 extra miles per gallon.    
Given the fluctuating cost of  diesel versus gasoline, 
it is difficult to predict the actual potential savings, 
which is also heavily reliant on usage and driving or 
operating habits of  staff  who use the vehicles and 
equipment.

The City has already purchased 
some diesel equipment, and is 
actively reviewing long-term fuel 
usage data for these units.  In 
many instances, the Fleet Manager 
has determined that in the City of  
Troy’s unique patterns of  use, that 
diesel, given the higher fuel costs 
per gallon, does not usually result 
in a net savings to the City.

Detailed information 
about anticipated 
usage and a set of  
unique specification 
requirements for 
different vehicles or 
pieces of  equipment 
would be required to 
determine if  diesel 
models would be suitable 
for City duty.  This 
information is available 

from the 
Fleet 
Manager.2 5



_63

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

The EECBG grant can cover the 
difference between a conventional 
vehicle and an alternative fuel 
vehicle, and may cover diesel or 
biodiesel vehicles. The result is a 
car that costs the City the same, 
but with greatly expanded fuel 
economy, reducing the overall cost 
of  ownership . Even without grant 
support, depending on the use, the 
additional cost of  a diesel might 
be paid back by the savings in fuel 

costs, although 
data from Fleet 
Management 
suggests otherwise 
for Troy

This measure is best managed by 
the Fleet Manager in cooperation 
with the City Manager’s office. 
The manager would need to 
meet with department heads to 
determine their needs and work 
to find a satisfactory vehicle. 
Methods for accurate recording 
of  mileage and fuel use may also 
be required.

While it can not necessarily be 
done quickly, as vehicles mature 
and are replaced, diesel vehicles 
should be considered.  At this 
time, Troy information suggests 
that diesels may not show a 
savings in the current climate, 
given the habits of  the drivers 
who use them and volatile diesel 
fuel costs.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 19

The EECBG grant can cover 
the difference between a 
conventional vehicle and a hybrid 
vehicle. The result is a car that 
costs the City the same, but with 
greatly expanded fuel economy, 
reducing the overall cost of  
ownership . Even without grant 
support, depending on the use, 
the additional cost of  a hybrid 
usually will be paid back by the 
savings in fuel costs, based on 

data from Troy’s 
experience thus 
far with Ford 
hybrids.

This measure is best managed by 
the Fleet Manager in cooperation 
with the City Manager’s office. 
The manager would need to 
meet with department heads to 
determine their needs and work 
to find a satisfactory vehicle. 
Methods for accurate recording 
of  mileage and fuel use may also 
be required.

While it can not necessarily be 
done quickly, as vehicles mature 
and are replaced, hybrid vehicles 
should be considered.  At this 
time, Troy information suggests 
that hybrids do show a savings 
for the City’s use.

5 5 5

5 5 2

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_64

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Av
er

ag
e 

Fu
el

 E
co

no
m

y
Pr

io
rit

y 
Pa

rk
in

g 
fo

r H
yb

rid
 V

eh
icl

es

I.T.6

I.T.7

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

A reduction in personal vehicle demand for gasoline 
is one of  the most efficient ways to lessen crude 
oil consumption and both the dependence and 
emissions that come from gasoline usage.  Hybrid 
or alternative fuel vehicles combine two or more 
technologies, thereby reducing traditional gasoline 
use and reducing toxic emissions.  Not only are 
hybrid vehicles more fuel efficient, they generally 
have better mileage and greater valve retention.  
Providing priority parking (e.g. alternative fuel 
vehicle parking bays near building entrances, 
free meter parking) for hybrid or alternative fuel 
vehicles can incentivize their use, encouraging more 
individuals to drive vehicles less hazardous to the 
environment.

This measure would require very 
minimal effort and expense, but 
would be a visible sign that the 
City is giving a high priority to 
conservation. Also, the City has 
extra parking available in most 
areas, including City Hall’s main 
east lot.

No special information 
would be required.

5 5

While federal regulations to improve average fuel 
economy in miles per gallon of  cars exists (Corporate 
Average Fuel Economy or CAFE), the United States has 
one of  the lowest standards of  average fuel economy.  
These standards are expected to become more 
stringent in the near future (currently only requiring 
27.5 mpg for cars and 23.1 mpg for trucks, expected to 
increase to 39 mpg and 30 mpg, respectively, by 2016).  
However, municipalities can adopt their own, more 
rigorous average fuel economy standards.  By doing so, 
greenhouse gas emissions from vehicles will be limited 
and fuel costs will be reduced in a standardized way.

In order to determine feasibility 
for this measure in a community, 
political will, existing driving 
habits, and operations schedules 
must be reviewed and gauged. 
The enactment of  an average fuel 
economy does not require a large 
expenditure of  initial funds, but 
would require Troy to implement 
other measures to achieve this 
measure.

Extensive information 
about existing vehicles 
fuel usage, remaining 
life with the City, utility 
to the departments 
they serve, and a 
good understanding of  
realistic alternatives to 
reduce fuel consumption.

4 4



_65

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

While not specifically mentioned 
in the legislation of  the Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Block 
Grant program, it is in line with 
the intention of  the bill. This 
activity may be eligible as a 
transportation programming item.  
It would not require a significant 
outlay of  funds initially, but 
would require the City to purchase 
more economical vehicles in the 
future.  Comprehensive monitoring 

of  fuel usage is 
already available 
from Troy’s fleet 
management team.

This measure is best managed by 
a fleet manager in cooperation 
with the City Manager’s office. 
The manager would need to 
meet with staff  to determine 
their needs and work to find 
satisfactory alternative vehicles 
over time. 

This measure can have a large 
impact in terms of  dollars saved, 
gallons of  gas reduced, and 
CO2 emissions reduced. Many 
municipal vehicles are expensive 
to maintain and fuel, and a 
comprehensive goal setting for 
a higher average fuel economy 
would institutionalize economical 
decisions in vehicle purchasing 
and operation, perpetrating the 
work already begun by Fleet 

Management.  

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 23

There is essentially a very 
small cost associated with this 
measure.  Costs would include 
a few small signs and a limited 
amount of  striping paint to 
identify these spaces.  It is in 
the spirit of  the EECBG grant to 
program funds for transportation 
programming, but it is unclear 
of  this specific measure could be 
covered.  That said, the minimal 
cost could simply be absorbed 

within existing 
maintenance 
programmed 
funds.

No special personnel would be 
required; existing City facilities 
staff  could convert several 
spaces to hybrid or other 
alternative fuel vehicle only 
spaces.

This measure would have no 
real impact on the City’s energy 
bottom line.  That said, it would 
be a unique incentive for City 
residents or employees who 
choose to drive such vehicles, 
and would be an outward symbol 
of  the City’s effort to promote 
energy efficiency.  Given its very 
low cost, it would be advisable 
to install a single hybrid/
alternative fuel vehicle space in 

visible City lots, 
such as near the 
main entrance at 
City Hall.5 5 5

5 5 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_66

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _internal 
measures

Pr
ov

id
e 

Bi
ke

 S
to

ra
ge

 +
 S

ho
we

rs

I.T.8

Intent Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Providing bicycle storage and showers for employees 
are small measures which can promote bicycle 
commuting.  Commuters tend to support biking if  
their travel time is reasonable and convenient, 
if  they have secure storage upon arrival, and if  
there is somewhere for them to freshen up before 
beginning their work day. 

For City Hall, sheltered bike parking 
could be made available in the 
Police Department’s garage, or 
under a carport, where a single 
parking space could shelter a dozen 
or more bikes.  The shower facility 
for general employees may require 
renovation of  a rest room or rooms, 
which could cost between 5 and 
20 thousand dollars, depending on 
the scale of  the project. The City 
could also consider allowing free 

use of  Community 
Center facilities 
for bike commuters 
and walkers, with 
storage there.

No real data is needed, 
but a good understanding 
of  the plumbing and 
systems of  existing 
facilities could be required 
to select a location for 
installing showers for City 
employees.  

5 4

Li
fe

-C
yc

le
 A

na
ly

se
s 

fo
r N

ew
 V

eh
icl

es

I.T.9

A life-cycle analysis determines the environmental 
influence of  a product based on its existence, often 
in direct comparison to the status quo.  A four step 
process including goal and scope, life cycle inventory, 
life cycle impact assessment, and interpretation, 
can indicate whether a higher cost is truly 
environmentally advantageous enough to warrant 
the difference.  Doing so for new vehicles can help 
determine the best option and actually reduce 
expenses over time.

This is already partially done in 
Troy.  The City Fleet Management 
Team maintains vehicles largely 
in-house, keeps diligent records with 
regard to maintenance expenses 
and material, and monitors overall 
fuel consumption and efficiency. The 
City has complete records detailing 
initial costs, including licensing, 
etc.  Therefore the actual cost of  
ownership is well known.  It would 
only take a small amount of  effort 

to incorporate a few 
more elements to 
understand the true 
life cycle of  most 
City vehicles.

Comprehensive data 
about the fueling and 
maintenance of  every 
vehicle the City owns, 
and a good projection of  
the anticipated cost of  
fueling and maintaining 
a potential vehicle, 
would be necessary.  An 
understanding of  the 
environmental issues 
related to the manufacture 

& disposal 
of  a 
vehicle is 
needed.4 4



_67

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

While not specifically mentioned 
in the legislation of  the Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Block 
Grant program, it is in line with 
the intention of  the bill. If  the 
City were to make the Community 
Center showers and lockers free 
for City Employee bike or walking 
commuters, it would require 
hardly any cost.

This measure could be 
administered by on-site staff  
at whichever building would be 
given this treatment.  It may 
require specialized contractors if  
the facility were renovated, but 
only regular maintenance from 
City Staff  once in place.

This measure would provide a 
benefit and incentive to Troy 
employees that choose to live 
close to work and/or commute 
sustainably.  While it could cost 
a great deal to construct showers 
and appropriate storage, use of  the 
Community Center for municipal 
campus employees would be very 
inexpensive.  It may not reduce the 
City’s own energy use, but would 
comply with the City’s Master Plan 

by encouraging 
sustainable 
transportation.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 22

4 5 4

T o t a l  S c o r e : 22

While not specifically mentioned 
in the legislation of  the Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Block 
Grant program, it is in line with 
the intention of  the bill. Also, 
it would require hardly any cost 
initially, but could add more hours 
to the monitoring of  the City’s 
fleet and purchasing efforts.

This measure could be 
administered by the City’s Fleet 
Manager.

Ultimately, this measure would 
likely save the City energy and 
money over time.  Having a 
comprehensive understanding of  
all the costs and issues associated 
with a vehicle prior to purchase, 
insofar as possible, will help 
the City make the most cost 
effective and environmentally 
friendly choices with regard 
to vehicles.  It may require 
additional management, but does 

not necessarily 
require any other 
immediate costs.4 5 5



_68



_69

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

E x t e r n a l  M e a s u r e s

The external measures are those measures which have more impacts out in the 
community, but have an indirect impact on the day-to-day operation of the local 
unit of government.  These measures deal with land use, economic development, and 
the energy needs of residents and businesses within the community.  They deal with 
resource management, incentives for the initiation of energy conservation measures, and 
enhancement of transportation options.  While these measure play an important role in 
the long term redevelopment of the community, they have far less immediate impact on 
the energy bottom line for the local unit of government.



_70

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _external 
measures

Pe
rm

it/
In

ce
nt

iv
iz

e 
So

la
r E

ne
rg

y 
Ge

ne
ra

tio
n

Pe
rm

it/
In

ce
nt

iv
iz

e 
Ge

ot
he

rm
al

 E
ne

rg
y

E.RE.1

E.RE.2

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Geothermal systems use ground source heat pumps 
to extract or return heat to the earth. The ground 
source systems rely on the Earth’s relatively 
constant temperature below six feet.  By running 
liquids through pipes dug into the earth, a building 
can be cooled off  in the summer and heated in the 
winter.  This form of  geothermal technology is an 
effective and predictable form of  energy.  It is also 
one of  the most cost effective forms of  renewable 
energy available.  Ground source technology is most 
appropriate in applications where a building has an 
ample amount of  land to run pipes underground.  
Ground source geothermal technology can be retrofit 
to existing buildings or used in new construction.  

The City does not currently prohibit 
geothermal systems, in fact, they 
would be permitted in Troy subject 
to building code provisions.  There 
are no local incentives, however, 
and it is unclear if  the City is 
able to do more than encourage 
renewable energy installations at 
this time. Potential future incentive 
zoning measures for projects 
with renewable may be feasible.  
Currently, the City uses “green 

development” 
as a criteria for 
permitting PUDs.

Comprehensive potential 
energy data and a good 
understanding of  the 
heating and cooling 
needs and potential 
payback is required 
to educate residents 
and businesses about 
geothermal energy.  No 
special data is needed 
to permit or incentivize 
these installations.

3 4

Solar power is energy derived from converting 
sunlight into electricity.  Installation cost is 
typically high, but solar power is one of  the most 
reliable sources of  energy – while intermittent, it 
is somewhat predictable.  A variety of  incentives 
are possible, such as offering income tax credits, 
property tax exemptions, coverage of  a percentage 
of  the installation cost, and rebates. Additionally, 
programs can be established for residents to sell 
their solar energy back to the grid.

The City does not currently prohibit 
solar energy generation, in fact 
solar panels would be permitted in 
Troy.  There are no local incentives, 
however, and it is unclear if  
the City is able to do more than 
encourage renewable energy 
installations at this time, given 
the limited resources.  Potential 
future incentive zoning measures 
for projects with renewables 
may be appropriate and feasible.  

Currently, the 
City uses “green 
development” 
as a criteria for 
permitting PUDs.

Comprehensive solar 
energy potential data 
and a good understanding 
of  the potential payback 
is required to educate 
residents and businesses 
about solar energy.  No 
special data is needed 
to permit or incentivize 
solar installations.

3 4



_71

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

This activity could be funded by 
the EECBG program, although 
the limited funding available 
to apply to this program versus 
others would mean that any 
incentive program involving 
assistance in funding would 
be undercapitalized.  Free or 
inexpensive measures, like 
adding zoning incentives, would 
require no special funds.

This measure, if  it included 
financial incentives (similar to 
a facade improvement program 
in a DDA or using CDBG funds) 
would require sophisticated 
financial management.  This 
may be available within existing 
staff, but could require outside 
accounting or legal professionals.

If  directly supporting owners 
with funds or resources, this 
measure may be difficult to 
implement, expensive to be 
successful, and ultimately 
benefit only a small number of  
businesses.  Providing zoning 
incentives would be more easily 
and inexpensively achieved, 
but would require a more 
comprehensive approach in the 
zoning ordinance, as discussed in 

measure E.P.1.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 17

This activity could be funded by 
the EECBG program, although 
the limited funding available 
to apply to this program versus 
others would mean that any 
incentive program involving 
assistance in funding would 
be undercapitalized.  Free or 
inexpensive measures, like 
adding zoning incentives, would 
require no special funds.

This measure, if  it included 
financial incentives (similar to 
a facade improvement program 
in a DDA or using CDBG funds) 
would require sophisticated 
financial management.  This 
may be available within existing 
staff, but could require outside 
accounting or legal professionals.

If  directly supporting owners 
with funds or resources, this 
measure may be difficult to 
implement, expensive to be 
successful, and ultimately 
benefit only a small number of  
businesses.  Providing zoning 
incentives would be more easily 
and inexpensively achieved, 
but would require a more 
comprehensive approach in the 
zoning ordinance, as discussed in 

measure E.P.1.

3 4 3

3 4 3

T o t a l  S c o r e : 17



_72

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _external 
measures

Pe
rm

it/
In

ce
nt

iv
iz

e 
W

in
d 

En
er

gy
 O

n-
Si

te
Pe

rm
it/

In
ce

nt
iv

iz
e 

Ut
ili

ty
 S

ca
le

 W
in

d 
En

er
gy

E.RE.3.a

E.RE.3.b

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Utility-scale wind turbines are large machines that 
use wind power to create electricity for more than 
one home, business or facility.  They are hundreds 
of  feet in height, and require a team of  professional 
engineers to plan for their installation.  Utility-
scale wind turbines can provide power for two to 
three hundred homes when producing near their 
peak performance.  Governments with large tracts of  
land can enter into contracts with wind developers 
to rent their land.  Municipalities can expedite 
the permitting process for these developers as 
an incentive to use utility scale wind generation, 
thereby making the application process more 
conducive to this scale of  wind energy development.

Sited near the building they serve, small wind 
turbines turn to convert wind energy into electricity, 
effectively reducing the amount of  electricity from 
fossil fuels that a building may depend upon.  Small 
“private” use turbines are tied into a building’s 
electrical system providing electricity only to one 
building, or to a small group of  buildings. Under the 
right circumstances, turbines are as cost effective 
as conventional fossil fuel electricity. Modern 
private turbines can provide a positive return on 
investment in 5-10 years given proper conditions. 
The effectiveness of  wind power is highly dependent 
on site conditions, and prevailing electric utility rate 
structures.  

Given the limited wind energy 
potential and high cost in Troy, 
large turbines are unlikely. 
The City does have provisions 
permitting wind energy generators.  
There are no local incentives, 
however, and it is unclear if  
the City is able to do more than 
encourage renewable energy 
installations at this time, given it’s 
limited resources.  The Planning 
Commission has expressed 

potential concerns 
about large scale 
wind energy 
generators.

Comprehensive wind 
energy potential data 
and a good understanding 
of  the potential payback 
is required to educate 
residents and businesses 
about wind energy.  No 
special data is needed 
to permit or incentivize 
wind installations.

1 4

The City does have provisions 
permitting wind energy generators.  
There are no local incentives, 
however, and it is unclear if  
the City is able to do more than 
encourage renewable energy 
installations at this time, given 
it’s limited resources.  Potential 
future incentive zoning measures 
for projects with renewable may 
be appropriate and feasible.  
Currently, the City uses “green 

development” 
as a criteria for 
permitting PUDs.

Comprehensive wind 
energy potential data 
and a good understanding 
of  the potential payback 
is required to educate 
residents and businesses 
about wind energy.  No 
special data is needed 
to permit or incentivize 
wind installations.

3 4



_73

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...

This activity could be funded by 
the EECBG program, although 
the limited funding available 
to apply to this program versus 
others would mean that any 
incentive program involving 
assistance in funding would 
be undercapitalized.  Free or 
inexpensive measures, like 
adding zoning incentives, would 
require no special funds.

This measure, if  it included 
financial incentives (similar to 
a facade improvement program 
in a DDA or using CDBG funds) 
would require sophisticated 
financial management.  This 
may be available within existing 
staff, but could require outside 
accounting or legal professionals.

If  directly supporting owners 
with funds or resources, this 
measure may be difficult to 
implement, expensive to be 
successful, and ultimately 
benefit only a small number of  
businesses.  Providing zoning 
incentives would be more easily 
and inexpensively achieved, 
but would require a more 
comprehensive approach in the 
zoning ordinance, as discussed in 

measure E.P.1.

T o t a l  S c o r e : 17

This activity could be funded by 
the EECBG program, although 
the limited funding available 
to apply to this program versus 
others would mean that any 
incentive program involving 
assistance in funding would 
be undercapitalized.  Free or 
inexpensive measures, like 
adding zoning incentives, would 
require no special funds.

This measure, if  it included 
financial incentives (similar to 
a facade improvement program 
in a DDA or using CDBG funds) 
would require sophisticated 
financial management.  This 
may be available within existing 
staff, but could require outside 
accounting or legal professionals.

If  directly supporting owners 
with funds or resources, this 
measure may be difficult to 
implement, expensive to be 
successful, and ultimately 
benefit only a small number of  
businesses.  Providing zoning 
incentives would be more easily 
and inexpensively achieved, 
but would require a more 
comprehensive approach in the 
zoning ordinance, as discussed in 

measure E.P.1.

3 4 3

3 4 3

T o t a l  S c o r e : 15



_74

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _external 
measures

Zo
ni

ng
 to

 P
ro

m
ot

e 
En

er
gy

 E
ffi

cie
nc

y
Ma

st
er

 P
la

n 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

E.P.1

E.P.2

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

A community’s master plan is a document that 
establishes a long-range community vision.  By 
examining current trends, engaging the public, 
and analyzing a community’s past, a master 
plan provides guidance and strategies for local 
decision-making.  Currently, communities are being 
challenged by more expensive, less available, 
energy.  Long commutes, expensive food, a low 
density development pattern, and an expensive 
supply of  electricity are all elements that contribute 
to the energy crisis that can be addressed in a 
master plan.  As energy prices get even higher and 
resources become more scarce, those communities 
that have not planned accordingly will be at a large 
disadvantage. 

Communities frequently review 
and update master plans. This 
measure involves the incorporation 
of  new energy-specific issues and 
a reassessment of  existing issues 
in the context of  energy.  The 2008 
City of  Troy Master Plan already 
includes an entire chapter on 
green development and efficiency, 
much of  which inspired the City to 
complete this REAP project.

No special information 
or data is needed.

5 5

Adopt creative zoning provisions that require new 
buildings to be built in ways that minimize energy 
use and green house gas emissions.  Such provisions 
could include allowing density bonuses and/or 
expedited site plan review for buildings that reach a 
certain level of  green building.  Additionally, zoning 
requirements could be altered to allow or even 
incentivize urban farming/vegetable gardens, on-site 
renewable energy production, landscaping on the 
southern exposure of  homes, mixed-use development 
within residential areas, and district heating and 
cooling schemes. 

This measure is currently underway 
as part of  the City’s comprehensive 
zoning ordinance rewrite project.

No specific data is 
needed, but the input 
and will of  the Planning 
Commission and City 
Council must be solicited.

5 5



_75

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

This could be funded partially 
by the EECBG program, if  the 
project was not already funded 
from other means.  This project 
will be accomplished using funds 
that have been set aside for the 
zoning ordinance.

This measure is being handled 
collectively by the City’s Planning 
staff, Planning Commission, and 
Planning Consultant.

This easy to implement measure 
can have a large impact in terms 
of  promoting energy efficiency 
throughout the City by offering 
zoning incentives to developers.  
Typically, the incentives, like 
parking reductions and density 
bonuses, themselves contribute 
to energy efficiency.  The 
energy efficiency of  private 
developments within Troy 
will have a positive impact on 

redevelopment 
and quality of  life 
in the community.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25

Planning activities related to 
energy efficiency improvements 
are eligible for EECBG funding. 
Many of  the initiatives that are 
paid for as part of  developing an 
energy conservation strategy can 
be applied to planning, and when 
the City of  Troy Master Plan is 
due for a review, this report and 
the EECS will be available to 
inform that revision.

This measure has been handled 
collectively by the City’s Planning 
staff, Planning Commission, and 
Planning Consultant.

While it is difficult to quantify 
the immediate benefit of  revising 
a Master Plan, it is a critical 
document that establishes other 
quantifiable measures and a 
series of  goals. It establishes 
the community’s vision of  itself  
for the future and informs 
decision making in all areas of  
government.

5 5 5

5 5 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_76

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _external 
measures

Ur
ba

n 
Ga

rd
en

in
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

s
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Wa

st
e 

Re
du

ct
io

n

E.P.3

E.BC.1.a

Intent Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Deconstructing buildings rather than demolishing 
them can be a valuable part of  sustainable building 
construction, as it allows for the possibility of  
reuse.  Preparing for reuse with bins on-site for 
organizing materials can streamline the process.  
Scrap materials can be used in a variety of  ways.
For example, leftover masonry can be crushed and 
used for fill, leftover rigid insulation can be used 
as ventilation baffles, and scrap lumber can be used 
as compost.  Additionally, materials can simply 
be collected and distributed to recycling centers.  
Municipalities can establish waste benchmarks and 
incentives, as well as, provide recycling facilities and 
education opportunities for construction companies.

This measure is largely 
accomplished voluntarily by 
contractors who find that they can 
profit from recycling construction 
debris and can gain LEED or other 
green building points for recycling.  
The City can incentivize green 
building generally and recognize 
construction waste management as 
a component of  green building.

Depending on how the 
City were to accomplish 
encouragement of  
construction waste 
management,  the 
measure could require 
cash analysis of  
construction debris 
and a plan on how to 
recycle that debris.

3 4

The U.S. has highly developed food production and 
distribution networks that have become so advanced 
that most consumers have no idea where their food 
came from or how it was produced.  Most of  the time, 
the food we eat comes with great investments in 
energy, in the form of  chemical fertilizers, petroleum 
powered farm machinery, hormone production and 
use, and transportation to get the food to market, 
among other costs.  When people in cities have 
the ability to grow their own food, they reduce the 
energy used to produce food and have it shipped 
to market.  Further, growing food locally increases 
health consciousness and reduces vehicle trips.

Urban gardening does exist in Troy, 
although the City does not provide 
or facilitate such a program.  Given 
the availability of  space within 
large City parks, the relatively 
low cost for the City to initiate 
a program, and the potential for 
revenue to support the program, 
it certainly is feasible, if  not 
probable in the current economic 
climate.

Estimated participation 
and fees would be 
necessary to determine 
if  the project’s cost 
could be offset by 
participant revenue. It 
would take publication 
and marketing to get 
interested parties to 
commit to the program.

4 4



_77

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

While not specifically mentioned 
in the legislation of  the Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation 
Block Grant program, it is in line 
with the intention of  the bill. 
However, it would not result in an 
immediate, measurable reduction 
in energy usage, so it may be 
complicated.  Urban gardening 
could be funded by participant 
subscription fees.

To initiate the design and 
construction of  an urban 
gardening plot, some special 
assistance may be required.  
However, most maintenance and 
setup for the facility after initial 
construction is completed by 
participants.

This measure could be profitable, 
or break-even, with a stable 
subscriber base.  However, it 
would take an initial outlay 
of  City finds to initiate, and a 
host of  new issues regarding 
liability, traffic, and protecting 
plants from other park users, 
may diminish the return.  Also, 
this project would not provide 
an immediate energy savings 
directly to the City.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 19

Managing waste and promoting 
recycling is within the bounds of  
many grant programs, including 
the EECBG.  Also, private partners 
who have developed systems 
to profit from recycling and 
developers who know how to 
repurpose construction materials 
can bear the majority of  any 
costs anticipated with the 
encouragement of  construction 
waste management.

Experienced contractors and 
waste management professionals 
are the best source of  
information with regard to 
effective waste management.  
The encouragement of  recycling 
and reducing construction debris 
would best be performed by 
consultants to the City.

The management of  waste from 
construction and encouragement 
of  recycling is an important goal 
on a large scale.  There is little to 
be gained immediately in terms of  
energy use, however, by the City 
of  Troy for financing a program 
to encourage construction debris 
management.  At a maximum, the 
City could include debris recycling 
as a stated item when it developed 
green building materials or zoning 

incentives for 
efficient design.

5 3 1

4 5 2

T o t a l  S c o r e : 16



_78

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _external 
measures

Re
cy

cli
ng

 F
ac

ili
tie

s
Gr

ee
n 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Gu
id

el
in

e 
Ma

nu
al

E.BC.1.b

E.BC.2

Intent Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Developing a green building manual will enable the 
community to guide developers and residents to 
appropriate options for energy efficiency and waste 
reduction.  Energy efficient means may include ways 
to improve indoor air quality, increasing energy 
and water efficiency, conserving natural resources 
and planning for a livable, vibrant community.  
By defining the community’s green initiatives, 
developers and residents can be educated on the 
most suitable ways to conserve/reduce energy 
consumption in their community.

The only impediment to producing a 
green building manual is cost, but 
there are no regulatory or other 
obstacles that would prevent the 
creation of  such a document.

A thorough understanding 
of  green building would 
be required in order to 
authoritatively produce 
this document.  Such 
expertise could be 
contracted.

3 5

Providing recycling facilities to encourage product 
reuse is a valuable part of  sustainable living.  Less 
waste directed to landfills means improvement in the 
environment, lower transportation costs, and lower 
energy consumption. This measure can be enacted in 
tandem with construction waste recycling.  Offering 
reuse options in concert with recycling facilities is 
also an important element of  reducing the amount of  
waste generated by a community.

The City of  Troy already 
participates in a regional recycling 
facility program, and offers curb 
side pickup and regular curb side 
trash and compost pickup as well.  
The City uses private contract 
waste haulers.

Extensive data with 
regard to potential 
trash and recycling 
revenue and the 
long-term effects of  
providing a City-owned 
recycling facility would 
be required.

0 2



_79

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Given that the City already 
provides access to this service, 
funding is in place.  There are 
many sources of  revenue for 
waste hauling and recycling can 
often be profitable, depending on 
the program.

This measure can be 
accomplished with dedicated 
waste management staff, or with 
a qualified contractor.  The City 
uses contract hauling services 
and participates in a regional 
recycling facility program.  

This measure is in place in Troy.  
Troy residents have access to 
extensive recycling services.  
There is no benefit to pursuing 
new recycling initiatives in Troy.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 12

Public education projects related 
to energy efficiency may be 
eligible for EECBG funds, however, 
it would be difficult to quantify 
energy savings anticipated as 
a result of  the project.  That 
said, this would be a relatively 
inexpensive measure with a 
high return in terms of  assisting 
applicants in selecting green 
options.  It could also have an 
economic development component, 

connecting 
developers and 
contractors with 
green building 
suppliers.

The development of  a green 
building manual would likely be 
completed by a consultant on 
contract to the City.

This measure could assist the City 
in working with the development 
community, especially if  the City 
were to incentivize green building.  
In other words, such a document 
could connect developers with 
suppliers, inform the developers 
of  the green elements the City 
is encouraging, and provide 
resources that could save time 
and money in the design and 
entitlement process.  It may not 

result in any 
immediate energy 
savings, but could 
have long-term 
benefits.

4 4 4

5 5 0

T o t a l  S c o r e : 20



_80

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _external 
measures

Ex
pe

di
te

d 
Pe

rm
itt

in
g

De
ns

ity
 B

on
us

es

E.BC.3

E.BC.4

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Density bonuses can be used to encourage energy 
efficient development by granting a greater 
development yield to the owner.  Density bonuses 
are earned by the developer meeting certain 
sustainable living requirements, i.e. greater energy 
efficiency per unit, reduced parking area, natural 
resource preservation, low-impact stormwater 
management, etc.  By clearly defining terms which 
must be met by the developer, a community can allow 
for an increase in the density of  a development and 
institute an expedited review process. 

The City does use energy 
efficiency as one of  several 
qualifying criteria for Planned 
Unit Development approval.  PUDs 
can gain density through their 
unique process.  In other words, 
the City has already begun to 
adopt incentive zoning for energy 
efficiency.  This could be expanded 
in the comprehensive zoning 
rewrite project.

No specific data or 
information would be 
required to implement 
this measure, but there 
would be a necessary 
process with the Planning 
Commission and City 
Council to determine the 
standards and appropriate 
levels of  bonus for energy 
efficiency.

5 5

An opportunity made possible by establishing a 
green building manual and green building zoning 
standards is the implementation of  an expedited 
permitting process for projects that meet these 
specific criteria.  An expedited permitting process 
can be a critical factor for a developer in that the 
costs associated with the entitlement process can be 
reduced.  Allowing expedited review and permitting 
for green building projects will not only provide an 
incentive to the developer, it can help the community 
meet its long-term energy reduction goals.

Given the low volume of  
applications and efficiency of  
the streamlined building and 
planning departments at the City, 
permitting is currently a relatively 
efficient and rapid process in 
Troy.  The applicants’ materials are 
distributed and reviewed digitally, 
making for fast turnover.  There 
is little to no room to make the 
process even faster at this time.  In 
the future, should volume increase 

substantially, the 
City may be in a 
better position to 
capitalize on this 
measure. 

No data is required for 
this measure, other than 
a set of  standards used 
to make a determination 
that a project would 
qualify for expedited 
permitting.

1 4



_81

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

While not specifically mentioned 
in the legislation of  the Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Block 
Grant program, it is in line with 
the intention of  the bill. This 
measure would really require 
very little to no funding to 
implement.

A LEED AP or other qualified 
green building professional 
would be required to design the 
application and standards for 
expedited permitting, and staff  
would be required to receive 
training to recognize such an 
application and determine if  it 
meets the standards.  

This measure could increase 
the number of  energy efficient 
developments that are proposed 
in Troy.  With education, 
developers would come to 
recognize that energy efficiency 
helps projects get through the 
entitlement process faster in 
Troy, building a culture of  green 
building. Greener buildings 
result in less demand for public 
services and a net benefit to the 

City in the long-
term.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 18

The EECBG program will cover the 
development of  local regulations 
geared towards energy efficiency, 
and the has already initiated and 
funded the comprehensive zoning 
rewrite project. 

Planning and zoning consultants, 
working with City Staff, are 
capable of  developing these 
standards and working with the 
Planning Commission and City 
Council to get them revised and 
approved.

This measure would help the 
City achieve a series of  goals 
laid out in the 2008 Master 
Plan, Big Beaver Corridor Study, 
and Vision 2020 project.  It 
would encourage developers to 
build dense projects with green 
features in urban locations, and 
possibly with a mix of  land uses. 
It has been shown that these 
measures will have a long-term 
benefit to the City of  Troy in 

terms of  economic 
development and 
quality of  life.5 5 5

5 4 4

T o t a l  S c o r e : 25



_82

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _external 
measures

Gr
ee

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Pr

of
ici

en
cy

 E
du

ca
tio

n
No

n-
Mo

to
riz

ed
 Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

E.BC.5

E.T.1

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

A non-motorized transportation plan offers 
opportunities to establish connectivity via transit, 
bikeways, greenways, and walkways.  These various 
non-motorized alternatives assure pedestrian 
and bike safety, while reducing resource use, auto 
emissions, energy conservation, and promoting a 
healthy lifestyle.  The plan should take community 
interests into consideration, and should result in a 
better environment on roads for both drivers and 
non-drivers. 

The City has already contracted 
with a private group and completed 
a draft of  a City-wide pathways 
plan, making this measure 
obsolete.

A comprehensive 
understanding of  the 
existing and potential 
local and regional 
non-motorized pathway 
network, commuting 
habits, and transit 
options.

1 5

Establishment of  a green building manual and green 
building zoning standards can educate builders 
on best practices in energy conservation.  After 
development of  specific standards, outreach can 
be provided to builders in the form of  offering 
additional information via website, workshops 
oriented toward specific green building options, and 
by providing energy efficient suggestions through 
staff  review.

Should the City produce a green 
building manual, provide zoning 
incentives for green building, and 
continue to support new methods 
of  development, this measure 
would help the City achieve those 
goals.  By bringing in qualified 
instructors and providing free or 
subsidized education to potential 
developers and owners, this 
measure could help initiate a 
groundswell of  green building.

A qualified instructor 
would likely be hired to 
achieve this measure, 
and would have all the 
information necessary to 
produce such a program.

5 5



_83

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

The EECBG program will cover the 
development of  local regulations 
geared towards energy efficiency, 
and would fund education 
programs to promote those 
regulations.  This could also be 
acheived by leveraging private 
and in-kind donations from 
contractors and green building 
suppliers who would benefit from 
the exposure. 

This measure would require a 
series of  qualified instructors 
hired or who would volunteer to 
help achieve this measure, as 
well as existing City staff.

This measure would help the City 
achieve other measures related 
to promoting green building in 
the community.  It would help 
achieve a series of  goals laid 
out in the 2008 Master Plan, Big 
Beaver Corridor Study, and Vision 
2020 project.  It has been shown 
that dense energy efficient 
projects will have a long-term 
benefit to the City of  Troy by 
attarcting new demographics 

and reducing 
demand for public 
services.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 24

The EECBG program would fund 
transportation programming 
like this, but this project has 
already been completed in Troy, 
and is awaiting action at the City 
Council level.

A team of  consultants worked 
with the City Parks and 
Recreation staff  to develop a 
Pathways Plan draft.

There is little benefit to pursuing 
this measure, as the City has 
already drafted a Pathways Plan 
in the recent past.

3 5 1

5 4 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 15



_84

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _external 
measures

Bi
ke

 L
an

es
Pu

bl
ic 

Tr
an

si
t R

id
er

sh
ip

 In
ce

nt
iv

es

E.T.2

E.T.3

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Incentivizing public transit ridership is one way 
to decrease excess driving, which creates expense 
and additional fuel consumption.  Businesses can 
encourage public transit ridership via free transit 
passes or “parking cash-outs,” in which an employer 
gives employees the choice of  a parking space at 
work or a cash payment upon giving up the parking 
space.  Parking cash-outs have been shown to reduce 
driving to work by 20% or more.  Companies can also 
create shuttle systems to drive people to and from 
public transit stations. Public transit ridership often 
increases due to increased service frequency and 
hours of  operation, coordination between modes of  
transportation, improved stops and stations, lower 
fares and discounts, transit/cycling coordination, and 
multi-modal access guides. 

This measure is difficult to 
implement at this time, due to a 
lack of  adequate public transit to 
many areas within Troy.  However, 
this is a measure that the City 
should consider in the long term 
as the Transit Center and other 
regional improvements take place.

A good understanding 
of  local transit options 
and an analysis of  how 
many potential workers 
and residents could 
benefit from an incentive 
program to understand the 
potential benefits. Such an 
analyis could be difficult 
to complete accurately and 
affordably.

1 4

As legal vehicles, bicycles should travel on the 
street.  This is often difficult given motorists’ 
resistance to bicyclists in their lane.  Providing 
bicycle lanes that meet AASHTO guidelines is one of  
the best ways to promote safe biking and driving in 
cooperation.  Bikers and drivers alike tend to obey 
the traffic laws more effectively in the presence 
of  bike lanes.  Pedestrian and biker safety are 
increased when bikers travel on the street.  The more 
conducive streets are to bicyclists, the more likely 
people are to consider biking a viable alternative to 
driving.

This is a long-term measure.  It 
is costly to install bike lanes in 
many cases when the bike lane is 
the only component of  the project. 
However, the City’s long-term 
streets projects could potentially 
integrate bike lanes as roads are 
resurfaced, widened, or otherwise 
improved.

Fully enginered 
analysis and design 
of  roadways under 
consideration.

3 5



_85

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Transportation programs, 
including the installation of  non-
motorized pathways, are included 
in the EECBG eligible projects.  
There are also a variety of  
transportation and bicycle 
advocacy grants available, as 
well as other public funding for 
bike lanes and pathways.  Also, 
they can be integrated with other 
funded projects.

Qualified transportation 
engineers must design and 
integrate bike lanes into existng 
road projects. The City has 
access to an experienced traffic 
engineering staff  and qualified 
consultants.

Bike lanes are most often cited 
by residents polled with regard 
to transportation improvements.  
Improved bike access throughout 
the City is supported by the 
Master Plan and Vison 2020.  By 
installing bike lanes, the City 
would be providing an amenity 
that could help to attract new 
demographics, including young 
families and professionals, to 
Troy.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 23

EECBG funds could potentially 
contribute to this sort of  
program, but would not be 
sufficient to make an impact 
without additional funding.  Such 
projects are often funded by 
DDAs, however the City’s DDA 
may not have the capital to 
achieve such a program at this 
time.

Dedicated employees would 
be required to administer this 
sort of  program, most likely in 
partnership with regional transit 
organziations.  It is unlikely 
that such a program could be 
absorbed by existing staff, given 
the amount of  time and expertise 
required.

While transit ridership incentives 
have been shown to increase 
ridership when well-funded in 
transit-rich areas, the lack of  
good transit right now would 
likely hinder the success of  such 
a program.  Once transit access 
improves, such a program should 
be considered.

2 3 2

5 5 5

T o t a l  S c o r e : 12



_86

M e a s u r e  W o r k s h e e t s   _external 
measures

Tr
an

si
t-O

rie
nt

ed
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

E.T.4

Feasibility Data/Analysis 
Needs

Transit oriented developments (TODs) are those 
which have a concentration of  land uses around a 
transit station or transit corridor (within ¼ mile 
or a 5-7 minute walk), generally characterized by 
moderate to high density residential development, 
mixed-uses, reduced parking, and a pedestrian 
orientation.  Developers tend to make their decisions 
for how and where to develop based on return on 
investment – a TOD can be perceived as riskier for 
a developer, but as transit becomes more popular, 
TOD type development will increase in popularity 
as well.   Providing incentives for TODs such as tax 
exemptions, expedited permit review processes, and 
density bonuses will motivate developers where 
TODs are being considered. 

The City is actively pursuing TOD 
projects by creating the Transit 
Center Master Plan District, 
jointly planning with the City of  
Birmingham, building a new Transit 
Center, and funding the zoning 
ordinance rewrite, which will create 
TOD provisions for the area.  This 
measure is already underway.

A good understanding 
of  the principles and 
opportunities of  TOD.

5 5

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...



_87

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

Developing new ordinances 
encouraging energy efficient 
developments like TODs could be 
funded by the EECBG program; 
however, this measure is already 
underway and already funded.

This measure is being achieved 
by a partnership between the 
elected and appointed officials 
of  the City of  Troy, the City of  
Birmingham, and the staff  and 
consultants of  each community.

This measure is already 
underway in Troy.

Funding Availability Personnel/Resources Potential Benefit/
Impact

T o t a l  S c o r e : 23

5 5 3

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...



_88 insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...



_89

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...

E n e r g y  E f f i c i e n c y  &  C o n s e r v a t i o n  S t r a t e g y

Introduction:

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grants (EECBG) provide 
funding opportunities for specific projects related to the implementation 
of the Rapid Energy Assessment Process (R.E.A.P.).   This document 
illustrates the City of Troy’s priorities in energy conservation, therefore 
illustrating the community’s energy efficiency and conservation priorities.  
EECBG funds made available to the City in 2009 total $906,100.

What is the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program?

In January 2007, the United States Congress passed the Federal Energy 
Independence and Security Act which authorized both the increase in 
the Corporate Average Fuel Economy for automobile manufacturers by 
2020, and the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) 
program.  The program was ultimately funded in 2009.  The program 
is intended to provide money for a wide range of local government 
activities that:

Reduce fossil fuel emissions• 
Decrease total energy consumption• 
Improve energy efficiency in the transportation, building, and  • 

 other energy consuming sectors
Spur economic growth• 
Create and/or retain jobs• 

Program Eligibility:

Cities with a population of 35,000 or more, including Troy and counties 
with 200,000 or more are entitled to a grant from the U.S. Department 
of Energy.  

Eligible Activities:

The following are examples of eligible activities specified in the EECBG 
legislation:

Development of an Energy Efficiency and Conservation   • 



_90 insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...

Strategy and technical consultant services to assist in the development of 
such strategy

Residential and commercial building energy audits• 

Financial incentive programs for energy efficiency improvements• 

Grants to nonprofit organizations and governmental agencies for   the • 
purpose of performing energy efficiency retrofits

Energy efficiency and conservation programs for buildings and   • 
facilities

Development and implementation of transportation programs  to • 
conserve energy, including non-motorized plans, flexible work schedules, 
promotion of zoning requirements that require energy efficiency

Building codes and inspections to promote building energy efficiency• 

Energy distribution technologies that increase energy efficiency, including • 
distributed generation, combined heat and power, and district heating and 
cooling systems

Material conservation programs including source reduction, recycling, and • 
recycled content procurement programs that lead to increases in energy 
efficiency

Reduction and capture of methane and greenhouse gases  excluding carbon • 
capture or sequestration from power plants

Energy efficient traffic signals and streetlighting• 

Renewable energy technologies on government buildings• 

Any other appropriate activity that meets the purposes of the program and • 
is approved by the Department of Energy

City of  Troy’s Strategy:

The City of Troy’s proposed Energy Efficiency and Conservation Strategy 
focuses on the following goals.  These goals will be met through the 
implementation of a broad range of new energy conservation technologies:



_91

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...

Implement technologies that will provide the City with the most signifi-1. 
cant energy savings in operating its administrative campus and other 
public facilities.

Implement technologies that will save the City money in terms of 2. 
installation, operation, and maintenance of its public facilities.

Implement technologies that demonstrate to the public new ways to 3. 
conserve energy that can be transferred to residential, office, and 
industrial settings.

As described by the actions included in the strategy, all energy and 4. 
cost savings will be monitored, quantified, and reported to the City’s 
residents to encourage implementation of new technologies in local 
homes and businesses.

City of  Troy’s Activities:

The City of Troy’s planned activities are:

City municipal facilities audits:  The eleven buildings being 
audited were identified as the poorest energy performers of the City’s 
facilities for which the City pays the energy costs.  This is determined 
through an analysis of annual energy usage.  These audits will identify 
physical and operational improvements that will make the buildings more 
energy efficient.  After improvements have been installed, the energy use 
of the buildings will be monitored and savings reported to the public.  
The goals of implementing these audits are to conserve energy, save 
tax dollars spent on municipal operations, and demonstrate to residents 
and visitors the benefits of new energy saving building technologies, 
encouraging them to adopt similar measures in their homes and businesses.

Budget: The eleven buildings to be audited total approximately 303,379 
square feet in area, therefore the cost to audit all eleven buildings at 
$0.14 per square foot equals an estimated $42,473.



_92 insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...

Implementation:
Solicit bids, rate, and choose contractor to conduct energy audits for 11 • 
high-priority City buildings.

Contractor to conduct energy audits, draft report, and review with City • 
staff.  Finalize report. 

Contractor and City staff to present final report on energy audits to City • 
Council.  City Council to review and approve energy efficiency building 
projects recommended in energy audits.

Energy improvements for high-priority City buildings: 
Upon conclusion of the energy audit process, the City will then make the 
improvements that promise the most significant energy savings.  After the 
improvements have been installed, the energy use of the buildings will be 
monitored and savings reported to the public.  The goals of installing energy 
saving building improvements are to conserve energy, save tax dollars 
spent on municipal operations, and demonstrate to residents and visitors the 
benefits of new energy saving building technologies.

Budget: The results of the energy audits will better determine the cost of 
making the energy efficient building renovations.  However, replacement of 
the boiler at City Hall has already been identified as an energy efficient 
measure.  The City intends to install two smaller, more efficient boilers that 
will use significantly less energy than the existing system.  In addition, each 
building was allocated $0.78 per square foot for renovations. It is estimat-
ed that 45% of the total project cost will be for supplies, and the remain-
ing 55% for labor $365,643 ($106,085 Supplies, $169,558 Contractual, 
$90,000 Equipment).

Implementation:
Solicit bids, rate, and choose contractor to install energy efficient building • 
improvements recommended by energy audit results. (NOTE: Lighting work 
will be combined with installation of outdoor City campus and roadway 
lighting improvements, outlined below).

Contractor to install building improvements under supervision of City staff. • 



_93

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...

Monitor energy savings due to building improvements.• 

Report quarterly energy savings to the public to encourage similar • 
improvements in residential, office and industrial settings.

LED lighting improvements:  As part of the a comprehensive effort, 
the City will also install LED lighting at its administration campus and along 
City roadways.  The project scope of the outdoor lighting improvements is a 
result of an energy reduction analysis conducted for the City in 2009.  It is 
estimated that the LED installations specified will save the City $15,685 in 
electricity annually, and will also significantly reduce, and nearly eliminated 
maintenance costs.  The LED lighting will also result in significant energy 
reduction in energy usage, estimated to be up to 60% over the current 
fixtures.  Energy savings will be monitored and reported to the public, 
encouraging similar modifications at residential and business properties.

Budget:  The City has been working with a lighting consultant to determine 
the potential for retrofitting internal and external lights at five (5) munici-
pal locations – the city hall, police department, library, court house and fire 
training warehouse.  Existing fixtures were evaluated, and LED alternative 
fixtures proposed.  A schedule of new light fixtures was prepared that identi-
fies 502 fixtures that could be converted to LED.  Installation of the fixtures 
was estimated at $150 per fixture. This totals $293,984 ($218,684 Supplies; 
$75,300 Contractual).

Implementation:
Solicit bids, rate, and choose contractor to install LED lighting • 
improvements at City buildings, in City campus parking lots, and along 
City roadways.

Contractor to install lighting improvements under supervision of City staff. • 

Monitor energy savings due to lighting improvements.• 

Report quarterly energy savings to the public to encourage similar • 
improvements in residential, office and industrial settings.



_94 insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...

Wind energy project: Another demonstration and encouragement to the 
public to support alternative energy generation includes installation of two 
smaller-scale vertical axis wind turbines, to determine their feasibility for 
widespread adoption.  These wind energy conversion systems will reduce the 
City’s dependence on electricity generated from coal or other non-renewable 
resources.  

Budget:  The City has research available wind energy conversion systems 
that would be appropriate for installation at the City’s municipal campus.  
The system chosen met the City’s goals for demonstrating alternative energy 
sources in a developed setting.  The installed cost for each wind energy 
conversion system was quoted at a maximum of $12,000 per unit.  This price 
includes the system, installation at the proposed site, and the electrical hook 
up.  Because the actual installation cost is unknown at this time, it is estimated 
that each system will cost $5,400 (45%), and the installation will cost $6,600 
(55%).  Therefore, two systems will total approximately $24,000 ($10,800 
Supplies, $13,200 Contractual).

Implementation:
Solicit bids for wind energy conservation system (WECS), rate proposals • 
and choose product supplier. 

Work with manufacturer to identify qualified contractors to install WECS.  • 
Solicit bids, rate, and choose contractor.

Contractor to install WECS under supervision of City staff and product • 
manufacturer.

Monitor energy savings due to WECS.• 

Report energy savings to the public to encourage similar improvements in • 
residential, office and industrial settings.

Transportation projects: The City will take advantage of their 
regularly-scheduled fleet purchases to upgrade between 18 and 30 
vehicles to hybrids over the period of the grant.  Each year would provide 
approximately $6,000 to $10,000 per vehicle for each vehicle, for a total 
grant obligation of $180,000 over three years to cover the difference 
between a conventional vehicle and the hybrid or alternative fuel version.  



_95

city of troy rapid energy assessment process

insert text here...blurb/how to use/mini facts/stats/etc...

The City of Troy has replaced, on its own, several conventional vehicles (Ford 
Escape SUVs) with hybrid alternatives (Ford Escape Hybrids) when they were 
due to be replaced, and has realized up to a 50% fuel efficiency increase.

Budget: The cost of this program is the difference between purchasing a con-
ventional vehicle and an alternative energy or hybrid vehicle. The estimated 
increment is $6,000 to $10,000 per vehicle, and the City is proposing to re-
place 18 to 30 vehicles over the grant period, costing a total of $180,000 of 
equipment.

Implementation:
City to purchase hybrid vehicles as part of regularly-scheduled annual • 
capital improvements.

Monitor energy savings due to hybrid vehicle purchases.• 

Report energy savings to the public to encourage similar improvements in • 
transportation choices.



C a r l i s l e / W o r t m a n  2 0 1 0
R a p i d  E n e r g y  A s s e s s m e n t  P r o c e s s  R e p o r t


	AGENDA: August 23, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	ROLL CALL:
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled
	Presentation of the Special Achievement in GIS (SAG) Award from Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. (ESRI), to Alex Bellak and the Information Technology Department.


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested
	I-4 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal League
	I-5 Joint Meeting with Planning Commission to Discuss Economic Development Initiatives
	I-6 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirts

	J-5 City of Troy v. BG’s LLC
	J-6 Application for a New SDM Liquor License – Super City Smoker’s Express, LLC
	J-7 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	IDD & IFEC for Metro Technologies, Ltd., 1462 E. Big Beaver – Monday, September 13, 2010
	IDD & IFEC for Sulzer Metco, Inc., 1972 Meijer – Monday, September 13, 2010

	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at some future point in time):
	Request to Schedule a Study Session with Barry Demp of Barry Demp Coaching
	Adoption of Troy City Council Code of Ethics


	COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Liquor Advisory Committee/ Final – June 14, 2010
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 9, 2010

	N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted
	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Stu Alderman from Jillian Cavellier, thanking Parks and Recreation for offering quality programs
	Letter to Rick Shepler from Ed Kuefler, thanking Water Department employees for their assistance

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	Notice of Hearing for Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company


	STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant

	CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1 Closed Session – None Requested

	ADJOURNMENT




